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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFPBHRE

RESULTS ¥E
Year ended 31 December
BZE+-A=t+-ALEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZEZEF —E-NF 2\ 2+t Z—T—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARETRT ARETR AREFTRT ARETR
Revenue Wz 2,182,038 3,117,648 2,943,724 2,889,658 2,171,867
Cost of sales HEMAK (1,988,615)  (2,890,495)  (2,680,527)  (2,648,995)  (2,006,230)
Gross profit EH 193,423 207,153 263,197 240,663 165,637
Profit before tax BT A& Rl 33,651 44,414 54,658 32,144 44,451
Profit for the year FRmH 30,684 37,763 43,951 32,079 42,695
Profit (loss) attributable to: MREAEERT
(B8)
- Owners of the Company S NCIE YU 30,879 38,008 45,393 32,674 42,729
- Non-controling interests — IR (195) (1,235) (1,442) (595) (34)
30,684 37,763 43,951 32,079 42,695
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAR
As at 31 December
+=-A=+-H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“E-EE —E-NF ZE-\f& T+t Z—T—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARETRT ARETR ARETRT ARETR
Total assets BEAE 1,207,484 1,625,965 1,190,417 942,502 676,988
Total liabilities LRk (872,337)  (1,322,972)  (1,026,555) (829,559) (610,347)
335,147 302,993 163,862 112,943 66,641
Equity (deficit) attrioutable to: WTER B ER
(B4) -
- Owners of the Company ~KRREBA 333,336 300,987 160,305 107,947 66,676
- Non-controlling interests — MR 1,811 2,006 3,557 4,996 (35)
335,147 302,993 163,862 112,943 66,641
Notes: Mt

() The financial figures for each of the two years ended 31 December 2020/
as at the respective year-end were extracted from the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

(o)  The financial figures for each of the three years ended 31 December 2018/
as at the respective year-end were extracted from the prospectus dated 30
October 2019 (the “Prospectus”).

The summary above does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

@ BEZ-_ZFE+-_A=T-BLEMEFESF/
RZSHBFREANTBBEEDREEAFHNE
BUMBBRE -

b) BE_Z-NF+_A=t—BUL=-RAFELKE

RZERBFERNMBEEIREE —FT N4
TA=tTEHMABARER ((BRER) -

A EBBETBREERGRAMBHREN B0 °
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERWE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Sprocomm Intelligence Limited (the “Company”), | present the
audited consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020
to the shareholders of the Company.

Business Review

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the outbreak of the
novel coronavirus (the “COVID-19”) caused significant adverse
impact on the global economy and consumer confidence.
The worldwide smartphone market was also affected as the
production capacities and schedules of the mobile phone
manufacturers were interrupted by lockdown measures and
consumers were more conscious on their spending.

The Group, as one of the leading ODM mobile phone suppliers
based in China, continues to focus on the research and
development, designing, manufacturing and sale of mobile
phones, PCBAs for mobile phones and loT related products,
targeting emerging markets. Since the outbreak of COVID-19,
a number of provinces and municipalities in China have taken
emergency public health measures and various actions to
prevent the spread of the COVID-19, including imposing
restriction on resumption date of production after the Chinese
New Year Holidays. Under these public health measures, the
Group experienced delays in the supply of raw materials from
its suppliers and certain workers had difficulties to return to
work as usual. The Group halted production at its production
plants in Shenzhen and Luzhou for a few weeks and production
was gradually resumed by end of February. As a result of the
aforesaid, the Group’s original production plans and production
capacity were significantly affected, leading to late delivery
of products in the first half of 2020. The Group has taken
corresponding actions to mitigate the adverse impact arising
from COVID-19, including prioritisation of sales orders, regular
communications with customers to secure the sales orders,
close monitoring and follow up on the delivery schedule of raw
materials and rescheduling production plans to speed up the
production process and meet the customer demand. Amid the
outbreak of COVID-19, the Group’s revenue for the year ended
31 December 2020 decreased by 30.0% to RMB2,182.0 million
from RMB3,117.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2019,
primarily attributed to the decrease in sales of mobile phones.
The Group’s net profit for the year ended 31 December 2020
also decreased by 18.8% to RMB30.7 million from RMB37.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERE

Highlights of the audited results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020, as compared to 2019, are shown in the
following table:

AEEBHE— —{fzi—?- H +T—RIF
EHREZEERZ (BT hEL) #R
Tk

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—HLFE

2020 2019
— 7 — ﬂi :%7j1£'£
(Audited) (Audited)
(RERZ) (=)
Revenue (RMB’000) e (AREFIT) 2,182,038 3,117,648
Net profit for the year (RMB’000) FRR/A(ARETT) 30,684 37,763
Earnings per share BRAF
- Basic (RMB cents) —ER(ARES) 3.09 4.98
- Diluted (RMB cents) —#E(ARES) 3.09 4.98
Outlook and Strategy Al 5= B 5% B%
Going forward, China’s ODM mobile phone market will be filled B 2R3k - 1 B ODM F #1135 15 & 7o m tk

with challenges and opportunities. While the global economy
still requires some time to recover, the Group will take this
opportunity to solidify its leading market position. Further, the
Directors consider that the rapid roll-out of 5G telecommunication
network in different parts of the world will drive the demand for
smartphones and loT products.

Leveraging on strong research and development ability, the
Group successfully entered into framework sales agreement
with Ant Financial (Hainan) Digital Technology Limited Company*
(%< fk O8F) BLF T AR A A, “Ant Financial”) for
product validation and supply of Ali-POS (point of sales) devices
supported with facial recognition feature (face ID) in 2019. The
cooperation with Ant Financial stimulated the Group’s revenue
from loT related products for the year ended 31 December 2020,
which significantly increased by 2.8 times to RMB481.0 million
from RMB127.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2019.

In order to capture the potential market opportunities and
maximise the interests of the Company and its shareholders,
the Group will continue to strengthen its cooperation with Ant
Financial and it will adopt a prudent approach to develop its
business and gradually expand its production capacity, enhance
its research and development capability, enrich its product
portfolio and increase its sales and marketing effort to diversify its
geographical locations.

*  For identification purpose only

B RS o RICERERR - AEBEFIEE
WeZENMISHELMA - 1IN EERAE
2IRE A IR L SGENNLE - BB E B
FHARENEERNTRK -

BERYMBE N FAEBEZRZ=ZZE—NF
I ERE®ES IR 858 RFERMER A ([15
BeR))RERBEREARHFD AR
BHEREPOS) BT IEREEHZ - &
E-Z_ZTF+-_A=t+—BHLEFE H
%S IREE ERNE A £ B A Y B R ME R E SR
KWK BEBEE-_T—AFt+-A=+—
AIEFEEMAREI27Z7EE T AEEN2.8
EEARMA81.0BB T -

REEBEMSEBRERARR REBRRDY
MEmEAl AERESEE NS RIS SR
E’J/\T’E VEREBRREFULE S EME

RTHEEE )  BEERASRINKHE
&%ﬁﬁﬂ& Lﬁiﬁlﬂzyﬁﬂi
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ESE

Gratitude

On behalf of the Company, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our valued shareholders, customers, suppliers, banks
and to our management and employees for their continuous
trust and support to the Group. The coming year will be full of
opportunities and challenges and we will strive our best to create
greater value for our shareholders and investors.

By order of the Board
Mr. Li Chengjun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB RO

Business Overview

The Group is an ODM mobile phone supplier based in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), primarily engaged in
research and development, designing, manufacturing and sale
of mobile phones, PCBAs for mobile phones and 10T related
products, targeting emerging markets.

The Group’s products are sold worldwide with strategic focus
on emerging markets which have high population and growing
demands on mobile phones. Revenue generated from PRC and
other emerging markets accounted for 98.9% of the Group’s total
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020. The Group’s
customers include various top local branded mobile phone
suppliers, telecommunication operators and trading companies
in the PRC, India, other Asian countries and other parts of the
world.

Amid the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group’s revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2020 decreased by 30.0% to RMB2,182.0
million from RMB3,117.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2019, primarily attributed to the decrease in sales of mobile
phones. On the other hand, leveraging on strong research and
development ability and the cooperation with Ant Financial, the
Group’s revenue from |oT related products for the year ended
31 December 2020 significantly increased by 2.8 times to
RMB481.0 million from RMB127.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2019. The Group’s net profit for the year ended 31
December 2020 also decreased by 18.8% to RMB30.7 million
from RMB37.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2019.

EBME

$%lﬁ*ﬁﬁ#$$AE EFIER (THRE)
,H/\%ﬁilim SEODMFEER £ 2

%%ﬁ% AT BEREE T - FHEAEH

il 8 BE AR AR 2 I B A AR R EE R o

AEEREERFEEER UHAORZAE
FHREBRTEEROFTETGESRBES
BE_ZT-_THFE+_A=T—HLEFE &
S 2R 5 AP B N H AR BT 05 A0 M a1 AR UK
TmM98.9% - AEBMEFEEHE - HE -
HMEMNERR2HREMBET NS RARN
AtmEFHitEn EEELALRESLRR -

COVID-19% 1B 8 1% AEBEMKEREE

TE-AFFT A=+ BLEFENARE
SI176EBIL TRINNEHE_ZT_FF
T+ A=+ —BLEFEMNARKE2182088
T EERHRFREERLAR -S—FHE
RER S N R EIFESREIE A5E
REVBBHEBERNREHEZE - —N
F+_A=Z+—HULEFENARKI12T7TES
TAIEIEM28E  EHE-_T _ZEF+-A
Zt+—HULEFEMARKAISI0EETL - A&
ENER TR E T NAFE+-_A=+—
HIFFEEMARKITSAE T NE188%E
HE-_Z-_ZTF+A=+—HLFEMA
R¥30.7EHETT °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

Financial Review

Revenue

Revenue by product categories

The Group’s product portfolio includes smartphones, feature
phones, PCBAs for mobile phones and |oT related products. The
Group mainly derives its revenue from the sales of smartphones
and loT products. Set out below is a breakdown of the Group’s
total revenue by product categories and the revenue generated
from each product category as a percentage of total revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019:

Bt %% [ EE

W =

REMER S D e
AEENERMEEBESETH R FiHK -
FHROMRPBIERRAE R B EBEEESD-
REBMNKRETEREOHES L FH LY
HEMR - TRINWNEEZZT_TFR=ZFT—N
FH+ZA=+—HIEFERERENISH
B EESEERBMNEEANKSEASEE
WEmMWAE D

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2020 2019
—E-BF —NEF

% of total % of total
RMB’000 revenue RMB’000 revenue
ARETT HRAKRZEN% ARETIT HAKEN%

Mobile phones FH
- Smartphones —EBEF 1,186,640 54.4 2,053,460 65.9
— Feature phones —INRER F K 296,746 13.6 357,123 11.4
Sub-total: IINEE 1,483,386 68.0 2,410,583 77.3
PCBAs 1) 28 Bt 4B 5% 103,532 4.7 471,862 15.1
loT related products Y B E 480,950 22.0 127,697 4.1
Others (Note) EAth (B75E) 114,170 5.3 107,506 3.5
Total 2,182,038 100.0 3,117,648 100.0

Note: Others mainly include revenue from the sales of mobile device components

used for after sales-services and the provision of research and development
and technical services for mobile phones, PCBAs and cloud related products.

Wit HMIEZRREHERNERREOBEHRBAMFD
Wa A RREFH - HRERRAEREEBER
OB 2 e BT AR TS

The Group’s total revenue decreased by 30.0% to RMB2,182.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from RMB3,117.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2019, primarily attributed
to the decreased sales of mobile phones amid the outbreak
of COVID-19, but partially offset by the increased sales of loT
related products.

1 0 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEETNWR D

Revenue from mobiles phones decreased by 38.5% to RMB
1,483.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
RMB2,410.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2019,
primarily attributed to the decrease in sales of smartphones to
India, Algeria and PRC amid the outbreak of the COVID-19.

Revenue from PCBAs decreased by 78.1% to RMB103.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 from RMB471.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019, primarily attributed to the
decrease in demand on PCBAs for mobile phones.

Revenue from 10T related products increased by 2.8 times
to RMB481.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
from RMB127.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2019,
primarily attributed to the increase in sales of () Ali-POS (point of
sales) devices supported with facial recognition feature (face ID);
and (i) smart locks.

FHOKEREE T —NF+_A=+—
HIEFENAR®2410.6 5 & TE 4 38.5%
EHE_ZE_ZEFF+_A=+—HLEE
MARB14834FE T T ER2HREE
COVID-19 & 15 BB ENE ~ P /R K 7 28 K2 A [
HIES BE FHESH & T PEPTER ©

R ERREENREHREE_T—NLF
T A=Z+—BLEFEMNARKEITIOEE T
B T81% EHE_ZE_TEF+ A =+—H
FTFENARBI35EE T TE2ANTF
T 5 BRI B BE AR 48 2 0 35 SO D BT R ©

MR ERERNREREE S —NF
T+ A=Z+—BLEFENARKEI12T7TEET
gmosEeHEz—_E_EF+-_A=1+—H
FFEMAREABI0BE T TERZHR)
B A Bl Th 88 O B] B2 35 & 4R 3% (POS) + & (i)
BEe MM S EIL INFTEL
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

Revenue by geographical regions BRI E 2 D e

The Group’s products are sold worldwide with strategic focus AEBEAEHERAEEER  THALDRZ A
on emerging markets which have high population and growing ~ FHERTNEE RN EMISEAKKED -
demands on mobile phones. Set out below is a breakdown of the T RIHHE T -_TFR_T—NLF+=
Group’s total revenue by geographical region and the revenue A =+—BLFEEZHMEE HSNBERZRE
generated from each region as a percentage of total revenue for i@ E £ MW EAEBBWENE D
the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEFE

2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF

% of total % of total
RMB’000 revenue RMB’000 revenue
ARBTT hBKWEN% ARETT HRAKEIN%

Emerging Asia 25 MM 37 8 B =}
India ENE 1,011,279 46.3 1,392,492 44.7
Pakistan B EHTE 56,749 2.6 67,889 2.2
Bangladesh N EY 170,764 7.8 111,789 3.6
The PRC es 919,927 42.2 1,167,572 37.4
Sub-total: NEE 2,158,719 98.9 2,739,742 87.9

Other regions Hitih &

Algeria o B8 N2 F1J B 22,935 1.0 275,305 8.8
Others Him 384 0.1 102,601 3.3
Sub-total: INET 23,319 1.1 377,906 12.1
Total A& 2,182,038 100.0 3,117,648 100.0

1 2 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2020



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEETNWR D

Revenue from India decreased by 27.4% to RMB1,011.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 from RMB1,392.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 as the outbreak of
COVID-19 caused delays in the Group’s production schedules
and delivery of products to customers. Revenue from India in the
second half of 2020 significantly improved as compared with the
first half of 2020.

Revenue from Bangladesh increased by 52.8% to RMB170.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from RMB111.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2019, primarily attributed
to increase in demand for smartphones.

Revenue from the PRC decreased by 21.2% to RMB919.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from RMB1,167.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2019, primarily attributed
to decrease in sales of mobile phones, but partially offset by the
increase in sales of loT-related products.

Revenue from Algeria decreased by 91.7% to RMB22.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 from RMB275.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019, primarily attributed to the
decrease in purchase orders for smartphones from one of the
Group’s major customers.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit decreased by 14.9% to RMB193.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 from RMB227.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019, primarily due to the decreased
sales of mobile phones. Gross profit margin improved to 8.9%
for the year ended 31 December 2020 from 7.3% for the year
ended 31 December 2019. The increase in gross profit margin
was primarily attributed to the increase in proportion of sales of
loT related products which had a higher gross profit margin than
other products.

REHMEMEkzEZmEBEE-_ZE—hLF+=A
Z+—BLEFEMNMARK1,39258 & TH
VoOTANREBE T -_ZEF+_-_A=+—H
IFEENARE10M3BET 2N B
COVID- 19K BB HAEBRAERBRREAE
PFRNERERABE - —E_ZFTF THEFR
BHNENRESE T -_FF F¥FHEERS -

RERZMNBNKEZHEZE =S —NLF+=
A=+—BLFEMARK111.8EEITLIEM
528% EHE_E_TF+_A=+—HILF
EMARKI708EE L T E2HN TR
R T SR ANFTEKL -

REFENKEZREBEE T —NLF+=A
=S r— Elﬁifﬁ’ME%ﬂ@?@E%me
1 2% EHE_E_EF+_A=+—HItF
EMARKOIOOAEE L TE2HRNFHE
ERETEE oY ARBEERD
SHEE AN Y o

RKEMBREFEAREZHEEE S —LLF
+TZA=+t—HIEFENMARK2IT53HETT
WL TR EHE—_E-_EF+_A=+—H

IFEENARK22088 T TERANK
SEETF-—RTETFPMNERFHITERD
PEL o

%%U&%%U"’f‘

EMNHEBE T NAFT_A=1t—HLF

EE@AEM%?QE%TE/&}\MQ%i@i
T EF+ A+ HBUEFEMARE
198488 TERARFHRIBERD AT
B EMERBE_SE—NE+_A=+—
ALEFEMTIREEHE S _ZF+ A
=+ HIFEEN8I% EFRENTEL
HARREMERBRSEF XY EHEA
MR SH & L B hnFT Bk o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

Other gains and income

Other gains and income mainly include comprises government
subsidies and amortisation of government subsidies, net
exchange gain, reversal of provision for social insurance, gain
arising from change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss, bank interest income and sundry income.
The Group’s other gains and income slightly decreased to
RMB59.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
RMB59.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Selling expenses

Selling expenses mainly represent transportation and custom
declaration expenses, salaries and employee benefits of our sales
and marketing staff, business-related travelling and entertainment
expenses. Selling expenses for the year ended 31 December
2020 decreased by 8.9% to RMB38.1 million from RMB41.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 because the higher
proportion of sales to the PRC for the year ended 31 December
2020 reduced the transportation and custom declaration
expenses incurred by the Group.

Administrative and other expenses

Administrative and other expenses mainly represent salaries
and benefits of our administrative and management staff,
depreciation, amortisation of intangible assets, general office
expenses, legal and professional fees, rental expenses, insurance
expenses, bank charges, exchange losses, listing expenses and
other miscellaneous administrative expenses. Administrative
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2020 decreased
by 18.1% to RMB62.4 million from RMB76.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019. The significant decrease in
administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2020
was primarily attributed to the recognition of a one-off listing
expenses of RMB18.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEETNWR D

Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses for the year ended 31
December 2020 were maintained stable at RMB112.8 million
as compared with RMB111.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Finance costs

Finance costs mainly represent interests on discounted
bills, interest portion of lease liabilities, bank borrowings and
factoring loans. The Group’s finance costs for the year ended 31
December 2020 decreased by 54.2% to RMB5.5 million from
RMB12.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 as the
Group recorded a decrease in finance costs on discounted bills
financing and factoring loans resulting from the decrease in sales
to countries outside the PRC.

Income tax expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s income
tax expenses amounted to RMB3.0 million as compared with
RMB6.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
decrease in income tax expenses was primarily attributed to the
decrease in assessable profits for the year ended 31 December
2020. The Group’s effective income tax rate for the year ended
31 December 2020 decreased to 8.8% from 15.0% for the year
ended 31 December 2019 as the Group had a one-off listing
expenses of RMB18.1 million that were non-deductible for tax
purpose.

Net profit

As a result of the above factors, the Group’s net profit for
the year ended 31 December 2020 was RMB 30.7 million,
representing a decrease of 18.8% as compared with the year
ended 31 December 2019. Net profit margin for the year ended
31 December 2020 slightly increased to 1.4% from 1.2% for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Dividend
The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

Trade and bills receivables

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s trade and bills receivables
amounted to RMB339.2 million (31 December 2019: RMB622.2
million). The Group generally grants credit period ranging from
30 to 90 days to its customers and allows its PRC customers to
settle their purchases by way of bills with maturity period ranging
from three to six months.

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group carefully assesses the
background information and credit worthiness of its customers
before it decides to grant them credit periods. Further, the Group
also closely monitors the payment record of its customers and
regularly reviews the credit terms granted to them. The Group’s
credit assessment is based on various factors, including but not
limited to the financial strength, size of the business and payment
history of customers and length of their business relationship with
the Group.

The Group’s average trade and bills receivables turnover days for
the year ended 31 December 2020 were 80.4 days (2019: 60.8
days), which were within the range of credit periods normally
offered by the Group to its customers. The decrease in the
Group’s trade and bills receivables as at 31 December 2020 and
the lengthened average trade and bills receivables turnover days
for the respective year were primarily attributed to the decreased
sales for the year ended 31 December 2020. Based on the dates
of the relevant sales invoices, 5.5% of the Group’s trade and bills
receivables aged within 90 days and the Group did not notice
any substantial long outstanding balances.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEETNWR D

Trade and bills payables

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s trade and bills payables
amounted to RMB592.0 million (31 December 2019: RMB876.7
million). Suppliers generally grant the Group credit period ranging
from 30 to 60 days, with certain suppliers require the Group
to make advance payment before product delivery. The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that
all payables are settled within the credit timeframe. Certain
suppliers allow the Group to settle its purchases by way of bank
acceptance bills and the Group may also endorse certain bills
receivables to its suppliers in order to settle the trade payable
due to them.

The Group’s average trade and bills payables turnover days for
the year ended 31 December 2020 were 134.8 days (2019: 96.2
days). The decrease in the Group’s trade and bills payables as at
31 December 2020 and the lengthened average trade and bills
payables turnover days for the respective year were primarily
attributed to the decreased purchases for the year ended 31
December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

Capital structure, liquidity, financial
resources and gearing

The Company’s shares were successfully listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange on 13 November 2019 (the “Listing
Date”). There has been no change in the capital structure of
the Group since then. The Group mainly funds its business and
working capital requirements by using a balanced mix of internal
resources, borrowings and funds from the global offering.

The funding mix will be adjusted depending on the costs of
funding and the actual needs of the Group. For the year ended
31 December 2020, the Group recorded a positive operating
cash flow before working capital changes of RMB25.6 million
(Year ended 31 December 2019: RMB36.2 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had net current assets
of RMB232.1 million (31 December 2019: RMB211.4 million),
cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB26.3 million (31
December 2019: RMB126.7 million), pledged bank deposits of
RMB251.1 million (31 December 2019: RMB81.2 million) and
borrowings amounted to RMB53.5 million (31 December 2019:
RMB206.3 million). The Group’s cash and cash equivalents
and bank borrowings as at 31 December 2020 were mainly
denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had borrowings of RMB31.4
million (31 December 2019: RMB181.1 million) subject to fixed
interest rates and borrowings of RMB22.1 million (31 December
2019: RMB25.2 million) subject to variable interest rates. As at
31 December 2020, the Group had a current ratio of 1.3 times (31
December 2019: 1.2 times) and gearing ratio of 0.2 (calculated
by dividing total debt by total equity) (31 December 2019: 0.7).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s unutilised borrowing
facilities amounted to RMB148.7 million. As at 31 December
2019, the Group’s borrowing facilities were fully utilised.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEETNWR D

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have capital
commitments in relation to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment (31 December 2019: nil).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities or guarantees (31 December 2019: nil).

Pledge of assets and restricted deposit

As at 31 December 2020, the Group pledged trade and
bills receivables with carrying amount of RMB9.7 million (31
December 2019: RMB30 million), bank deposits with carrying
amount of RMB251.1 million (31 December 2019: RMB81.2
million) and land and building with carrying amount of RMB56.8
million (31 December 2019: RMB59.9 million) to secure its
borrowings and banking facilities.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“financial assets at FVTPL”)
amounted to nil (31 December 2019: RMB285.7 million). The
Group’s financial assets at FVTPL as at 31 December 2019
have been pledged to certain banks for the issuance of bank
acceptance bills to the Group’s suppliers for the settlement of
purchases of raw materials and components.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had restricted deposit
of RMB16.2 million (31 December 2019: nil), representing
bank balances frozen by banks that had received notice from
court with regard to the litigation claim detailed in note 41 of
consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

Material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

Significant investments held by the Group

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group invested
some of its funds in the structured deposits of PRC licensed
commercial banks, which were principal guaranteed and
carried interest at a variable rate per annum with reference to
the performance of foreign currency or interest rate during the
investment period. These structured deposits were classified as
financial assets at FVTPL in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s financial
assets at FVTPL amounted to nil as they have been fully
redeemed upon maturity (31 December 2019: RMB285.7 million).
The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL as at 31 December
2019 represented 17.6% of the Group’s total assets, and they
have been pledged to certain banks for the issuance of bank
acceptance bills to the Group’s suppliers for the settlement of
purchases of raw materials and components. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, the realised gain arising from change
in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL amounted to RMB7.3
million (2019: RMB10.1 million) and no interest income and
dividend (2019: nil) were derived from these financial assets.

The following sets forth the fair value of the Group’s financial
assets at FVTPL by the respective issuing bank as at 31
December 2020 and 2019:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEETNWR D

The Group adopts prudent and pragmatic investment strategies.
The Group purchases principal guaranteed financial assets at
FVTPL from sizable PRC licensed commercial banks with good
credit ratings. Further, the Group has implemented the following
internal controls to minimise the potential risks for investing in
financial assets:

all the existing financial assets shall be closely monitored by
the Group’s finance controller;

no new investments can be made unless it is principal
guaranteed;

all investments shall be assessed by the Group’s
finance controller after taking into account the maturity
term, expected rate of return and features of proposed
investments and analysis on impact on working capital and
cashflow, identification of any legal risks from reviewing the
terms with the assistance of any external legal advisers as
the Group’s finance controller considers appropriate;

the Group’s finance controller shall prepare an assessment
report stating the factors considered as stated above to be
submitted to the Group’s chief executive officer for approval
shall he considers appropriate; and

single investment with principal amount exceeding RMB50
million or any new investments which would result in the
outstanding principal sum of the financial assets exceeding
RMB100 million which are endorsed by the Group’s chief
executive officer shall be further approved by the audit
committee who would re-assess the risks involved.

Saved as disclosed herein, the Group did not make any other
significant investments during the year ended 31 December
2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

Future plans for material investments and
capital assets

The Group set out its future plans in its prospectus dated 30
October 2019 (the “Prospectus”). As part of its future plans,
the Group will acquire new SMT lines to expand its SMT
production capacity. The Group will also devote more resources
into research and development to enrich its product offering on
both mobile phone related products and IoT related products.
These future plans will be funded by a balanced mix of internal
resources, borrowings and proceeds from the global offering. To
further enhance the value the Group and its shareholders, the
Group will also consider potential investment opportunities when
they arise.

On 26 November 2020, Sprocomm Intelligence Limited
(“Sprocomm Intelligence”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into an investment agreement with the
Management Committee of New Lingang Area of PRC (Shanghai)
Pilot Free Trade Zone* (F Bl (£/8) BEHE S A BEERBH
FEE&EIEZE ) (the “Lingang Committee”), pursuant to
which, among others, (i) Sprocomm Intelligence agreed to set
up a smart device R&D headquarters at New Lingang Area with
an investment of fixed assets of not less than RMB120 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$142 million); and (i) Lingang
Committee agreed to provide various kinds of support and
subsidy to Sprocomm Intelligence. As at 31 December 2020,
the aforesaid investment was still in a preliminary planning stage.
For the investment amount and schedule and other details
of this investment agreement, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 26 November 2020.

* For identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEETNWR D

Foreign exchange risks

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group derived
57.8% (2019: 55.5%) of its total revenue from export sales
and these export sales were principally denominated in USD.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had USD-denominated
monetary assets with carrying amount of RMB201.4 million (31
December 2019: RMB269.4 million) and USD-denominated
monetary liabilities of RMB19.1 million (31 December 2019:
RMB188.0 million). The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from its export sales, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies. Any appreciation of RMB
against USD will have a negative impact on the Group’s profit
margin. Management of the Group regularly reviews the impact
of exchange risk exposure on the Group’s financial performance
and may use foreign exchange hedging instruments to reduce
the Group’s exchange risk exposure if appropriate.

Employees, remuneration policy and
training

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 1,836 employees (31
December 2019: 1,400 employees), whose remunerations and
benefits are determined based on market rates, government
policies and individual performance. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group’s total staff costs amounted to
RMB143.9 million (2019: RMB145.2 million). The Group provides
comprehensive training and development opportunities to
its employees on a regular basis. The trainings are arranged
according to needs of employees, which are identified annually
by individual departments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

Use of proceeds from initial public offering

Shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 13 November 2019. The net proceeds
from the initial public offering (the “IPO”), net of underwriting
commissions and other relevant expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$84.4 million. The Group will apply such
proceeds in accordance with the section headed “Future plans
and use of proceeds” set out in the Prospectus.

The use of the net proceeds from the Listing Date up to 31
December 2020 had been applied as follows:
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Utilised net Unutilised net
proceeds from proceeds from
IPO as at IPO as at
Planned use of 31 December 31 December Expected timeline
net proceeds 2020 2020 for unutilised net
(approximately) (approximately) (approximately) proceeds from IPO
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STEIERRE AHABEMS NHABEMS
MIERHE MIEERE MEFHE BDAEBAAHRBRERDAH
(##4) (##) () FEREFENELRE
Enhance SMT HK$38.8 million ~ HK$33.8 million HK$5.0 million By 31 December 2021
production capacity
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Utilised net Unutilised net
proceeds from proceeds from
IPO as at IPO as at
Planned use of 31 December 31 December Expected timeline
net proceeds 2020 2020 for unutilised net
(approximately) (approximately) (approximately) proceeds from IPO
BE-T-FF BE-FT-FF
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EBAZER REBAZER
SEERRE PRABEMS NERBEMSB
MIEEE MIEEE MEFHE BABXRLHBREXRBA
(BE49) € %)) (#4) FEREFENERERE
Enhance research HK$14.2 million HK$9.5 million HK$4.7 million By 31 December 2021
and development
capabilities
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Enhance sales and HK$8.6 million HK$6.6 million HK$2.0 million By 31 December 2021
marketing force to
diversify customer
base
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEER RO

Planned use of
net proceeds

(approximately)

Utilised net
proceeds from
IPO as at

31 December
2020

(approximately)

Unutilised net
proceeds from
IPO as at

31 December
2020

(approximately)

Expected timeline
for unutilised net
proceeds from IPO

BE-F-%F BHE-ZT-FF
+=Z—A=+—H +=ZA=+—H
EBAZER KEBAZER
STEIEARS PRABEMS NERBEMSB
MIEEE MIEEE MEFHE BABXRLHBREXRBA
(BE49) € %)) (BHK) FEFIEFENEDRRS
Upgrade enterprise HK$5.7 million HK$3.2 million HK$2.5 million By 30 June 2021
planning resource
system
HFREEFEEIRR 57TEEATT 32EEATT 25EEBBTT —E-_—F,A=+HH
#r
Repayment of bank HK$8.8 million HK$6.6 million HK$2.2 million By 30 June 2021
loans
EERRITER 8.8EEAT 6.6 EEAT 22EEBT —E-—F,A=1+HH
General working HK$8.3 million HK$8.3 million - NA
capital
—REEES 83BEET 83B&EETT - TEA
Total HK$84.4 million HK$68.0 million HK$16.4 million
T 84.4EHEBAET 68.0EEET 164EHEBETT
Event after the reporting period WEREREE

Saved as disclosed herein, the Group does not have any
important events after the year ended 31 December 2020 and up

to the date of this annual report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEASRHN

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Chengjun (Z & &), aged 48, is an executive Director,
the chief executive officer and the chairman of the Board
and is mainly responsible for corporate strategic planning,
overseeing the overall operations, day-to-day management
and business development of the Group. Mr. Li established
Shenzhen Sprocomm Telecommunication Technology Co.,
Ltd.* ORYIK E B =B A R A 7)) (“Shenzhen Sprocomm”),
the main operating subsidiary of the Group, with Mr. Xiong
Bin on 16 September 2009. He is also currently the director
of the Company’s subsidiaries, namely Shenzhen Sprocomm,
Sprocomm Intelligence (HK) Holdings Limited (7 & & g2 I8 B
[ A A]), Sprocomm Technologies Co., Ltd. (REB{ERIF AR
‘A A]), Guizhou Sprocomm Telecommunication Technology Co.,
Ltd.* (BN K E @R AR A A]), Chengdu Sprocomm Cloud
Technology Co., Ltd.* (A # K & E & £ F R 2 &), Guizhou
Mars Exploration Technology Co., Ltd.* (B M A EHFZRI A
& 2 &), Grace Kirin Limited (1% % A& R 2 8]) and Sprocomm
Intelligence Technology Limited (& & & 8E EHE AR A F)). Mr. Li
is a director of Leap Elite Limited, a controlling Shareholder of the
Company.

Mr. Li has more than 20 years of relevant experience in the
mobile communications industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Li held a senior management position in the wireless network
department and terminal department of Shenzhen Huawei
Technologies Co., Ltd* (& JI1ZE & £ 1lf B R 2 &), a company
principally engaged in the telecommunication equipment
business from April 1997 to February 2007, where he was mainly
responsible for the research and development of communication
terminal and sales and marketing. From August 2007 to June
2009, Mr. Li served as the chief executive officer of the business
operation headquarters of SIM Technology Group Limited (& &l
B EEABR A A)) (stock code of Stock Exchange: 02000) (“SIM
Technology”), a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange and is principally engaged in the manufacturing, design
and development and sale of liquid crystal display modules,
mobile handset solutions, and wireless communication module
solutions, where he was mainly responsible for overseeing its
PRC operation and management.

Mr. Li graduated from Beihang University (1t & fi 2= it & X
E) in July 1994 with a bachelor degree majoring in electrical
technology, and then, graduated with a master degree of
engineering in March 1997.

* For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEASEHN

Mr. XIONG Bin (8& #2), aged 43, is an executive Director
and vice chairman of the Board and is mainly responsible for
overseeing the sales and marketing of the Group. Mr. Xiong is
one of the founders of Shenzhen Sprocomm on 16 September
2009. He is also currently the director and vice general manager
of Shenzhen Sprocomm and the supervisor of Shanghai
Sprocomm Telecommunication Technology Co., Ltd.* (_£ /& &
i@ ERE AR 2 a), Guizhou Sprocomm Telecommunication
Technology Co., Ltd.* (B K & BE B AR 2 7)), Guizhou
Mars Exploration Technology Co., Ltd.* (EM X EHFZRIE A
[& 2 A1) and Luzhou Sipukang Technology Co., Ltd.* (J& N & &
BRI AR A A]). Mr. Xiong is a director of Beyond Innovation
Limited, a controlling Shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Xiong has over 15 years of relevant experience in the mobile
communications industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xiong
served in Amoi Electronics Co., Ltd. (E#TE T H AR 2 7))
(“Amoi Electronics”) from July 1999 to May 2008, where he
first served as the vice general manager of finance department
responsible for handling the export business and finance work of
the overseas subsidiaries and later as the vice general manager
of the overseas sales department responsible for overseas sales
of smartphone products. Amoi Electronics is principally engaged
in research, manufacturing and sales of smartphone and other
electronic products. From May 2008 to August 2009, Mr. Xiong
served as the general manager of the overseas sales department
of SIM Technology, where he was mainly responsible for
marketing and sales of the overseas smartphone ODM business.

Mr. Xiong graduated from Huazhong University of Science
and Technology (ZE A 22 T KX £) in June 1999 and obtained a
bachelor degree of economics majoring in taxation. Mr. Xiong
also obtained the qualification of Certified Public Accountant
(non-practising) in the PRC in December 2004.

*  For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEASEHN

Mr. LI Hongxing (Z 4L £), aged 41, is an executive Director
and is mainly responsible for overseeing the research and
development of the Group’s products. He is also currently the vice
president, the director of the product research and development
department and the director of Shenzhen Sprocomm and the
director of Shanghai Sprocomm Telecommunication Technology

Co., Ltd.* (BB REBRERRARAA).

Mr. Li Hongxing has over 10 years of relevant experience in the
mobile communications industry. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Li Hongxing served as a technician of Shanghai Hongyue
Communication Technology Company Limited* (= /& J5, # 3@
AT A R A A]) from July 2002 to October 2003, a company
principally engaged in research and development of digital radio
communication terminal equipment and transmission equipment,
where he was mainly responsible for research and development
of the communication products. From January 2006 to March
2007, Mr. Li Hongxing served as the research and development
manager of Sailong Shenke Communication Technology
(Shanghai) Company Limited* (BEsE B RHBERIT(EE) BRA
A]), a company principally engaged in technology development
of communication products and system engineering, where
he was mainly responsible for research and development
of the electronic communication products. From November
2007 to June 2009, Mr. Li Hongxing had been a research and
development director of Jiandao Communication Products
Company Limited* (8 @15 = @ A R 2 Al), a company
principally engaged in manufacturing and sales of communication
equipment and the relevant products and the electronic products,
where he was mainly responsible for research and development
of the products. Mr. Li Hongxing served as the research and
development director of Shanghai Feiyang Electronic Technology
Company Limited* (E/8JE5 S F B AR A Al from July
2009 to November 2009, a company principally engaged in
manufacturing and sales of electronic products, where he was
mainly responsible for research and development of the products
and management of the research and development team.

Mr. Li Hongxing graduated from East China Normal University

(ZER AN K E2) in July 2002 and obtained a bachelor degree of
science majoring in electronics and information systems.

*  For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEASEHN

Mr. GUO Qinglin (28 B #k), aged 37, is an executive Director
and is mainly responsible for managing the operation of supply
chain and sales activities of the Group. He is also currently
the director of the supply chain operation centre of Shenzhen
Sprocomm.

Mr. Guo has approximately 13 years of relevant experience in
the mobile communications industry. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Guo served as a manager in the overseas sales department
of Amoi Electronics from September 2005 to December 2008,
where he was mainly responsible for developing overseas
customers, maintaining the customer relationship and sales of
the company’s main products. From April 2009 to December
2009, Mr. Guo served as sales director in the overseas sales
department of Nanjing Wanlida Technology Co., Ltd.* (F ¥&
EFERIF AR A A, a company principally engaged in the
production of computers, mobile phones and projectors, where
he was mainly responsible for developing overseas customers,
maintaining the customer relationship and sales of the company’s
main products.

Mr. Guo graduated from Jimei University* (52 3 KX £2) in July
2005 and obtained a bachelor degree of economics majoring in
international economy and trading.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Wai Man JP (A R), aged 52, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 18 October 2019. Mr.
Hung is the Principal Liaison Officer for Hong Kong, Shenzhen
Qianhai Authority, Executive Chairman of Chinese Big Data
Society, and Adjunct Professor of the Belt and Road Research
Institute of Hainan University.

Mr. Hung is a seasoned ICT professional and angel investor. He
has worked in the computer industry for almost 30 years. A well-
known figure in the industry, Mr. Hung has extensive experience
in management consulting, project management and outsourcing
services. Mr. Hung is a Chartered Information Technology
Professional and a fellow of the British Computer Society, the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors, the Hong Kong Computer
Society and the Internet Professional Association. He has been
appointed as the Global Council by the World Summit Awards.

*  For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEASEHN

Mr. Hung is currently the Member of the Shenzhen Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, Member of the
Chinese Association of Hong Kong and Macau Studies, Vice
President of Guangdong’s Association For Promotion of
Cooperation between Guangdong, Hong Kong and Macao,
Commissioner of Hong Kong Road Safety Patrol, Chairman
Emeritus of the Y.Elites Association, President Emeritus of
Internet Professional Association, Vice Chairman of the Monte
Jade Science and Technology Association of Hong Kong,
Secretary General of Hong Kong—ASEAN Economic Cooperation
Foundation and Council Member of Hong Kong Professionals
and Senior Executives Association etc. In 2012 to 2014, he had
served as an associate member of the Central Policy Unit of the
HKSAR Government. In 2008, Mr. Hung was selected as one
of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons of Hong Kong. He was
the 11th Standing Member of the All China Youth Federation. In
2015, he was appointed as a Justice of the Peace by the Hong
Kong SAR Government. In 2016, he was given the Asia Social
Innovation Leadership Award by CMO Asia. Mr. Hung graduated
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Higher Diploma
in Mathematics, Statistics and Computing. He then obtained
a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Business Administration (Hons)
from the University of Bolton, MBA from the University of Hull
and a Master Degree of Business Administration in Public and
Comparative History from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
He also obtained a LLM from the Renmin University of China and
PhD in Business Administration from Bulacan State University,
the Philippines and is currently pursuing his LLD study with the
Renmin University of China.

Mr. Hung is currently an independent non-executive director of
LH Group Limited (stock code: 01978), Sino Hotels (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 01221) and VSTECS Holdings Limited
(stock code: 00856), the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange. He was formerly an independent non-executive
director of Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
00404), the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEASEHN

Mr. WONG Kwan Kit (ZERZ), aged 48, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 October 2019.

Mr. Wong has over 19 years of experience in accounting and
financial management, mergers and acquisitions gained from
certain finance related positions of companies listed in Hong
Kong. Mr. Wong is currently an independent non-executive
director of Man Sang International Limited (stock code: 00938)
and Culturecom Holdings Limited (stock code: 00343), both of
companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong holds
a Master of Business Administration degree from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. LU Brian Yong Chen (& ’k 2§), aged 56, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 18 October 2019.
Mr. Lu has been serving as an independent non-executive
Director of InvesTech Holdings Limited (stock code: 1087), a
company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange and
is principally engaged in designs, development and provision
of communication system and manufacture and sale of signal
transmission and connectivity products since June 2015.

Mr. Lu has over 22 years of management experience in Fortune
100 companies in Australia, Hong Kong and the PRC, assisting
in their business transformation and growth. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Lu served as a manager, design/architecture
of IBM Australia Limited, a company principally engaged in
manufacturing and selling computer hardware and software and
providing relevant services from May 1995 to April 2001, where
he was responsible for managing network architecture. From
April 2001 to June 2012, Mr. Lu then served as a client unit
executive in the IBM global technology services department of
IBM China/Hong Kong Limited, a company principally engaged
in manufacturing and selling computer hardware and software
and providing relevant services, where he was responsible for the
department’s strategic planning and execution.

Mr. Lu was an industry consultant of IBM (China) Company
Limited, a company principally engaged in manufacturing and
selling computer hardware and software and providing relevant
services from June 2012 to June 2015.
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EERSREEASEHN

Mr. Lu graduated from South China University of Technology
(ZEmIE T K2) with a bachelor degree majoring in engineering
in Computer Science in July 1986 and from the University of
New South Wales, Australia with a master degree of information
science in October 1994.

Ms. TSENG Chin | (G & ), aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 October 2019.

Ms. Tseng is a media veteran with over 25 years of experience
in Hong Kong, including hosting, presenting and moderating
television programmes and forums in relation to the PRC and
international economy and finance. Ms. Tseng has been serving
as a presenter in Phoenix Satellite Television Company Limited (&l
BEER AR A a]), which is an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of Phoenix Satellite Television Holdings Limited (currently
known as Phoenix Media Investment (Holdings) Limited (stock
code: 2008), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, where she is responsible for hosting and presenting
television programmes and broadcasts relating to the PRC and
international economy and finance. She has also been a standing
committee member of feng Finance Institute (/8| /L 439 81 £ 3 5T
B ), a non-profit making research institute focusing on providing
financial information via expert interview, conference reports,
research reports, financial and wealth management forums since
November 2016. She has been a life associate member of the
Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director Association
since January 2017.

Ms. Tseng graduated from Fu Jen Catholic University (X = %%
H{Z K2 formerly known asF37 # 1= K 2) with a bachelor
degree of arts majoring in mass communication in June 1991.
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Senior Management

Mr. LIU Shangheng (%2l 4 1), aged 37, has been serving as
the financial controller of Shenzhen Sprocomm since December
2011.

Mr. Liu has over 10 years of experience in financial work and
management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liu held office
relating to cost accounting in Qingdao Haixin Communication
Technology Company Limited* (& &8 R{EXMAER A
A]), a company principally engaged in research, development,
manufacturing and sales of mobile communication terminal
products from August 2006 to October 2008, where he was
mainly responsible for production cost accounting, cost analysis
and control related work. Mr. Liu then served as a director
of finance in Shenzhen Xiongtao Power Supply Technology
Company Limited* (RN HEEREEBRHBRQF), a
company principally engaged in research, manufacturing and
sales of battery from November 2008 to October 2011, where
he was mainly responsible for cost accounting and preparing the
financial statements and analysis.

Mr. Liu graduated from the Zhongnan University of Economics
and Law (77 B BF &8 A K22 in June 2006 and obtained two
bachelor degrees majoring in accounting and economics.

Mr. WEN Chuanchuan (& JI JI), aged 35, vice president and
general manager of the Group’s production centre, is currently
responsible for managing and supervising the operation of the
Group’s production centre.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Wen worked as an assistant
engineer of Huawei Machine Company Limited* (£ A # 22 B R
‘A |]), a company principally engaged in research, development,
manufacturing and sales of communication products from July
2011 to October 2014, where he was mainly responsible for
reviewing the manufacturing plan and leading trial verification
for new smartphone products. Mr. Wen served as a director
of the assembly plant of Shenzhen Andao Yunke Company
Limited* (& Il &2 & E R 15 B BR 2 7)), a company principally
engaged in development and manufacturing of smart terminals,
capacitive touch screens, machine assembly, metal and glass
components and mobile phone accessories from November
2014 to September 2016, where he was responsible for the
establishment of machine assembly department and assisting in
the operation of the company’s departments and subsidiaries.

Mr. Wen graduated from the Northwest A&F University (78
it 2 ¥ FL 2 K &) with a bachelor degree of management
majoring in electronic commerce in the PRC in July 2008, and
also, graduated from the Xi‘an Jiaotong University* (78 % 32 18
KEBZFIEET) in June 2011 and obtained a master degree of
engineering majoring in industrial engineering.

*  For identification purpose only
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The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures with a view
to being a transparent and responsible organisation which is
open and accountable to the shareholders of the Company. The
Board strives to adhere to the principles of corporate governance
and has adopted sound corporate governance practices to
meet the legal and commercial standards, focusing on areas
such as internal control, fair disclosure and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company to ensure the transparency and
accountability of all operations of the Company. The Company
believes that effective corporate governance is an essential
factor to create more value for the shareholders of the Company.
The Board will continue to review and improve the corporate
governance practices of the Group from time to time to ensure
that the Group is led by an effective Board in order to optimise
return.

Adoption and compliance of corporate
governance practices

The Company has adopted a set of corporate governance
practices which aligns with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
of The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) since the Listing Date. Except
for code provision A.2.1, the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the CG Code for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code states that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Under the current
organisation structure of the Company, Mr. Li Chengjun is the
Group’s chief executive officer, and he also performs as the
chairman of the Board as he has considerable experience in
the mobile communication industry. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both the chairman of our Board and the chief
executive officer in the same person has the benefit of ensuring
consistent leadership within the Group and enables more
effective and efficient overall strategic planning of the Group.
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Although Mr. Li Chengjun performs both the roles of chairman
of the board and chief executive officer, the division of
responsibilities between the chairman of the board and chief
executive officer is clearly established. In general, the chairman
of the board is responsible for supervising the functions and
performance of the Board, while the chief executive officer is
responsible for the management of the Group’s businesses. The
two roles are performed by Mr. Li Chengjun distinctly. Further,
the current structure does not impair the balance of power and
authority between the Board and management of the Company
given the appropriate delegation of the power of the Board
and the effective functions of the independent non-executive
Directors.

Model code for securities transactions
by directors of listed issuers (the “Model
Code”)

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. All Directors have confirmed
that, following specific enquiry by the Company, they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
for the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
annual report.

Chairman and chief executive officer

CG Code provisions A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The Company does not
segregate the roles of chairman and chief executive officer and
Mr. Li Chengjun currently holds both of the chairman and chief
executive officer positions, as explained in the paragraph headed
“Adoption and compliance of corporate governance practices”
above in this Corporate Governance Report.
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Independent non-executive directors

The independent non-executive Directors are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience
in the fields of accounting, finance, business and corporate
governance. Their skills, expertise and number in the Board
ensure that strong independent views and judgement are
brought in the Board’s deliberations and that such views and
judgement carry weight in the Board’s decision-making process.
Their presence and participation also enable the Board to
maintain high standards of compliance in financial and other
mandatory reporting requirements, and provide adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of the Company and its
shareholders. The Company annually assesses the independence
of each independent non- executive Director during their terms
of appointment. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors a written confirmation of their independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all
the independent non-executive Directors are independent from 1
January 2020 to the date of this report.

BYFHITES
BIYFATESHRES @t XKD
XERRHTEARBREZEXNBENERO
A ERAL - BF 2R EXRABER
EZEMABRRAEZTEERTRENL
BUBH LG BERBHNHGEES
EHRRERETABEEN -RENEFER
SENTEEESRERBRETY B REM
BEMERE - WIRERHENGE  REX
AR REBRRONE - ARAREFREEL
#mﬁ§$mﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁj%¢ﬁﬁﬁ
BE ZHE+_A=+—BLEFE K2R
ﬂE@%tmﬁ%%&mMﬁ%% FEHTT
%%%%ﬁ@EﬁIHZ%E%%O$@E
R R-_F_TFE-A-REEAREEH
Wﬁﬁi#ﬂﬁi%ﬁ%%ﬁAi°

—ZT—T4EEH Sprocomm Intelligence Limited 3/



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERHRE

The Board

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors. The Board’s composition
as at 31 December 2020 is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Exg

EECH AN T EE NUEZ B IEHTT
EFHAK R-_ZTE_EF+-_A=+—H0H &

EENERENNAT

HITES

Date of joining

Name Age Gender the Group Roles and responsibilities
HE FiR 4 Bl AL B B H BERBE
Mr. Li Chengjun 48 Male 16 September 2009 Corporate strategic planning, overseeing
THRELE £ ZETEAFNATRA the overall operations, day-to-day
management and business development
of the Group
REENARIRKHRE  BEEEES
B ARBEEREBER
Mr. Xiong Bin 43 Male 16 September 2009 Overseeing the sales and marketing of
AR SR A £ ZEEAFNATRA the Group
EEAEEMNHE RNTISHER
Mr. Li Hongxing 41 Male 24 November 2009 Overseeing the research and
TUERE Es —EEAFE+—A=-+PWMHE development of the Group’s products
BE B AN B A qn O A B
Mr. Guo Qinglin 37 Male 18 January 2010 Managing the operation of supply chain
LEMIT A = —2—-=2F—A+NH and sales activities of the Group
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Date of joining

BAFHTES

Name Age Gender the Group Roles and responsibilities

#®E Fir 4 5l MAREBH B BERBE

Mr. Hung Wai Man 52 Male 18 October 2019 Supervising and providing independent

HAEREE £ —ZE—nF+A+/\H  judgement to the Board
EERAREEGIRMIE A

Mr. Wong Kwan Kit 48 Male 18 October 2019 Supervising and providing independent

BEERNEE B —ZE-NAF+A+AH judgement to the Board
EELRERGIRMIB L HIE

Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen 56 Male 18 October 2019 Supervising and providing independent

BKERE A 3 —ZT—AF+A+/\H judgement to the Board
EERREFGRMIBE T HIE

Ms. Tseng Chin | 52 Female 18 October 2019 Supervising and providing independent

R AT Z ZZ—nF+A+/\B  judgement to the Board

For the biographical details of and relationships among the
members of the Board, please refer to the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this
annual report.

The Directors believe that the composition of the Board reflects
the necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business development of the Group and for
effective leadership as the executive Directors possess extensive
experience in managing the Group’s business operations; and
professional knowledge in the telecommunication and internet
industry, while the four independent non-executive Directors
possess professional knowledge and broad experience in
accounting, finance, business and corporate governance. The
Directors are of the opinion that the current Board structure
can ensure the independence and objectivity of the Board and
provide a system of checks and balances to safeguard the
interests of the Company and its shareholders.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company. It also oversees the Group’s business, strategic
decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board shall take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company and its shareholders.
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Appointment, re-election and removal of
directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing
on the Listing Date, until terminated by enter party giving not
less than three months’ notice in writing to the other. Each of
the independent non-executive Directors has entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on Listing Date, until terminated by either party
giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the other.

According to article 109(a) of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), at each annual general meeting one
third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation, provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. The
Company at the general meeting at which a Director retires may
fill the vacated office.

According to article 113 of the Articles, the Board shall have
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional
Director, provided that the number of Directors so appointed
shall not exceed the maximum number determined from time
to time by the shareholders in general meeting. Any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Any Director appointed under this article shall not be taken into
account in determining the Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation at an annual general meeting.

According to 109(a) of the Articles, Mr. Guo Qinglin, Mr. Wong
Kwan Kit and Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen will retire by rotation and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.
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Board diversity policy

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 12 November 2019, which sets out the
objective and approach to achieve and maintain diversity on
the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.
The Board Diversity Policy provides that the Company should
endeavor to ensure that the Board members have the appropriate
balance of skills, experience, and diversity of perspectives that
are required to support the execution of its business strategy.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against appropriate criteria and the
attributes that they will bring to the Board to complement and
enrich the competencies, experience and diversity of the Board.
Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, a number of factors will
be taken into account in determining the board composition to
achieve board diversity, including but not limited to professional
experience, skills, knowledge, age, gender, education, cultural
background and length of service.

The Nomination Committee reviews the Board Diversity Policy
from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness, such
as assessing annually on the board’s diversity profile and
gender balance. The Nomination Committee would discuss any
revisions to the Board Diversity Policy that may be required and
recommend any such revisions and the appointment of suitable
candidates to the Board for consideration and approval.
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Nomination policy

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the criteria, process and procedures for
the Nomination Committee to recommend suitable candidates for
directorship with a view to ensuring that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the Company’s business.

Selection criteria
The Nomination Committee will propose a candidate for
nomination or a Director for re-election based on the followings:

the Board Diversity Policy and the requirements under the
Listing Rules;

—  the expected contribution the candidate would add to the
Board and to ensure the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business;

—  the candidate or the re-elected Director is able to commit
and devote sufficient time and attention to the Company’s
affairs;

—  the level of independence from the Company, and potential
or actual conflicts of interest of the candidate or the re-
elected Director; and

—  other relevant factors considered by Nomination Committee
on a case-by-case basis.

The aforesaid factors are for reference only, and not meant to

be exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the
discretion to nominate any person as it considers appropriate.
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Nomination process

The Nomination Committee is responsible for ensuring that the
selection criteria are being applied consistently and fairly in the
nomination process and confirming the same to the Board when
making its recommendation on appointment.

A. Procedures for appointment of new Director
Subject to the provisions in the Articles, if the Board
recognises the need to appoint a new Director, the following
procedures should be adopted:

—  the Nomination Committee identifies candidates in
accordance with the selection criteria set out in the
Nomination Policy and with the assistance from the
Group’s human resources department and external
agencies (if necessary);

—  the Nomination Committee evaluates the candidates
and recommends to the Board the appointment of the
appropriate candidate for directorship; and

— the Board decides the appointment based upon the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee.

B. Procedures for re-election of Director at general
meeting
Procedures for re-election of Director at general meeting are
set out as follows:

— the Nomination Committee reviews the overall
contribution to the Company of the retiring Director;

- the Nomination Committee also reviews and
determines whether the retiring Director continues to
meet the selection criteria set out in the Nomination
Policy; and

—  the Nomination Committee shall recommend to the
Board which shall then make recommendation to
shareholders in respect of the proposed re-election of
Director at the general meeting.
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C. Procedures for nomination by shareholders
Procedures for nomination by shareholders are set out as
follows:

— the Company’s website sets out the procedures for
shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director; and

—  for any person that is nominated by a shareholder for
election as a Director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee shall evaluate
such candidate based on the selection criteria
set out in the Nomination Policy and to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship
and where appropriate, the Nomination Committee
shall recommend to the Board which shall then make
recommendation to shareholders in respect of the
proposed election of Director at the general meeting.

Monitoring and reporting

The Nomination Committee will report annually, in the Corporate
Governance section of the Company’s Annual Report, how
the Policy is being applied in recommending candidates for
directorship and retiring Directors for re-election during the year.

Review of the Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy
periodically in line with the Company’s strategy and recommend
any proposed changes to the Board for approval.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination
Committee conducted the followings:

—  reviewed and confirmed the structure, size and composition
of the Board and the split between number of executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors
remained appropriate for the Board to perform its duties;

—  reviewed and confirmed the Board has a diverse mix of
skills, knowledge, experience and gender;

—  reviewed the Board Diversity Policy; and

- formulated the Nomination Policy and made a
recommendation to the Board for adoption.

Proceedings of board meetings and board
committee meetings

The Board may meet for the dispatch of business, adjourn and
otherwise regulate its meeting and proceedings as it thinks fit
and may determine the quorum necessary for the transaction
of business. An annual general meeting of the Company (the
“AGM”) shall be called by at least 21 days’ (and not less than
20 clear business days’) notice in writing, and a general meeting
of the Company, other than an AGM, shall be called by at least
14 days’ (and not less than 10 clear business days’) notice in
writing. A meeting of the Board or any committee of the Board
may be held by means of such telephone, electronic or other
communication facilities as permit all persons participating in the
meeting.

A Director shall not vote (nor shall he be counted in the quorum)
on any resolution of the Board in respect of any contract
or arrangement or proposal in which he or any of his close
associate(s) has/have a material interest, and if he shall do so his
vote shall not be counted (nor shall he be counted in the quorum
for that resolution).
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Set out below are details of the attendance record of each
Director at the Board, committee and general meetings of the
Company held during the year ended 31 December 2020:

UTEHINSESHREE S -_EF+ =4
=+ HIFEMBTHNARREES S H
ZEeEZ ABRRARENFMLE

Attendance/Number of Meetings Held

HEE/ERETRY

Regular Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration

Board Committee Committee Committee General

Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Name of Directors ESH3 EREZESE BENZEESE REZEESE FMEESER V-
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Li Chengjun FRERE 5/5 - 17 - 1
Mr. Xiong Bin B E 5/5 - - - 1N
Mr. Li Hongxing TIERE 5/5 - - - 17
Mr. Guo Qinglin DEMTE 5/5 = = - 1N
Independent Non-Executive Directors B F#{TES
Mr. Hung Wai Man HAREE 5/5 2/2 - 2/2 01
Mr. Wong Kwan Kit BRARE 5/5 2/2 17 2/2 17
Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen kR EE 5/5 2/2 17 2/2 17
Ms. Tseng Chin| LEETT 5/5 - 1N 2/2 1N

The Board will make arrangements for holding at least four
regular Board Meetings in each financial year.

The Board has established three committees: (i) the audit
committee (“Audit Committee”); (i) the remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”); and (jii) the nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”), for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All committees have been established
with defined written terms of reference, which were posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkex.com.hk) and the
Company (www.sprocomm.com). All committees should report
to the Board on their decisions or recommendations made. All
committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expense.
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Audit committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee on 18
October 2019 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Kwan Kit, Mr. Lu Brian
Yong Chen and Mr. Hung Wan Man. Mr. Wong Kwan Kit is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include ensuring
that an effective financial reporting, internal control and risk
management systems are in place and compliance of the
Listing Rules, reviewing the financial statements, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and removal
of external auditors and assessing their independence and
qualifications, and ensuring the effective communication with
external auditors.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee
held two meetings and the work performed by the Audit
Committee was summarised as follows:

1. reviewed the Company’s interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2020 and annual results for the year ended
31 December 2020;

2. reviewed the Company’s interim report for the six months
ended 30 June 2020 and annual report for the year ended
31 December 2020, which set out the Group’s accounting
policies, financial performance and position;

3. reviewed the findings and recommendations from external
auditors and the independent internal control reviewer;
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4. reviewed the independence of the external auditors and
engagement of external auditors;

5. reviewed the audit plan, internal control plan, the
development in accounting standards and their effects on
the Group, financial reporting and risk management matters;

6. reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff in the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting functions; and

7. reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems.

Remuneration committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee on
18 October 2019 with written terms of reference in compliance
with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee consists of four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Hung Wai Man, Mr. Wong Kwan
Kit, Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen and Ms. Tseng Chin I. Mr. Hung Wai
Man is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board in determining the
remuneration policy for and remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management, reviewing incentive schemes
and service contracts of the Directors and senior management,
and evaluating the performance of the Directors and senior
management.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration
Committee held two meetings to review and the work performed
by the Remuneration Committee was summarised as follows:

1. made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of Directors, senior management and employees

of the Group;

2. reviewed the appropriateness of the remuneration policy;
and

3. evaluated the performance of Directors and senior
management of the Group.
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Nomination committee
The Company has established a Nomination Committee on 18
October 2019 with written terms of reference in compliance
with CG Code provision A.5.1. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee consists of four Directors, namely
Mr. Li Chengjun, Mr. Wong Kwan Kit, Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen
and Ms. Tseng Chin |. Mr. Li Chengjun is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include
assisting the Board in identifying suitable candidates for the
Directors and making recommendations to the Board, assessing
the structure and composition of the Board, preparing, making
recommendations to and supervising the execution of the board
diversity policy and nomination policy of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting and the work performed by the
Nomination Committee was summarised in the paragraph
headed “Nomination policy” of this corporate governance report.

Dividend policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) which aims to ensure sustainable development of its
business operations and to provide a favorable return to its
shareholders.

Declaration of dividend will be made at the discretion of the
Board and will be based upon the Group’s earnings, cash
flows, financial conditions, capital requirements, statutory fund
reserve requirements and any other conditions that our Directors
consider relevant. The declaration, payment and amount of
dividend will also be subject to the Company’s constitutional
documents including, where necessary, the approval of the
shareholders.
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The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and
may exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time as the Board thinks
fit and necessary. There is no assurance that dividends will be
paid in any particular amount for any given period. The Dividend
Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment
by the Company that any dividend will be paid in any particular
amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a
dividend at any time or from time to time.

Corporate governance function

The Board does not have a Corporate Governance Committee.
The functions that would be carried out by a Corporate
Governance Committee are performed by the Board as a whole
and are as follows:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The corporate governance policy is formulated with an emphasis
on the Board’s quality, effective internal control, stringent
disclosure practices and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company. The Board strives to comply with
the code provisions and reviews its corporate governance policy
regularly in order to maintain high standards of business ethics
and corporate governance, and to ensure the full compliance of
the Group’s operations with applicable laws and regulations.
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Continuous professional development

Pursuant to the CG Code provision A.6.5, all Directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Directors. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the Company had arranged to provide trainings
to all the Directors. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Directors participated in the following continuous professional
development:

FEEXER
RIBEEXREATAGRFEALSK =2RES
R2EGEEXBERABUNERLREHNES
ZRBR R BRREHESSHELAL
KAz ER - ARBARBE LT REMFI
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Training on
corporate
governance,
director’s duties,
environment, social

and governance, Reading
and/or regulatory materials
update updating on
(Note 1) new rules and
TEER EERE - regulations
B HERERHN MEFER
EIR,/ REHARE FRORRE
Name of Directors EENE (HfE1) & R
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Li Chengjun THEELE v v
Mr. Xiong Bin BRI L& v v
Mr. Li Hongxing FUESEHE v 4
Mr. Guo Qinglin MEMEE v v
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIYFHITES
Mr. Hung Wai Man HRREE v/ v
Mr. Wong Kwan Kit BEREALE v v
Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen BB A v v
Ms. Tseng Chin | BEAZLT v v
Notes: HtaE -
1. Professional training was arranged by the Company to update the Directors’ 1. AR A LB ERBINAZHEF M -
knowledge.

2. The Company received from each of the Directors the confirmations on
taking continuous professional training.
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Auditor’s remuneration

The Company engaged SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as its
auditor for the year ended 31 December 2020. There was no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the
auditor.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the remuneration
paid/payable to SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited is set out as
follows:

o B B 35 A
HE-_Z_ZTF+_A=+—HLFE K
RAIRBEXTM(FE) GHMEBEAAR
NRAREZEN EFGRERTESHTE -
R BHEAMERBEMTEZTRDK -

BE_Z_THF+_A=1T—HLEFE X
FH(ER) M EBRAARIRTNEN
FERTFrBNE S a0 T

Remuneration

Services rendered paid/payable
REHA R 1A FEA
RMB’000

ARET T

Audit services EZ RS 929
Non-audit services IEEZ RIS 71
Total HEt 1,000

Acknowledgement of responsibility for
consolidated financial statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2020. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors:

e assessed the reasonableness of preparing the consolidated
financial statements taking into consideration the Group’s
financial performance, position, cashflows and liquidity
ratios;

e  selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; and

e made judgements and estimates in a prudent, fair and
reasonable manner.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The statement
of the independent auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out
in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” from page
115 to page 122 of this annual report.
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Internal control

Risk management and internal control

The Board emphasises on the importance of risk management
and internal controls on the Group’s business operations and
development and acknowledges its overall responsibility for the
risk management and internal control systems and the review of
their effectiveness.

The Board evaluates and determines the nature and extent of
risks it is willing to accept, while achieving the Group’s strategic
business objectives. The Board also ensures implementation
and maintenance of effective risk management and internal
control systems; and oversees management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems.

The Board has delegated the responsibility to physically
implement and maintain the risk management and internal control
systems to the management of the Company. The management,
under the supervision of the Board, has implemented and
maintained appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control system, which aims to manage and reduce
(i) risks associated with the Group’s daily operations; (ii) risks
of failing to achieve business objectives; (iii) risks of asset
misappropriation; and (iv) risks of making potential material
misstatements or losses. However, the risk management and
internal control system can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatements or losses.

The Group does not have an internal audit function. Taking into
account the size, nature and complexity of the Group’s business,
the Board have sufficient capacity to oversee the design and
implementation of the risk management and internal control
system and to assess its effectiveness, and accordingly there is
no immediate need to set up an internal audit function within the
Group.
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The process to identify, evaluate and manage risks are carried
out on a regular and on-going basis. These processes are
summarised as follows:

Risk identification
° Identify risks that may potentially affect the Group’s business
and operations.

Risk assessment
e  Assess the impact and consequence of the identified risks
on the business and the likelihood of their occurrence.

Response to findings of risk assessment

° Prioritise the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessment; and

e Determine the risk management strategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk monitoring and reporting

° Perform ongoing and regular monitoring of the risk and
ensure that appropriate internal control processes are in
place;

e Enhance the risk management strategies and internal
control processes in case of any significant change of
situation; and

e Report the results and effectiveness of risk management
and internal control to the Board regularly.

In relation to the handling and dissemination of inside information,
the Group has implemented in information disclosure policy
to ensure potential inside information being captured and
confidentiality of such information being maintained until
consistent and timely disclosure are made in accordance with the
Listing Rules. The policy is summarised as follows:

° Designated reporting channels from different operations
informing any potential inside information to designated

departments;

e  Designated persons and departments to determine further
escalation and disclosure as required; and

54 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited ~ Annual Report 2020

H Al FHE R EIERE R RR R TR E B R
BEEET - ZFRFHAMT
22 B 58 B

. BBTEHAEEEBREETEAY
AR -

AR
. FHECBRIRARHEBHNTER
BB A T B ©

BRRE

Eiﬂ_llﬁ*#ﬁ%*%
5B LB R bR AT B 4
IBFFETTRE &

B R IRE T

e WMTREBEEXBRAIZEHER MU
?FE:'ZE L%j/}a@ﬁ%ﬂ /«/\ ©

ﬂ[‘ﬁﬁkgﬁﬁiﬁ
FERTHERRR BREEZENA
BB

o WHBEMEKREEF  MARKREER
W R AEZESET &

o MEZZEHERRREERAIPIEH

FERFIBRL

AEEEREERERAREEH AL
BHFRERR BREFRENBR N FRE
ERABBE EERLEMRAMELERMRK

RPEIRER A LE - SZBUR AT

s HREMRE BIARZ2EBEUMEE
DBF'EJE# EW%‘}E’%:

e HBEALRBPARTEREERKEE
7 R



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

° Designated persons authorised to act as spokespersons
and respond to external enquiries.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
engaged an independent internal control reviewer to review
the effectiveness of its risk management and internal control
system. The scope of review was determined by the Board.
The independent internal control reviewer submitted a report
of findings and areas for improvement to the management.
The management presented these findings and areas for
improvements to the Board and Audit Committee. Having
considered (i) the existence of the risk management and internal
control system; (i) the findings of the independent internal control
reviewer; (i) management will take into account the areas for
improvement suggested by the independent internal control
reviewer and further enhance the risk management and internal
control system, the Board and Audit Committee were of the view
that the Group had no material internal control deficiencies and
its risk management and internal control systems were effective
and adequate.

Company secretary

Ms. Jian Xuegen (“Ms. Jian”) was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 21 September 2019 and is
responsible for overseeing all the company secretarial matters
of the Group. In the opinion of the Board, Ms. Jian possesses
the necessary qualification and experience, and is capable of
performing the functions of a company secretary. During the
year ended 31 December 2020, Ms. Jian confirmed that she has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training as
required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ rights

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board. An
AGM of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place
as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other
than an AGM, shall be called an extraordinary general meeting.
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Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, extraordinary general
meeting shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
shareholders of the Company holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisition(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Putting enquiries by shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the company secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong.

Procedures for putting forward proposals by
shareholders at shareholders’ meetings
Shareholders of the Company are requested to follow article
64 of the Articles for including a resolution at an extraordinary
general meeting. The requirements and procedures are set out
above in the paragraph headed “Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting”.

Pursuant to article 114 of the Articles, no person (other than
a retiring Director) shall, unless recommended by the Board
for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at
any general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention
to propose that person for election as a Director and notice in
writing by that person of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office of the Company or at the Hong
Kong branch share registrar and transfer office of the Company.
The period for lodgement of the notices required under this
Article will commence no earlier than the day after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting and the minimum length of the period during
which such notices to the Company may be given will be at least
seven days.
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The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a
person for election as a Director is posted on the website of the
Company. Shareholders or the Company may refer to the above
procedures for putting forward any other proposals at general
meetings.

Investors relations

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and reasonable disclosure of information to its
shareholders. Information of the Company is disseminated to the
shareholders in the following manner:

° Delivery of annual and interim results and reports to all
shareholders;

° Publication of announcements on the annual and interim
results on the website of the Company and the website of
the Stock Exchange, and issue of other announcements and
shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules; and

e  The general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and
shareholders.

The Company has in place a shareholder communication
policy to ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to
ensure its effectiveness.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to the Board or the
Company may be sent by post to the Company’s head office.
The Company also maintains a website at www.sprocomm.com
where up-to-date information and updates of the Company’s
operations, performances and strategies are available to public
access.

Constitutional Documents

On 18 October 2019, the Company adopted an amended and
restated memorandum and articles of association which had
been uploaded to the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. Save as disclosed above, there had been no changes
in the constitutional documents of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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Scope and reporting period

The Group presents its Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG”) report, which highlights its ESG performance from
1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020.

This ESG report was prepared with reference to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“ESG Reporting Guide”) as described in Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules and Guidance set out by the Stock Exchange.

The Group is an ODM mobile phone supplier based in the PRC,
primarily engaged in research and development, designing,
manufacturing and sale of mobile phones, PCBAs for mobile
phones and loT related products, targeting emerging markets.
The Group operates two production bases in the PRC, including
one in Shenzhen that is responsible for the mobile phone
assembly and the other one in Luzhou that is equipped with SMT
lines for the production of PCBAs.

The Group applied the principles of materiality, measurability
and consistency in the preparation of this ESG report. The
scope of this ESG report concentrates on the Group’s business
in the PRC, where the Group carries out its principal business
operations and most of its employees and assets are located.
The Group’s operations outside the PRC were not included in the
scope as they do not have significant environmental and social
impacts. The effectiveness of the Group’s ESG policies was
assessed by comparing the Group’s performance for the year
ended 31 December 2020 with prior year comparative figures.
Further, the information in this ESG was presented in a consistent
manner. In the event there are any changes in methods or
key performance indicators used or other factors affecting a
meaningful comparison, these changes would be disclosed in
this ESG report.
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ESG governance

The board of directors (the “Board”) holds the overall
responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting by
overseeing the overall governance and progress of the Group’s
ESG management system, policies, commitments, strategies and
objectives.

Management of the Group is responsible for the collection and
analysis of ESG data, implementation of appropriate measures
to improve the Group’s ESG performance, assessment of
whether current ESG policies and improvement measures are
effective, compliance with relevant ESG laws and regulations
and the reporting of major issues to the Board. To assess the
effectiveness of the Group’s ESG policies, management sets key
performance indicators and compares the indicators of current
year with those of prior year.

The data and information in this ESG report are sourced from
the relevant documents, reports, statistical data, management
and operation information collected by the Group. The Board has
reviewed the contents of this ESG report.
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Stakeholder engagement

The Group values the contributions from its stakeholders as they
can bring potential impacts to the Group’s business. The Group
maintains regular communications with its stakeholders from time
to collect their views on the ESG aspects that they regard as
relevant and important. Its key stakeholders include governments
and regulatory bodies, shareholders, employees, customers,
suppliers and the public society. The Group maintains an open
and transparent dialogue with its stakeholders through various
channels including meetings, trade exhibitions, surveys, seminars
and workshops.

The following table summarises the main expectations and
concerns of the key stakeholders identified by the Group, and the
corresponding management responses.

KhESH
AEETHERHEBBEERENRNE
BR -AEETEMEFSNERR  THRHKER
ER/RERE HEREREBNERER -
AEENTERNERRBRTREE®E -
BR-EE TP HEBERMHEAR - KK
BEBAeR BMERE #HE - -HHTERIE
hEZERE  BRNELFHEAN

TRBEAKREMARNEBZRNENETER
MBI AR EIREHEEREE -

Management responses/

Stakeholders Expectations Communication channels
BHE FEH EEEOE BERE
Governments and regulatory bodies e  Compliance with laws and e  Compliance operation
B R EEHE regulations o HHEE
o EBEEER e Tax payment in full and on time
e Tax payment in accordance o IR EEMBL
with laws
o {OEMT
Shareholders o Financial results e To improve profitability
A& ER s MBXRE o REARBRREEN
e  Corporate transparency ° Regular information disclosure
o {EFEH s THERERR
e Sound risk control e To optimise risk management
o BEREMEIRE and internal control
o E({LRMREIR KNI
Employees e Career development platform e Promotion mechanism
EE s BEBRTA o ETTHH
e  Salary and benefits e  Competitive salary and employee
o HeREF benefits
e Safe working environment s ABFINEHFEREEREF

e ZTEIFRER
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Management responses/

Stakeholders Expectations Communication channels

=0 & L EEEEE BERE
Customers e Logistics and delivery service o To get delivery status through
LN standards product tracking system

o W KBLERRRISELE

o Customer information
security

s ZEPERE%ZR

e Customer rights and interests
protection

s XEFPERRE

Suppliers o Integrity cooperation
HER e HMIEAE
e  Business ethics and
credibility

s HEERRKEE

Society and the public o Environmental protection
HELR o  IRIFRE

o Employment opportunities

s ERE®E

—E—

—= =

B3 EE m 4B Mk R IS B KR

Re

Customer privacy protection
BERPLEBRE
Compliance marketing
BHE

To build a responsible supply
chain

BB EMMERE

To perform the contract
according to law
BEBITAEH

To reduce environmental
pollutions

WA BRIR S A

To put into use environmental
protection and energy saving
equipment
ERRRENBE R

To provide equal employment
opportunities

REFERRES

FEFF Sprocomm Intelligence Limited
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Materiality assessment

With reference to the scopes as required under the ESG
Reporting Guide and taking into consideration of the Group’s
business operations, the Group identified the following
environmental, social and operating issues that are material
and relevant to the Group’s business operations during the year
ended 31 December 2020. If the Group does not implement
effective strategies to monitor and solve these issues, these
issues may affect the Group’s financial condition or operating
performance. Further, the Group made a materiality assessment
on these environmental, social and operating issues by
conducting interviews with its stakeholders.

Environmental issues Social issues

BEEMTM

AEB2ERE HEREAMEESIRT
MEEMEEXEFEE SN TEAER
B2 T - ZF+-_A=Z+—BHIFEXEK
HEMEARRE (HEhEERE - MAEE
TREASIEBAERRERZESE [
AEBUBRAAUEERBERGZEFE -
AEBBBEGHEFBOE  E—THZERE
HEREERHEET T EEMHTG-

Operating issues

BRIRER HESE EESIE
1. Greenhouse gas emissions 8. Local community engagement  15. Economic value generated
RERBHEN S84 5t & EENRBEEE
2. Energy consumption 9. Community investment 16. Corporate governance
BEIRERE MERTE EER
3. Water consumption 10. Occupational health and safety  17. Anti-corruption
KRB FE BEERALZR RERE
4.  Waste 11. Labour standards in supply 18. Supply chain management
&Y chain HrEEE R
HpEsEss TIEAE
5.  Saving energy measures 19. Customer satisfaction
BB TS I 12. Training and development BEPREE
| [Tk g3
6. Use of raw materials and 20. Customer privacy
packaging materials 13. Employee welfare BERPLE
R R B R EHE B & B &R
7. Compliance with laws 14. Inclusion and equal
and regulations relating to opportunities
environmental protection Hpps T Eg e

B TIRRIERRA AR

The Group prioritised the above-mentioned environmental, social
and operating issues in terms of their importance to the Group’s
stakeholders and business operations.
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Importance to the Group’s stakeholders and
business operations

HEKERNDERERLEENEREE

ESG issues
RE -HEREARBE

High

=)
Medium
h

Low

{li§

Based on the results of the Group’s materiality assessment, the
Group would formulate and implement appropriate strategies to
monitor and solve the identified issues and to achieve sustainable
business development. During the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group’s first priority was to ensure the health and
safety of its employees amid the outbreak of novel coronavirus
(the “COVID-19”). Please refer to the section headed “(ii)
Employee health and safety” in this ESG report for details of the
strategies implemented by the Group to ensure the health and
safety of its employees.

1,2,8,5,6,7,14,15,16,17,18, 19, 20
4,10,11,12,13

8,9

AEEBREBEEBUHTHAERMTRERE
ERBERME R FM B EWERA
BEER BE-_T _TF+-_A=+—H
tFE AEBEETEAETFAEBRES
(fCovID-19)) B#EMBER T - BIRE N EE
MigEMEZ2 BEAEERRE Ti@2FkE
TERMETHRBHE  B2ELARE 1
MERRE(VEERRNZE]—& -
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Environment

The Group acknowledges its responsibility to protect
the environment and it has implemented policies to
reduce emissions and improve the efficiency in the use of
resources.

The Group’s business operations are subject to certain
environmental requirements pursuant to the laws in the PRC
such as Environmental Protection Law of the PRC (" %
AR H MBI IRE R #5%)), Evaluation of Environmental
Effects Law of the PRC (P #E AR L MBIRIBF LT E
%)), Prevention and Control of Water Pollution Law of the
PRC ({2 A R F1E 7k 55 2B 56 %)), Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution Law of the PRC ({/ &
AR FEMBKFI52H87%)), Prevention and Control of
Environmental Noise Pollution Law of the PRC ({7 F A
RHEFBRIFR &S 2 [547%)), Prevention and Control
of Solid Waste Pollution Law of the PRC ({# £ A & &
ol BERE W5 IR B[ A A)), and Regulations on
the Administration of Construction Project Environmental
Protection ((ZE% 18 B IRIERE B IR I&)), and Promotion
of Cleaner Production Law of the PRC ({7 £ A & £ Al
BREERER)).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
complied with all applicable PRC environmental laws
and regulations in all material respects and had not been
subject to any material penalty in relation to environmental
protection.
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A.1 Emissions A1 BERK

During the Group’s production process, there are
certain wastage generated (sources of emissions)
including solid waste, water, noise and polluted air.
The Group has in place standard procedures to
manage, treat and reduce the pollution and wastage
in accordance with national and local requirements.
The Group also has in place facilities for air filtration
to ensure that the level of wastage or pollutants
generated during its production process is within
statutory limits. In addition, the Group has engaged a
professional waste disposal service company for the
disposal of hazardous wastes. To ensure compliance
with the latest environmental laws and regulations, the
Group has internal compliance manuals setting out its
goals and policies in relation to environmental matters.
The Group has been accredited with the ISO 14001
certification of environmental management system.

(i)  Air pollutant emissions

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
air pollutant emissions were mainly related to
petrol consumption for the use of the Group’s
self-owned vehicles, which contributed to the
emission of 11.03 kg (2019: 14.39 kg) of nitrogen
oxides (NOx), 0.22 kg (2019: 0.29 kg) of sulphur
oxides (SOx) and 0.81 kg (2019: 1.06 kg) of
respiratory suspended particles (PM).

AEEREERBEFELEETEY
(BEpUR) - BIEE B EY - BEK -
RBERERSE - AEEERER
REMWFBRBETIZERF  UE
B BEBRERBLSEREY K&
BRERETCR/BERE BREEDB
&EPE%E’JJ?%%%%%T&@&
FEEE - IS EEREYEIE RS
RAREEEREY AERETH
MRREEZER AEERBAIP
ERFM JBEREEENBEEZER
R - ANE B JVERISO 14001 IRIE

'_:EE/\/}L,QL, u;i( ©

() ERSRYBER
HE-_Z-_ZTF+-A=1+—
RIEFE  ZRS5EMPFERE
EEAEEFEMREE TEMHA
R A @%1103%;@
BELHNOX) (ZF—hEF
14.39F %) ozz%%,“gm
#(SOx) (Z T —NF :0.20F
52) R 0.81 FrRA RABTH T
PM)(ZB—NF:1.06FR) -
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(1) Emission factors were made by reference to Appendix
27 of the Main Board Listing Rules and their referred
documentation as set out by the Stock Exchange, unless
stated otherwise.

) The above emission data does not include the removal of
CO2 contributed by recycling of paper.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group’s activities contributed to 5,067.68 tonnes
(2019: 5,222.89 tonnes) or 0.1 tCO2/m2 (2019:

(i) Greenhouse gas emissions (i) BEREBIHEN
For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
HE-Z-3F HE-E-NE
TZAZ+-HLEE TZAZ+-HLEE
Emission  Percentage to Emission  Percentage to
(intCO,e) total emission (intCO,e) total emission
BME(EE  (AHNE HHEME  (AEHE
Scope of greenhouse gas emissions ~ BEREHNEE  —GtREE) Al —E{BREER) BAL
Scope 1 Direct emission HE1EEHER
Combustion of petrol for mobile vehicles /A&7 & 34.57 2.5% 46.46 2.6%
Consumption of refrigerant IRHERE 92.31 90.50
Scope 2 Indirect emission HE2BEER
Purchased electricity REE 4,707.32 92.9% 4,652.76 89.1%
Scope 3 Other indirect emission HESHMBEHEN
Paper waste disposal BRRE 0.01 4.6% 0.01 8.3%
Water consumption K 37.51 28.76
Business air travel ABRIT 195.96 404.40
Total EHY 5,067.68 100% 5,222.89 100%
Notes: it -

() KBEZEHRA TRHERAES
SEIRETRAME -+ LR
HEXARELEXMHETE -

(2 LEBEREEABER WA RE
ERZELH -

HE-_ZT-_THE+-_A=+—
HIEFE AEENFESHE
W5,067.68M8 (—F — L4 :

0.1 tC02/m2) of carbon dioxide equivalent 5 222.89ME) 3% 0.1 WF — & 1k fix
(carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide and g/ FHK(ZE—NIE 01
hydrofluorocarbons) emission. Details of the —EEIREE EHK) R
Group’s measures to reduce the consumption {K ixg=s (8l Bk —

of resources and the related emissions are
set out below. As a result of these measures,
the employees’ awareness of reducing the
consumption of resources and the related
emissions has been increased. Same as the

SR MIRIKILEN) - &
S ER A EJREFE R AR BER
M EFIREIIMT - AR Z%
ShHE - BERDERBERER
THREBE D) BB PTIE o8 o 2

previous two years, the Group did not receive iﬂ%ﬁﬁi* CAREEHZE
any complaints or warnings on greenhouse gas E_TEF+ A=+ —HILEF
emissions during the year ended 31 December B EEETADE E RN
2020, and targets to achieve the same MITsFekZLELE TEER-Z
performance in 2021. T FEYRAERIE -
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Petrol consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group’s motor vehicles travelled 147,591 km
(2019: 192,647 km), which consumed 14,650
litres (2019: 19,688 litres) of petrol (9.2 litres
(2019: 183.8 litres) of petrol per employee) and
contributed to 34.57 tonnes (2019: 46.46 tonnes)
of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions. To reduce
the emissions arising from petrol consumption,
the Group encourages its employees to use
public transport when they attend business
activities. For business activities that take place
within walking distance, the Group encourages
its employees to walk or cycle to the destination.
The Group targets that its petrol consumption in
2021 will not exceed the level consumed during
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Refrigerant consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group consumed 51 kg (2019: 50 kg) of
refrigerant (0.03 kg (2019: 0.04 kg) per employee)
in connection with the use of air conditioning
during its daily production and office operations,
which contributed to 92.31 tonnes (2019: 90.50
tonnes) of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions.
To reduce the emissions arising from refrigerant
consumption, the Group encourages its
employees to switch off the air conditioning when
they leave the office and production premises.
The Group targets that its refrigerant consumption
in 2021 will not exceed the level consumed during
the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Electricity consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group consumed 5,230,352 kWh (2019:
5,169,737 kWh) of electricity (3,279 kWh (2019:
3,620 kWh) per employee) in connection with
its daily production and office operations,
which contributed to 4,707.32 tonnes (2019:
4,652.76 tonnes) of carbon dioxide equivalent
emissions. To reduce the emissions arising from
electricity consumption, the Group encourages
its employees to switch off the lights and other
electricity appliances when they leave the office
and production premises. The Group targets that
its electricity consumption in 2021 will not exceed
the level consumed during the year ended 31
December 2020.

Paper consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group consumed 1.3 tonnes (2019: 1.8 tonnes)
of paper (0.001 tonnes (2019: 0.001 tonnes) per
employee) in connection with its daily business
operations, which contributed to 0.01 tonnes
(2019: 0.01 tonnes) of carbon dioxide equivalent
emissions. To reduce the emissions arising
from paper usage, the Group encourages its
employees to conserve paper, review documents
on computers, send messages to customers via
emails, use recycled paper and adopt double-
sided printing. The Group targets that its paper
consumption in 2021 will not exceed the level
consumed during the year ended 31 December
2020.
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Water consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group consumed 41,865 cubic metres (2019:
32,105 cubic metres) of water (26.2 cubic metres
(2019: 22.5 cubic metres) per employee) in
connection with its daily business operations,
which contributed to 37.50 tonnes (2019: 28.76
tonnes) of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions.
To reduce the emissions arising from water
usage, the Group encourages its employees to
conserve water and remember to turn off the
water tap after use. As a result, the employees
have increased their awareness to reduce
water consumption. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group did not encounter any
problems in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.
Further, the Group did not consume a significant
amount of water that was and disproportional to
the scale of its business operations. The Group
targets that its water consumption in 2021 will not
exceed the level consumed during the year ended
31 December 2020.

Business air travel

The Group’s business nature requires employees
to travel by air to other countries for meetings with
customers and suppliers. They would only travel
by air when necessary and the Group keeps
track of their business air travels. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, business air travels of
the Group’s employees had contributed a total of
195.96 tonnes (2019: 404.40 tonnes) of carbon
dioxide equivalent emission.
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(i)

Hazardous waste

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group generated minimal amount of hazardous
waste. The major hazardous waste generated by
the Group was waste light tube. To minimise the
impact on environment, the Group has engaged
a professional waste disposal service company
for the disposal of hazardous wastes. The Group
will strive to reduce generation of hazardous
waste through upgrading technologies whenever
possible. Same as the previous two years, the
Group did not receive any complaints or warnings
on disposal of its hazardous waste during the
year ended 31 December 2020, and targets to
achieve the same performance in 2021.

Non-hazardous waste

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group generated a total of 1565 tonnes (2019:
1,440 tonnes) of non-hazardous waste (0.98
tonnes (2019: 1.01 tonnes) per employee). The
non-hazardous waste generated by the Group
were packaging materials generated from the
Group’s production process. The Group regularly
reminds its employees to use resources efficiently
and try to avoid the generation of waste. As
a result, the employees’ awareness of waste
management has been increased. Same as the
previous two years, the Group did not receive
any complaints or warnings on disposal of its
non-hazardous waste during the year ended 31
December 2020, and targets to achieve the same
performance in 2021.
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A2 BEREH

A.2 Use of resources

Reducing consumption of resources and enhancing
utilisation efficiency are the Group’s principles in
minimising adverse impact on the environment and
natural resources that may be caused by its business
operations. The Group has adopted a set of guidelines
to achieve efficient use of energy, water and other
resources for long-term sustainability.

The Group’s total consumption of resources during
the year ended 31 December 2020 together with the
relevant conservation measures adopted by the Group
are detailed in the section headed “A.1 Emissions”
above.

A.3 The environment and natural resources

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s
business activities did not cause significant adverse
impact on the environment and natural resources.

To further improve the use of resources, the Group
takes the following actions on an ongoing basis:

e  keep track of its consumption level of resources;

° review the effectiveness of its conservation
measures; and

e design improvement measures.

As a result, the Group’s employees are more aware of
the importance of using resources efficiently.
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A.4 Climate change

Management of the Group regularly monitors and
identifies climate change risk that is relevant to the
Group’s business operations.

Climate change is mainly caused by the release of
carbon dioxide into the atmosphere, resulting from
the use of fossil fuels for electricity generation and for
transportation. As mentioned above, the Group has
implemented appropriate strategies to use resources
more efficiently and reduce emissions to combat
climate change and reduce potential costs in the
future.

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
management was not aware of any significant climate-
related issues that had/might have significant adverse
impact on the Group’s business operations.

Going forward, if there are any significant climate
related issues and transitional risks posed from climate
change that will have significant adverse impact on
the Group’s business operations, management will
implement appropriate strategies to mitigate such
issues or risks in a timely manner.
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B. Social

B.1 Employment and labour practices

U)

Employment
Total employees

The Group had a total number of 1,836 full-time
employees in the PRC as at 31 December 2020.
The Group did not have any part-time employees
as at 31 December 2020. During the year ended
31 December 2020, the Group adjusted the
number of staff according to its actual business
needs and staff turnover rate was within an
acceptable level.

Set forth below are the distribution of the Group’s
employees as at 31 December 2020 by gender

B.
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and age group:
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DISTRIBUTION OF
EMPLOYEES BY AGE GROUP
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Above 50
4150 50ppbl +
412507k 0.4%
7.0%

Employee benefits and welfare

The Group enters into employment contracts
with its employees and the employment contract
terms were stipulated under the principles of
fairness, voluntarism, mutual consent, integrity
and credibility. The remuneration package offered
to employees includes salary, bonuses and other
subsidies. In general, the remuneration package
is based on each employee’s qualifications,
position, seniority and work performance. The
Group carries out an annual review system to
assess the performance of its employees, which
forms the basis of decisions with respect to salary
raises, bonuses and promotions.

30-41
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During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group maintains social insurance for its
employees pursuant to the applicable PRC laws
and regulations by making contributions to the
mandatory social insurance and housing provident
funds which provide basic retirement, medical,
work-related injury, maternity and unemployment
benefits.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group complies with the Labour Law of the PRC
and did not experience any significant disputes
with its employees or any disruption to business
operations due to labour disputes. In addition,
the Group did not experience any difficulties in
the recruitment and retention of experienced core
staff or skilled personnel.

Labour standards

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there
was no child labour nor forced labour working
in the Group. The job application requirement
specifies that job applicants must be at least 18
years old. To ensure that job applicants can meet
the age requirement, identities of job applicants
are verified against their valid identity documents,
relevant permits and certificates.

The human resources department is required
to carry out background checks to authenticate
information provided by job applicants and
is required to fill in forms that confirm hired
employees have met the age requirement. If
child labour or forced labour is discovered, such
matter will be reported to the human resources
department and the senior management and
the Group will enhance the internal controls
immediately. No material non-compliance
in relation to laws and regulations regarding
prevention of child and forced labour was
recorded during the year ended 31 December
2020.
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Equal opportunity

The Group provides equal opportunities for
employees in respect of recruitment, job
advancement, training and development, etc.
Employees are not discriminated against or
deprived of such opportunities on the basis of
race, nationality, religion, physical condition,
disability, gender, pregnancy, sexual orientation,
political status, age and any other discrimination
prohibited by applicable law. Employees shall
not act in discriminatory manner or they can be
subject to disciplinary actions.

Employee relations

The Directors consider that it is important to
maintain good relationship with employees.
The Group maintains regular communications
with its employees by arranging gatherings,
celebration activities and trainings. Through these
activities, the Group would collect feedback
from its employees on job satisfactions and
their expectations on the Group and would
implement appropriate strategies to improve the
work environment and its relationship with the
employees.

Employee health and safety

The Group places emphasis on occupational
health and work safety. It provides a safe
working environment and training sessions for its
employees to ensure that they can work safely. It
has also implemented a system of recording and
handling accidents. Further, the Group also has
dedicated personnel responsible for administering
the internal worker safety policies, providing
relevant training and education, and conducting
regular inspections. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group had not experienced
any material safety accidents or been penalised
for any non-compliance relating to work safety
laws and regulations.
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BE_T-BHF+_-A

Occupational health and safety data for =t+t—HAL=@FE

the three years ended 31 December 2020 WEEREEREZ2HE

Work related fatality THwT -
Work injury cases >3 days SRUEMTHEEL -
Work injury cases <=3 days SARAAW T EER -
Lost days due to work injury THEEIRE -

Amid the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group
followed the guidelines of the relevant government
authorities and implemented the following
strategies to ensure the health and safety of its
employees:

e Implement flexible work practices

° Make sure employees follow cleaning
protocol at work

° Provide protective masks to employees

e Measure the body temperatures of
employees to monitor their health condition

e  Attend virtual meetings instead of face-to-
face meetings as far as practicable

Development and training

The Group provides comprehensive training
and development opportunities to its employees
on a regular basis. The trainings are arranged
according to needs of employees, which were
identified annually by individual departments:

a. Orientation training — To familiarise
employees with the Group’s objectives,
culture, rules and regulations, safety and
product-related knowledge on the first day
of work;
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Pre-job training — To familiarise new
employees or transferred employees with
their new duties; and

On-the-job training — To ensure that the
employees are familiar with the Group’s
products, to sharpen the sales technique
and customer service standard of sales
and marketing personnel and to ensure the
production and quality control personnel
perform proper quality control procedures.

Set forth below is the number and
percentage of training hours completed
by the Group’s employees by gender and
employee category for the year ended 31
December 2020:

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-B-SH+-A=t-HLEE

e B 35 Al — 15 DI B B 3K
HEERATHEBE
54

ERIE I -REREEAT
AEBEWER RAHEE
REBEABNHEERTT R
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REERNEBZERITEE
R e

ATREBEE_Z_TF
T-A=t—HLEHFE"
AEBERERENNEER
8 7 BT 75 A RO 15 B R B e
Bot

% of training

hours by
employee
category
RESEH
Employee category Male Female Total il
EEER L3 g3 CL BENEDL
Training hours Training hours Training hours
G G FHlH
Senior management 288 = 288 0.1%
BREEE
Middle management 17,561 5,699 23,260 6.9%
PRERE
Other employees 170,780 143,791 314,571 93.0%
Hitfgg
Total 188,629 149,490 338,119 100.0%
@t
% of training hours
by gender 55.8% 44.2% 100.0%
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REWEDL
—z—x 77

—= =

FEFF Sprocomm Intelligence Limited



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HERERRE

B.2 Operating practices

U)

78

Supply chain management

The Group purchases raw materials and
equipment based on its own needs,
specifications, quality and safety performance of
equipment, reputation, after-sales service and
delivery time of the supplier. The Group compares
different suppliers to select qualified suppliers
(based on their product specifications, product
compliances, production management, quality
management and also ESG performances) before
the Group enters into contract with the qualified
suppliers.

When selecting equipment, the Group would also
consider whether they are energy efficient and
environmental friendly. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group principally sourced
its major raw materials (including PCBAs, display
modules, camera modules and mobile chips) and
equipment from PRC suppliers.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
geographical locations of the Group’s suppliers of

raw materials and equipment were as follows:

Geographical locations of the
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M
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BIEFE AEERMMRE
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Group’s suppliers AEBHEFNENE Number of suppliers

HEBEE
The PRC H 545
Hong Kong BB 25
Total &ast 570
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The Group expects its suppliers to uphold the
environmental, social and governance principles
that the Group has adopted into the management
of its business operations. In order to ensure
that the components and raw materials meet the
requisite safety and quality standards, the Group
adopts stringent criteria in supplier selection
(including but not limited to whether they provide
high quality raw materials, whether they maintain
a high standard on environmental protection
and comply with relevant laws on environmental
issues, whether price is comparable to
market rate and location of their factories) and
continuously monitors existing suppliers on an
annual basis, based on criteria such as product
quality, product defect ratio, delivery punctuality
ratio and responsiveness.

Whether the supplier will continue to be included
in the Group’s list of approved suppliers depends
on the marks it achieved under annual evaluation.
The awareness of environmental protection is one
of the key criteria for the Group to evaluate the
suppliers.
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(i)

Product responsibility
Product assurance and recall

Product quality is crucial to the Group’s
continued success. The Group places strong
emphasis on achieving a consistently high quality
for its products. To achieve such purpose,
stringent quality control measures throughout
the production process were implemented to
ensure the quality and safety of our products.
The Group’s quality control department performs
regular inspections to evaluate the effectiveness
of the quality control measures and further
enhance these measures when necessary.

The Group’s quality management system has
complied with the standard of GB/T 19001-2016/
ISO9001: 2015 Quality Management Systems
Requirements and awarded a certificate for
the design, development, production and
services of communication products, including
exportable mobile phone, on 18 January 2019,
which remains valid until 17 January 2022.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group did not experience any claims, litigations
and arbitrations or material adverse findings in
inspection by government authorities with respect
to product quality.

The Group only accepts product returns if
there is manufacture or design defect or the
product specification deviates from customers’
specifications During the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group did not experience
any product recall, material non-compliance
with laws and regulations in relation to product
safety nor receive any material complaints from
consumers.
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(i)

Intellectual property rights and information
security

As a mobile phone supplier with strong design
capability, the Group registers patents to
safeguard the technologies and mobile phone
applications developed by the research and
development department time to time. The Group
relies on the relevant laws and regulations to
protect its brand names, trademarks and other
intellectual property rights.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group was not aware of any material infringement
(i) by the Group of any intellectual property rights
owned by any third parties : or (i) by any third
party of any intellectual property rights owned
by the Group. Further, there were no pending
or threatened material claims made against the
Group, nor had there been any material claims
made by the Group against third parties, with
respect to the infringement of intellectual property
rights owned by the Group.

Anti-corruption

According to the Group’s anti-corruption policy, all
employees shall abide by the laws and regulations
of the PRC and shall not engage in any illegal
activities. Employees shall uphold the code of
ethics, advocate fair competition and act against
bribery. Any bribery, fraud, money laundering and
embezzlement are prohibited.

Employees must not accept or request any
improper benefits including banquets, gifts,
securities, valuables and high-expenditure
entertainment activities from business partners,
suppliers and merchants, etc. When there is any
alleged case in violation of laws, regulations,
code of conduct or Group’s policies, the Group
will investigate and impose disciplinary actions
upon offenders after verification. The Group also
provides trainings to directors and employees
from time to time to ensure that they comply and
familiar with the anti-corruption guides, policies
and procedures of the Group.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group complied with all applicable laws on
prohibiting corruption and bribery of the PRC
and there was no concluded legal case regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees.

(iv) Data protection and privacy policy

The Group is committed to protecting the
privacy of its customers, employees, business
partners and suppliers by maintaining a safe
and secure data environment. The Group has
implemented appropriate policies to ensure that
all personal and business data collected during
the Group’s business activities are organised and
secured properly. Computers and servers are
protected from access passwords, Employees
are instructed of their responsibility to follow the
confidentiality code on the access to information
and to ensure the safekeeping of all personal,
customer and business data, trade secrets and
proprietary information. Employees are prohibited
from disclosing the information to unauthorised
parties.

B.3 Community investment

The Group acknowledges corporate social
responsibility and allocates resources to satisfy the
needs of the community. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group spent reasonable amount
of time and resources on environmental protection
as well as cultural and sport promotion. The Group
encouraged its employees to participate charitable
events. Going forward, the Group will continue to focus
on community needs and increase its investment in
community.

Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2020

HE_Z-_ZTF+-—A=+—
HEFE AEEEETHEH
ERELtESZHNMEER
EE B EHEAEESNE
BiRREMNEELESARRMG -

(v) BRRERALTRBR
AEEHNEBERLRERE
RENBERIRBRRELTP
BT EBBHLHERBOL
B AKRECEREENRK
NHERERNEENEREFT
WEH A EANREBERY
THEFRZERZ BRK
fa) AR 25 &9 77 ER %2 B 2% 75 R & -
BTRETEAETEREHN
TFRARE TR LHEERAE
BA BEEFEREBEH BE
WELBEBEERBELERE -
BIWAILAREREALE
BEF -

B3HERE
AEBRMPELESEF HEE
BRELEE R - HE-_T-_ZF
+-—A=Z+—HLEFE A£E=ZE
B AEMNBRENERERFSR
NIERBEHRE ~AEBSBES
BN EE A% KE@ K%
BEIFEEFRKFMMAIERIEE -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIR - HERERE

The ESG Reporting Guide content index of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Subject areas, aspects,

general disclosures and KPIs

FEER - BH - —REER

BEARIER

Description

1

=

BERBEXZMARQIANEE -
HERERBMEESINBTREIR

Relevant section in the ESG

report/Declaration

B - ERERBRSHNEE

E8: 00 1

Aspect Al: Emissions
BEA : B9
General Disclosure

—RIWE

KPIA1.1
BB ERUEIR AL

KPIA1.2
FARAEMIEIRAL2

KPI A1.3

RS UIRIR AL

KPI A1.4

AR EBIEIZA1.4

KPIA1.5
RS A MIEIRALS

KPI A1.6
R EBIEZA16

Information on:

BERERMAERBIEN - /KR LA
5 AEREERRVNELSTH

(@ the policies; and

BE &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and nonhazardous waste.

BTHETABEATE

KIRGIEE R -

M HRRBE AR

The types of emissions and respective

emissions data.

PEm g Ra R ARBE BRI BUR ©

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes)

and intensity.

BERBEBINE (AW E) RTE -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)

and intensity.

ELAZEEDESE CAMGE) REE -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in

tonnes) and intensity.

EAEZEZEYDESE CAEGE) REE -

Description of reduction initiatives and results

achieved.

R R ENERRAERER -

Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction

initiatives and results achieved.
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A. ENVIRONMENT
ARIE

A.1 Emissions

ATHERR

A.1 Emissions —
(i) Greenhouse gas emissions
A HER— (i) R =R

A.1 Emissions —

(i) Hazardous waste

(Not applicable — Explained)
ATEER— (i) B EBEY
(TEA-D2 )

A.1 Emissions —
(iv) Non-hazardous waste
A BER —(iv) EEEY)

A.1 Emissions

A1 BERR

A.1 Emissions —

(i) Hazardous waste
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A.1 Emissions —

(iv) Non-hazardous waste
AHER—(v) EEEREY
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Subject areas, aspects, Description Relevant section in the ESG
general disclosures and KPIs report/Declaration
TEHR - EBEE —REER #HH RE HBRERBENIER

BEARIER -0 1

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BEA2: EREA

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, A.2 Use of resources
— e R including energy, water and other raw A2E&RfFH
materials. )
EREREIR (BEER - K REMEMED
BN R o
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by  A.1 Emissions
AR E BIER A2.1 type in total and intensity. AT BERR
RENESHMEER SHEERERES
REE °
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. A.1 Emissions —
AR IEIZEA2.2 BREKENTE - (i) Greenhouse gas emissions —

Water consumption
AHER— (i) R EREBBE—

FAX

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives ~ A.1 Emissions

BASRAE BIEIEA2.3 and results achieved. A1 BERR
e IR A e st Bl RFTASACR -

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in A.1 Emissions -

FAREMIEIEA24 sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water (i) Greenhouse gas emissions —
efficiency initiatives and results achieved. Water consumption
HAKEGE AR EATBEEABEE - Uk ATHEBR—()REREBHEN—
RIRK T8 RPATERR - FAX

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished A.1 Emissions —

AR IEIRA2.5 products (in tonnes). (iv) Non-hazardous waste

HRmAMBRERMANEE (AWAE) - AITHR-(VVESED
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RE - HERERKRE

Subject areas, aspects,

general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE EBEEH —REER

BEARIER

Description

=

3

Relevant section in the ESG
report/Declaration

R HERERRENER

-0 1

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

EBEAS: BERXRER
General Disclosure
— M=

KPI A3.1
FA S AE B IR A1

Aspect A4: Climate Change
BEAL : RIxEt

General Disclosure

—fRIREE

KPI A4.1
BE IR B B 1Z A4

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant
impact on the environment and natural
resources.
MIEEITABRBERRRERENERY
EHHR -

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.

B EBETHHRBERRARERNERY
EREERDEEERZENTE -

Policies on identification and mitigation of
significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer.

Bl R EHE R RIS HEITAELEY
ENEAREHEBEENOBER -

Description of significant climate-related
issues which have impacted and/or may
impact the issuer and the actions taken to
manage them.

FHABTEM WA ERTANEX
RARAERARE RE - DA N R R R 35 L A R T £
HRE178 °

—E—

— ==

A.3 The environment and
natural resources

ABRRENBAER

A.3 The environment and
natural resources

ASRRENBARER

A.4 Climate change
A4 RIRE L

A.4 Climate change
A4RIRE L
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Subject areas, aspects, Description Relevant section in the ESG
general disclosures and KPIs report/Declaration
TEHR - EBEE —REER #HH RE HBRERBENIER
BRERER EH B

Aspect B1: Employment

BEBl: &R

General Disclosure Information on: B.1 Employment and labour
—M IR EE ERAFMRARE  BERSA  TIERKZK - practices

RE - FEHRE 20 REBRARE BIEERIRBIER
ESFEPSEERIEDE

(@ the policies; and

BE R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.
BTHBETABEAXENHEBERE
RRBIBERS

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, age group and B.1 Employment and labour
FRENIEEB A geographical region. practices — (i) Employment —
BRI FEcAER MR B SHIESEE - Total employees
BI1RERLTIELR—()ER—

EEHRH
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group B.1 Employment and labour
AR EWIEIZB1.2 and geographical region. practices — (i) Employment —
BRI - TR M @B DMEERA  Total employees
b3 o BIEBERELITER—
VERE— B8
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. B.1 Employment and labour
BAHRENIEEB2.2 TERTKE - practices — (i) Employee health
and safety
BlRERL TER—(i)EE
REMEZ 2
KPIB2.3 Description of occupational health and B.1 Employment and labour
BB NIEEB2.3 safety measures adopted, and how they are  practices — (i) Employee health
implemented and monitored. and safety
BTIRERZZENE  ARWMAAITERE BIEEBRESIEHR—(i)EES
B UL S o fEEMZ 2
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RIR - HERERKRE

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE EBEEH —REER
BRERER

Description

#

o

Relevant section in the ESG
report/Declaration

BRI HERERRENIEE
=41

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EEB2: BEHZE
General Disclosure

— BB

KPI B2.1
MRERIREB21 (ERRKE)

Information on:

EBRELTE THERERRERESE 2B
RUBE

(@ the policies; and
BE &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and

B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (i) Employee health
and safety
BAEMBRS TEH—
EEREZ S

(i) 2 B

regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.
BTHBETABEAXENEBEE
KRG E R o

Number and rate of work-related fatalities.
B TR R T M A B R L K o

Aspect B3: Development and Training

EBHEB3: ¥EREI
General Disclosure

—RIE

KPI B3.1
RSB AR B3

KPI B3.2
FASEAE M 515 B3.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge
and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.
BERRAEERITIERE & HH R AL
BVBUR - fIIFDIEE) -

Percentage of employees trained by gender
and employee category.

wERIREBERIEDNEIBEB DL

Average training hours completed by gender
and employee category.
1L R R e B BIEI 5
Bl P I B B o

BEREETRR

—Eq-=F

= =

B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (i) Employee health
and safety
BlEBREEIER—
RERERTS

(iyE B

B.1 Employment and labour

practices — (iv) Development

and training

B 1EEREIEHR—
|:| F'Jll

(iv) & &

B.1 Employment and labour

practices — (iv) Development

and training

BlERBLESILER—
=l

(iv) B &

B.1 Employment and labour

practices — (iv) Development

and training

BlEBASILER—
=gl

(iv) B &
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B HEREARE

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE EBEEH —REER
BRERER

Description

o
B
=

Relevant section in the ESG
report/Declaration

BRI HERERRENIEE
=41

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEB4 : TR

General Disclosure

—RERE

KPI B4.1
RS 45 5 1E B4 A

KPI B4.2
FARAE M 515 B4.2

88

Information on:
BRI E TGS T -
(@ the policies; and
B Rk

compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to preventing child
and forced labour.
BTHBETABERZENHERERE
NAROIH)E# o

Description of measures to review
employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.

iR ET B R IE (I A b LA o & T K58
BT -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered.

IR B IR ARG S E R A BB S PTER
R B
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practices — (i) Employment
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B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (i) Employment
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practices — (i) Employment
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RE - HERERKRE

Subject areas, aspects, Description Relevant section in the ESG
general disclosures and KPIs report/Declaration

TEHR EBEE —REER #HH RE HBRERBENIER
BRERER EH B

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEB5 : tEHEEE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and B.2 Operating practices —

— M= social risks of the supply chain. (i) Supply chain management
ERHEENRIE R GRAMRBUER - B2RREER—()HEEERE

KPI B5.1 Geographical locations of major suppliers. B.2 Operating practices —

A NIE1EB5.1 FEHERNMENLE - (i) Supply chain management

B2EERMR () EEEE

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging  B.2 Operating practices —
FASRAENIEIEBS.2 suppliers. (i) Supply chain management
Hit B A EEED - B2 B —()EEEE
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify B.2 Operating practices —
AR A NIEIEBS.3 environmental and social risks along the () Supply chain management

supply chain, and how they are implemented B.2 & & &8 — () (L FE g8 & 18
and monitored.

375 B 2 R 4 PR R B (EIR BT A IR IR KAt

SRBMED - LARABBERITRERFE -

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote B.2 Operating practices — (i)
AR A NIEIEBS.4 environmentally preferable products and Supply chain management
services when selecting suppliers, and how — B.2 & & 5 — ()L fEHE &2
they are implemented and monitored.
HRTEREHEIRREREZARRERR
RS EVIE B - LA RARREENIT REER 750A »
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Subject areas, aspects, Description
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHR - EBEE —REER #HH
BRERER

Relevant section in the ESG
report/Declaration

BRI HERERRENIEE
=41

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EmB6: EmEE

General Disclosure Information on:

— MR BHFTRMERIRBOERERZ S  BE

BERALBEE A RBRT AR

(@ the policies; and
BR - &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to health
and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of
redress

STHEITAGBEATENEBER
&ﬁ%%éﬂ
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped
B8 4E NIE1E B6.1 subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.
EEHCDEXERMBEPRL 2 HEERE

BimEREBED -

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related

B IA B IZEB6.2 complaints received and how they are dealt
with.
BEREBANERRREOIRFEE U REY
Tk e

KPI B6.3
FARAE M I515B6.3

Description of practices relating to observing
and protecting intellectual property rights.

T B A N AR IE AN AR R RO IB )

KPI B6.4
FAR A M 1515 B6.4

Description of quality assurance process and
recall procedures.
WG EmTBERERBKER -

KPI B6.5
RARAE M I515B6.5

Description of consumer data protection
and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
il H B & ERHMRIE RFLRBECR
BRITRERTE -

* AR 4
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B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Product responsibility
B2 BH—()ERET

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Product responsibility
B2EEEHR—(\ERET

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Product responsibility
B2REER—(NEmBE

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Product responsibility
B2REER —(NEmBE

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Product responsibility
BokEBH—(\EMmEE

B.2 Operating practices —
(iv) Data protection and
privacy policy
B2 EER —
LR R

(iv) B RHRE X
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RE-HERER

Subject areas, aspects,

general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE EBEEH —REER

BEARIER

Description

B
=1

H

Relevant section in the ESG

report/Declaration

R HERERRENER

-0 1

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

EBEB7 : RES
General Disclosure
— M=

KPI B7.1
BSR4 B BT 1

KPI B7.2
AR B IEIEBT7.2

KPI B7.3
FABIEIEIRBT.3

Information on:

BRAM LA - R - MEFROTRER

(@ the policies; and
BUR &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BTHBETABERZENHERERE
NAROIH)E# o

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer
or its employees during the reporting period
and the outcomes of the cases.
RBERRNEETASIEBREREYER
EROBESFARGHOEE RFRER -

Description of preventive measures and how
they are implemented and monitored.
Ay &5 15 bt S BB IRAR T - LA MBI BT
RERT A -

Description of anti-corruption training
provided to directors and staff.
HmEERE IRHIREREI -

—E—

—= =

B.2 Operating practices —
(iil) Anti-corruption
B2RETER (i) REF

B.2 Operating practices —
(iii) Anti-corruption
B2&REER (i) RER

B.2 Operating practices —
(iii) Anti-corruption
B2 EHR (i) RERE

B.2 Operating practices —
(iii) Anti-corruption
B2REER (I RER
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Subject areas, aspects, Description
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHR - EBEE —REER #HH
BRERER

=

Relevant section in the ESG
report/Declaration

BRI HERERRENIEE
=41

Aspect B8: Community Investment

EEBS: HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to
—RERE understand the needs of the communities

where the issuer operates and to ensure

its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

BB RBER T BT NS BRI
EFEZMEREERETHGERIMENER

BB o
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
78245 IE1E B8.1 environmental concerns, labour needs,

health, culture, sport).
HIEREE (PIHE  RERE 4T
B REE UL BE) ©

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time)
R IE IBIZEBS.2 to the focus area.
FETHBMBAER (NS ENERE) -
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHESE

The directors present to the shareholders the annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020.

Principal activities

The Group is an ODM mobile phone supplier based in the PRC,
primarily engaged in research and development, designing,
manufacturing and sale of mobile phones, PCBAs for mobile
phones and loT related products, targeting emerging markets.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement”, “Management and Discussion and Analysis”,
“Corporate Governance Report”, “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” and “Financial Summary” of this annual
report.

Principal risk factors and uncertainties

The following sets out the principal risks and uncertainties
encountered by the Group in its business operations:

Rapid technological changes

The Group operates in the mobile phone industry characterised
by rapid technological changes with short product life cycle, and
the Group may not be able to maintain its revenue growth and
any delay by us in rolling out new and competitive mobile phones
will adversely affect its financial performance.

Thin net profit margin

The Group has a relatively thin net profit margin and hence are
highly sensitive to any unfavorable change in the cost of sales,
selling price and sales volume.

Concentration of customers

The Group has a concentration of customers and any decrease
or loss of business from these major customers could adversely
and substantially affect its business operations and financial
conditions.

EEMRRREBE_ZT_ZTF+ A
=+ RUEFENFRREEZGREMBRE -
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BRERE M BRMRMIES9 -
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AEEBE-_T-EF+ A=+ —ALF
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Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials
Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials may affect the Group’s
cost of sales and adversely affect its business operations and
profitability.

Future prospect and development

The Group’s business growth is expected to be driven by (i) the
huge population and the increasing disposable income of the
Group’s target sales locations; (ii) increasing demand for loT
products; and (i) the roll-out of 5G telecommunication network.
In order to capture the potential market opportunities, the
Group will continue to expand its production capacity, enhance
its research and development capability, enrich its product
portfolio and increase its sales and marketing effort to diversify its
geographical locations.

Major suppliers and customers

During the year ended 31 December 2020, sales to the Group’s
largest customer and five largest customers accounted for
23.4% and 49.2% (2019: 18.4% and 70.8%) of the total revenue,
respectively.

On the other hand, purchases from the Group’s largest supplier
and the five largest suppliers during the year ended 31 December
2020 accounted for approximately 15.2% and 48.5% (2019:
13.5% and 49.9%) of the total purchases, respectively.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Key relationships with employees,
customers and suppliers

Maintaining good relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers is critical to the Group’s business success. The Group
creates a decent working environment for its employees, where
they can work comfortably and achieve a work life balance. The
Group rewards its employees based on their performance and
also provides training to enhance their skills and knowledge. No
strikes and cases of fatality due to workplace accidents are found
in the reporting period under review.
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The Group believes that it is important to listen to customers’
needs and feedbacks on its products in order to maintain
sustainable relationship with customers. The Group collects such
information from various channels and performs detailed analysis
on how to improve existing products and develop new products
that would satisfy its customers.

The Group encompasses working relationships with suppliers to
meet our customers’ needs in an effective and efficient manner.
The departments work closely to make sure the tendering and
procurement process is conducted in an open, fair and just
manner.

Compliance with laws and regulations

During the year ended 31 December 2020, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Group has complied with all the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group. The Group also complied with () the requirements
under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules
and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”) for the
disclosure of information and corporate governance; and (i) the
ordinances relating to occupational safety for the interest of its
employees.

Business activities in countries subject to
international sanctions

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
Group did not sell any products to countries that are subject
to international sanctions. The Group would not enter into any
transactions to finance or facilitate, directly or indirectly, activities
or business with, or for the benefit of, the countries subject to
international sanctions or sanctioned persons where this would
be in breach of the international sanctions.

The Directors believe that the Group has a reasonably adequate
and effective internal control framework to continue to assist the
Group in identifying and monitoring any material risk relating to
international sanctions laws so as to protect the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders.
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Environmental policy and social
responsibility

The Group understands the importance of environmental
sustainability and protection and has adopted policies on
pollution prevention, preservation of natural resources and
adherence to environmental laws and regulations. Please refer to
the ESG Report on pages 58 to 92 for details of the Group’s ESG
performance.

Results and dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
and the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on page 123. The
directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020
are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Closure of the register of members

For the purposes of determining the shareholders’ eligibility to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting to
be held on 28 May 2021 (Friday), the register of members of
the Company will be closed from 25 May 2021 (Tuesday) to 28
May 2021 (Friday), both days inclusive. The latest time to lodge
transfer documents for registration will be at 4:30 p.m. on 24 May
2021 (Monday). During the above closure period, no transfer of
shares will be registered. To be eligible to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on 24 May
2021 (Monday).

Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro
rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, redemption or sale of listed
securities of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.

Reserves and distributable reserves

The movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of this annual report. The
distributable reserves of the Company are set out in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Tax relief and exemption

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief or exemption
available to the shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.
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Charitable donations

The Group did not make any donation during the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB nil).

Management contracts

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company or its
subsidiaries were entered into or existed.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2020 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Chengjun (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Xiong Bin (Vice-chairman)

Mr. Li Hongxing

Mr. Guo Qinglin

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Hung Wai Man

Mr. Wong Kwan Kit

Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen

Ms. Tseng Chin |

In accordance with article 109(a) of the Company’s articles of
association, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third, shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every
Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. The Company
at the general meeting at which a Director retires may fill the
vacated office.
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In accordance with article 113 of the Company’s articles of
association, the Board shall have power from time to time and at
any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional Director, provided that the number
of Directors so appointed shall not exceed the maximum number
determined from time to time by the shareholders in general
meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting of
the Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then
be eligible for re-election. Any Director appointed under this
article shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors
or the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation at an
annual general meeting.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation as required by
the Company’s articles of association, and the code provisions of
CG Code.

In accordance with 109(a) of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Guo Qinglin, Mr. Wong Kwan Kit and Mr. Lu
Brian Yong Chen will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

Biographical details of directors and senior
management

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 27 to 34 of this annual report.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.
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Emoluments of directors and senior
management and five highest paid
individuals

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and senior
management and the five highest paid individuals of the Group
are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report. The remuneration of the senior management
of the Group for the reporting period falls within the following
band:

Remuneration band

B <& =

EE SAREBAERITERSH
ATHE =

AEREE SRAEBABRAEZRSFA
ITHMEFREREAFREAMBHERME
12-BEHARN AKESREEABNMHE
MFIATERE :

Number of senior management
SREEAEBHE

Up to RMB1,000,000
% AR 1,000,000 70

Directors’ service contracts

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing
on the Listing Date, until terminated by enter party giving not less
than three months’ notice in writing to the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered
into an appointment letter with the Company for a term of three
years commencing on Listing Date, until terminated by either
party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the
other.

Apart from the foregoing, no Directors proposed for re-election at
the AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
or compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Permitted indemnity provision

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, every
Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities (to the fullest extent
permitted by the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands) which
he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company
has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group.
As of the date of this annual report, such insurance coverage is
currently in force for the benefit of the Directors.

Directors’ and chief executive’s interests
and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures

As at 31 December 2020, interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares and
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO, which have been notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or have been
entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
are as follows:

EEFRNRERX
RIFEARFAMERZMAA  SEZA (EF=
BHERARDAER TEAR) NI BARTH
BEEMELBEEN ST ABRNAEIE
REBEEEBUAARAREERLNRE K
RANBAEBEERSRBERFRAED
EENSEBEEERR RAFREM A
EEMmRENRRES -

EERBEITRAERRG - HE
BROORBESFZEBRKXE

RZZB_ZEF+_A=+—B B=k&nm
TTBRABRARARHEMBEER (E&RESH
KERERGIZEXVER) BBty - R RE
THEERBESMPEROIFXVEET7 K8
MAMGARE MR ER AR (B
RIEZZLPEHRIIBRIGRE FRRS
BB ERLRR) IRBESF L RERDIE
352 RA AN R AT E W E RO M AR e BOR
B SRREBEFRESTRAMNEG AN QA MR
MR SOAR AT

Interest in the Company RERT] 2=
Percentage of
shareholding in
Number of the Company
Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest shares held RERBER
BEENR B Rt E BREE BatE
(Note 1) (Approximate)
(Krat 1) (BE47)
Mr. Li Chengjun (“Mr. Li”) (Note 2) Founder of a discretionary trust 369,967,204 (L) 37.0%
FERERE(FEE]D) Hit2) RREEFAIPA
Mr. Xiong Bin (“Mr. Xiong”) (Note 3) Founder of a discretionary trust 305,032,256 (L) 30.5%
REW A ([BREHED) (BaE3) RREEFAIPA
Mr. Li Hongxing (Note 4) Share option 9,000,000 (L) 0.90%
T E R (HiE4) B
Mr. Guo Qinglin (Note 5) Share option 3,500,000 (L) 0.35%

BEMEE (Fits) FE R
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Notes:

The letter “L” denotes long position of the shares.

Leap Elite Limited is legally owned as to 100% by Mr. Li for the benefit of
the beneficiaries of the family trust found by himself. Accordingly, Mr. Li is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Leap Elite Limited pursuant to
the SFO.

Beyond Innovation Limited is legally owned as to 100% by Mr. Xiong for the
benefit of the beneficiaries of the family trust found by himself. Accordingly,
Mr. Xiong is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Beyond
Innovation Limited pursuant to the SFO.

The personal interest of Mr. Li Hongxing represents the interest in 9,000,000
underlying shares in respect of the share options granted by the Company,
the details of which are stated in the section headed “Share option scheme”
below.

The personal interest of Mr. Guo Qinglin represents the interest in 3,500,000
underlying shares in respect of the share options granted by the Company,
the details of which are stated in the section headed “Share option scheme”
below.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company had registered any interests or short positions
in any shares and underlying shares in, and debentures of, the
Company or any associated corporations as at 31 December
2020, as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code.
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Arrangement for directors to purchase
shares or debentures

Saved as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2020 were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Director of the Company or their
respective spouses or minor children, or were such rights
exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures)
of the Company or any other body corporate.

Substantial shareholders’ and others’
interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares of the company

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2020,
the following corporation/persons (other than the interests of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company as disclosed
above) had interests of 5% or more in the issued shares which
fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
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Percentage of
shareholding in
Number of the Company
Name Capacity/nature of interest shares held REDBREFR
2% 5/ BmtE BREEB Bt
(Note 1) (Approximate)
(st 1) (#49)

Leap Elite Limited Beneficial owner 369,967,204 (L) 37.0%

VEERAF BEamiEm

Beyond Innovation Limited Beneficial owner 305,032,256 (L) 30.5%

B BR AR Bk

Ms. Sui Rongmei (Note 2) Interest of spouse 369,967,204 (L) 37.0%

PE Rtz (ffat2) B B &

Ms. Yan Xue (Note 3) Interest of spouse 305,032,256 (L) 30.5%

BEz+(Hit3) B B e

JZ Capital Limited (Note 4) Beneficial owner 75,000,540 (L) 7.5%

JZ Capital Limited (#73%4) BEatEar

Mr. Ko Hin Ting, James (Note 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 75,000,540 (L) 7.5%

SEEL A (HiE4) R EE R

Ms. Chu Wing Yee, Vaneese (Note 5) Interest of spouse 75,000,540 (L) 7.5%

Kikgzz+ (f7aEs) B B &

Notes: /;/74 E_I,L .

1. The letter “L” denotes long position of the shares. 1. FEILIRKRRROPHEE -

2. Ms. Sui Rongmei is the spouse of Mr. Li Chengjun. By virtue of the SFO, 2. [BRELZTATEAEREZRE BEZSLBE
she is deemed to be interested in the same number of shares held by Mr. Li B0 MR ANEATRERFRARBE B KRN T
Chengjun. HHER -

3. Ms. Yan Xue is the spouse of Mr. Xiong Bin. By virtue of the SFO, she is 3. BSLtAEWEEZIE - BIEE5RBEE
deemed to be interested in the same number of shares held by Mr. Xiong AR B RRW S EFTIS BRI BB RO P A s -
Bin.

4. JZ Capital is owned as to 99% by Mr. Ko Hin Ting, James. As such, Mr. Ko 4. JZ Capital A S #FEE 5 £ B 99% #E 25  E Itk - 1R
Hin Ting, James is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by JZ Capital BEHREERA - S E KX EHR /R JIZ Capital
Limited pursuant to the SFO. Limited PTFFAR D R HE B 1 %5 ©

5. Ms. Chu Wing Yee, Vaneese is the spouse of Mr. Ko Hin Ting, James. As 5.  SKikfEL T ASEEXEZIE - Bt - BIEZEALR

such, Ms. Chu Wing Yee, Vaneese is deemed or taken to be interested in the
Shares in which Ko Hin Ting, James is interested pursuant to the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the
Company has not been notified of any other relevant interests or
short positions in the issued share capital of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.

Directors’ interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No Director or his/her connected entity has or had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its parent company was a party subsisting during
or at the end of the year ended 31 December 2020.

Directors’ and controlling shareholders’
interest in competing business

Apart from the Group’s business, none of the Directors, the
Controlling Shareholders (including Mr. Li, Leap Elite Limited, Mr.
Xiong and Beyond Innovation Limited) or any of their respective
close associates was engaged in or had any interest in any
business that competes or may compete with the principal
business of the Group, which would require disclosure under
Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules. or has any other conflict of interest
with the Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up
to the date of this report.

Share option scheme

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 18 October 2019 (the “Adoption
Date”), which become effective on the Listing Date. The purpose
of which is to motivate the eligible participants to optimise their
future contributions to the Group and/or to reward them for their
past contributions, to attract and retain or otherwise maintain
on-going relationships with such participants who are significant
to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
performance, growth or success of the Group.
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The eligible participants include any full-time or part-time
employees, executives or officers, directors, advisers,
consultants, suppliers, customers and agents of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries; and such other persons who, in the sole
opinion of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to the
Group.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme,
the maximum numbers of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes shall not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at the Listing Date (i.e. 100,000,000 shares)
unless approved by the shareholders of the Company. Such limit
also represented 10% of the of the total issued shares of the
Company as at the date of this annual report.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in general
meeting in the manner stipulated in the Listing Rules, the
maximum entitlement for each eligible participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) under the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1%
of the total number of shares in issue.

An option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted
by the grantee and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer
document constituting acceptance of the options duly signed by
the grantee, together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is
received by the Company on or before the relevant acceptance
date.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which
the option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to
the expiry of ten years from that date. The minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised will be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, save that no
option may be exercised more than ten years after it has been
granted.
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The exercise price of share option granted under the Share
Option Scheme shall be a price solely determined by the Board
and shall be at least highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of grant of the option; (b) the average of the closing prices
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant of the option; and (c) the nominal value of a share.

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting
or by the Directors, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years from the Adoption Date. As
at 31 December 2020, the remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme was approximately 8 years and 9.5 months.

For further details on the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme, please refer to the paragraph headed “Statutory and
General Information — Other Information — 1. Share Option
Scheme” in Appendix IV to the Prospectus.

RIEBREF SR ENBRETEERAHE
S RMBET BRAEZELRTIEEE
TERSE (@B ERE B R
RTEARERMBOETE: OEREY
A AELSEXARNRBIMERRER
PreyFg W mE « (o) BinmE1(E

BRIFRD AL ARRAS KL HMEERATRL -
BHBEE S B XA B HEI0FHARAS
ERBER - R-_ZE_FEF+_A=+t—H B
BT EINFRFRNORSFETILMEA -

EURBEREAIIZHRINFRE F2HA
BRERMBEMNDEER —REFM-HEMER -
1. ERERT S — B o

—Z 4% Sprocomm Intelligence Limited 107



DIRECTORS® REPORT

EEEHRES

() Outstanding options

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
granted 69,100,000 share options and no share options
were exercised and 3,300,000 share options lapsed. Details
of the Company’s share options from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020 are as follows:

() EMERITENERE
BE-_T-_TFT-_A=+—ALFE"
KA A% H 69,100,000 17 B A% 42 - 1

BEXMe _E-_TF—F—HE_T—
TEE+_A=+—HBRAQ A ERESN

HBEWT
Outstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof Outstanding
asat share share share asat
1 January options options options 31 December
Dateof grant ~ Exercise price Vestingperiod  Exercise period 2020 granted  exercised [apsed 2020
pmt 22
igm 22 =
-A-A ERH Bfiff  B&M  =t-B
BB | ] iid WATE BREHE BREHR BREZE  HAOR
Category 1: Directors
LY
Mr. Li Hongxing
FERE
Tranche 1 14Api 2020 HKS051 14 Apri 202010 1 July 2021 1o - 2,700,000 - - 2,700,000
30June 2021 13 Apri 2025
-8 ZECRE 051R a3 i a3
EATEA MATMAEZ  tA-RE
“3-F “ECnf
~AZTH mAT=H
Tranche 2 14Api 2020 HKS051 14 Apri 202010 1 July 202210 - 2,700,000 - - 2,700,000
30June2022 13 Apri 2025
28 ZECRE 051R a3 ZFCC
EATEA MATMAEZ  tA-RE
St “ECnf
~AZTH MAT=H
Tranche 3 14Api 2020 HKS051 14 Apri 202010 1 July 202310 3,600,000 - - 3,600,000
30June2023 13 Apri 2025
-5 ZECRE 051R a3 I Sy
EATEA MATMAZ  tA-RZE
“ECCE S
~AZTH mAT=H
Subtotal - 9,000,000 - - 9,000,000
i
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Outstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof Outstanding
asat share share share asat
1 January options options options 31 December
Dateof grant ~ Exercise price  Vesting period  Exercise period 2020 granted  exercised lapsed 2020
H-8-%%
R-B-%F =
-A-A BRH [E£ik:d Bx¥  =t-H
RLES %@ R L) AR BREHE BREHE BRE¥R HAGE
Mr. Guo Qinglin
IERE
Tranche 1 14702020 HK$0.51 14 April 202010 1 July 2021 1o - 1,050,000 - - 1,060,000
30June 2021 13 Apri 2025
E ZECEF 051ER “TCEF Ik S 3
mATEA MAE+BAE  tA-HE
Tk ZEInf
~AZTA mA+=H
Tranche 2 14702020 HK$0.51 14 April 202010 1 July 202210 - 1,050,000 - - 1,060,000
30June2022 13 Apri 2025
£28 Z3C%E 051%T “I-%F “EoCE
mATEA MAE+BAE  tA-HE
ZBIC “EonE
~AZTA mA+=H
Tranche 14702020 HK$0.51 14 April 202010 1 July 202810 - 1,400,000 - - 1,400,000
30June2023 13 Apri 2025
£=5 ZECEF 05T “ZC%F Ik Jnit 3
mATEA MAE+BAE  tA-HE
“TICE ZEIRf
~AZTA mA+=H
Subtotal - 3500000 - - 3500000
it
—T—TEF% Sprocomm Inteligence Limited 109

—= =



DIRECTORS® REPORT

EEEREE
Outstanding ~ Numberof ~ Numberof ~ Numberof Outstanding
as at share share share as at
1 January options options options 31 December
Dateof grant  Exercise price  Vesting period  Exercise period 2020 granted  exercised lapsed 2020
R-B-%F
It St 33 T8
-R-H ERH 2fi Bx¥  =t-H
RAAH 188 BEH fil:E: HATE EREHE BREHAE BREZE HATE
Category 2: Employees
£H2: B&
Tranche 1 14 April 2020 HK$0.51 14 April2020t0 1 July 2021 to - 16,980,000 - (990,000 15,990,000
30 June 2021 13 April 2025
-8 Z3C%E 0517 “B-FE kSl 3
MATHA MAE+BAE  tA-HE
IR “E-f
~AZTH mAT=H
Tranche 2 14 April 2020 HK$0.51 14 April 202010 1 July 2022 to - 16,980,000 - (990,000 15,990,000
30 June 2022 13 April 2025
£28 Z3C%E 0517 “B-%E Sl
MATHA MAE+BAE  tA-HE
“E-- —“E-7%
~AZTH mAT=H
Tranche 3 14 April 2020 HK$0.51 14 April 202010 1 July 20230 - 22,640,000 - (1,320,000 21,320,000
30 June 2023 13 April 2025
£=8 Z3C%E 0517 “B-%E kgt
MATHA MAE+BAE  tA-HE
- St “E-RE
~AZTH mAT=H
Subtotal - 56,600,000 - (3300000 53,300,000
bt
Total 66,800,000 69,100,000 - (3,300,000) 65,800,000
@it
As at the date of this annual report, the number of shares RAFERBE BIEBERESTS AR
of the Company available for issue under the Share Option AR EMFT B M ARITHE 2 B EEITE
Scheme upon the exercise of all above outstanding share R A] it 8577 2 B 10 8 B /& 65,800,000 %
options was 65,800,000, representing 6.58% of the total HARRRIEEHITRD B 206.58% °

issued shares of the Company.

1 1 0 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2020



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRESE

(ii) Valuation of share options

(i) BRENGE

(1) The following significant assumptions were used to (1) ZEBREZAFEDERA-_EAH
derive the fair value of the share options using the BEEENX UFEFATIEZRE
Binominal Options pricing model: 5

Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3
£—H £ E=H
Date of grant 14 April 2020 14 April 2020 14 April 2020
i H —E-FF —T-EF —ET-EF
A+ A rMA+mA /MA+mHAE
Fair value at grant date HK$0.211 HK$0.220 HK$0.227
REHBEATE 0.2113% T 0.22078 7T 0.227 7% T
Share price HK$0.51 HK$0.51 HK$0.51
P& 1B 0.517% 7T 0.5187T 0.51 %7
Exercise price HK$0.51 HK$0.51 HK$0.51
TEE 0.517% 7L 0.51%87T 0.51 87T
Expected volatility 53.00% 53.00% 53.00%
TE AR 18
Expected life 5 years 5 years 5 years
FEETFHA 54 54 54
Exercise period 1 July 2021 to 1 July 2022 to 1 July 2023 to
13 April 2025 13 April 2025 13 April 2025
1TEHER —T_-_—F —T_—F —E=F
+tHA—H= +tA—HB=% tA—H%
ZTRHF —ZERF —ERF
MA+=H MA+=H MA+=H
Risk-free rate 0.58% 0.58% 0.60%
mRE e xR
Expected dividend yield - - -
EEHR B X
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(2) Expected volatility was determined by calculating the
historical volatility of the price of listed companies
with businesses similar to the Group. The expected
dividend yield is determined by the directors based on
the expected future performance and dividend policy
of the Group.

(8) No share-based payment expense was recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil) in
relation to share options granted by the Company as
the performance condition was not satisfied.

Connected transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has not
entered into or conducted any connected transactions, which
were subject to the reporting, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirements as required under the
Listing Rules.

Related party transactions

Details of the Group’s related party transactions during the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of these related party
transactions are connected transactions which are subject
to the reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the
company’s listed securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Corporate governance practices

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

Equity-linked agreements

Other than the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained a public float of no less than 25% of
the issued shares for the year ended 31 December 2020 and up
to the date of this report.

Interest of compliance adviser

In accordance with Rule 3A.19 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed Dakin Capital Limited (“Dakin Capital”) to be
the compliance adviser. Dakin Capital, being the sponsor of the
Company in relation to the Listing, has declared its independence
pursuant to Rule 3A.07 of the Listing Rules. Save as provided for
in relation to the share offer and/or disclosed in the Prospectus,
neither Dakin Capital nor any of its associates and none of the
directors or employees of Dakin Capital who have been involved
in providing advice to the Company as the sponsor, has or may,
as a result of the share offer, have any interest in any securities
of the Company or any other companies of the Group (including
options or rights to subscribe for such securities).

Review of audited annual results

The Company’s audited annual results for the year ended 31
December 2020 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Model code for securities transactions by
directors of listed issuers

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions. All Directors of the Company have
confirmed that, following specific enquiry by the Company, they
have compiled with the required standard set out in the Model
Code for the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date
of the report.

Use of proceeds from the listing

Details of the use of the proceeds from the Listing are set out on
pages 24 to 26 of this annual report.

EALNRERE
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Auditor

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, the auditor of the Company,
will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM of the
Company and be eligible to offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution will be submitted to the AGM to be held on 28 May
2021 to seek Shareholders’ approval on the appointment of
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as the Company’s auditor until
the conclusion of the next AGM and to authorise the Board to fix

their remuneration.

By order of the Board
Sprocomm Intelligence Limited
Mr. Li Chengjun

Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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fekspda

Shine‘ZOan

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SPROCOMM INTELLIGENCE LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sprocomm Intelligence Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 123 to 220, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”) and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Expected credit loss (“ECL”) of trade and
bills receivables

Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies in Note 3.

The key audit matter
HRESEE

B EWRERERRE 2 EY
FEFBR(REEEFSE]D
ELNEAMBRRMEORMFINE;
B o

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERETPOMEEEBEE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had trade and bills
receivables of RMB339,218,000, representing 32% of the
Group’s total current assets.

Loss allowance for trade and bills receivables is estimated
based on lifetime expected credit losses (‘ECL”) model, which is
estimated based on historical credit loss experience and forward-
looking information at the end of the reporting period.

We have identified impairment of trade and bills receivables
as a key audit matter because the impairment assessment of
trade receivables involved a significant degree of management
estimation and may be subject to management bias.

R-ZE-FFE+=-_A=+—H ' &
W A AR #339,218,000T * 16 &
32% °

SEHE HRUIALE
ERERPEEREN

BHRKFAREEZEREL2YAMEESE(AHEFE
BE) R G EERE MRAGEERNENREHNR
MBTEEBRERIIBEEENBERSL -

MRE S EYFEBEN G RERER G R EEE R
HRRE EFCREZREFARERRERORERZ RS
—HBRETER -

Our procedures were designed to review the
management’s judgement and estimates used
in assessment process and challenge the
reasonableness of inputs and assumptions
used in estimating the ECL of trade and bills
receivables.

We obtained an understanding of how the ECL
of trade and bills receivables were assessed by
the management.

We have challenged management’s assumption
and judgement in determining ECL on trade and
bills receivables as at 31 December 2020, the
reasonableness of management’s grouping of
the trade debtors in the provision matrix, and
the basis of expected credit loss rates applied.

We have tested, on sample basis, payment
history, past due status of the trade and bills
receivables, and the settlements subsequent to
the end of the reporting period.
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Valuation on inventories

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies in Note 3.

The key audit matter
HRESBR

FEME

FLHEEMBERRME 18 RMEINE
R °

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEREFPOMNEEMEBSE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had inventories of
approximately RMB319,386,000, which was significant to the
Group’s total current assets.

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit matter
due to the use of judgements in identifying obsolete and slow
moving inventories and determining the net realisable value which
are based on conditions and the marketability of the inventories.

R-_ZE-_TF+_A=+—H EBEEENEFEEYARE
319,386,000 T ' ¥ BEEEMNRBEEBLEZHEE -

BEEREEATRSERESFFTH  SHRHERREMNSH
FE URBRBEFEGRGLEHIEENEZ2RFERSER
#:l [

o

@
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Our audit procedures were designed to evaluate
management’s assessment of the conditions
and the marketability of the obsolete and slow
moving inventories and identify any valuation risk
of inventories.

We have assessed the net realisable value and
utilisation of inventories subsequent to the end
of the reporting period and discussed with the
management in respect of the adequacy of the
allowance made by the management based on
subsequent usage and sales, ageing analysis
and current market conditions. We have
challenged the assumptions and judgements
used by the management by assessing the
reliability of the management’s past estimates.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors of the Company
and the Audit Committee for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors of the
Company determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Chuen Fai.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Chuen Fai

Practising Certificate Number: P0O5589

Hong Kong
26 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeBREkEMEEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E —E —FF+ A =+—HIF)ZF

2020 2019
ot et ZE-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR® T AREBT R
Revenue Wz 5 2,182,038 3,117,648
Cost of sales SHER AR (1,988,615) (2,890,495)
Gross profit EF 193,423 227,153
Other gains and income H b U 2 K U A 7 58,977 59,103
Selling expenses HERX (38,108) (41,756)
Administrative and other expenses 17 & E b 5d 5% (62,355) (76,203)
Research and development EEF
expenses (112,803) (111,923)
Finance costs MIEER 8 (5,483) (11,960)
Profit before tax B i A 0% 33,651 44,414
Income tax expenses RSt 9 (2,967) (6,651)
Profit for the year FRBEF 10 30,684 37,763
Other comprehensive income for the £ A £ b 2 [ M 25 -
year:
Item that may be reclassified BB 7 E R
subsequently to profit or loss #yIE H
Exchange difference arising on REBINEBEED
translating foreign operations & i =R 1,470 3,614
Total comprehensive income for FAEEW LT
the year 32,154 41,377
Profit (loss) attributable to: IAT&FEERT (BE)
Owners of the Company RKRABHEA A 30,879 38,998
Non-controlling interests FEf2E P e (195) (1,235)
30,684 37,763
Total comprehensive income ITEFEEEEN SRR
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEF =N 32,349 42,610
Non-controlling interests IR A (1995) (1,233)
32,154 41,377
Earnings per share P 22 )
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) AR E(ARES) 14 3.09 4.98
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR R

At 31 December 20200 R—FE —FF 1+ —-H=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M5 ARETx ARBFIT
Non-current Assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - B REE 15 139,564 127,913
Right-of-use assets FHRESE 16 7,007 17,345
Intangible assets | EE 17 6,233 6,391
Deferred tax asset BEIERIAE E 29 795 707
e e 153,599 152,356
Current Assets RBEE
Inventories FE 18 319,386 283,956
Trade and bills receivables B 5 W IE R EWRE 19 339,218 622,161
Financial assets at fair value through ¥ A F{EET AIBzH)
profit or loss TREE 21 - 285,650
Prepayments and other receivables  TE{< ZtI8 & H b & g 7038 20 101,673 73,995
Pledged bank deposits BEHIRITER 22 251,071 81,165
Restricted deposits R HI 7 23 16,210 =
Bank balances and cash RITEBEES 24 26,327 126,682
R, 1,053,885 1,473,609
Current Liabilities RBAE
Trade and bills payables BORNRIERENEE 25 591,972 876,707
Accruals and other payables FERTE A & E b B 5K08 26 84,585 115,641
Contract liabilities aHAaRE 26 93,317 63,331
Borrowings EEA 27 34,463 184,153
Lease liabilities HEARE 16 6,484 11,962
Deferred income EFEWA 28 6,012 5,228
Income tax payable JET TSR 4,907 5,151
. 8, 821,740 - 1,262,173
deewieaiesess AmRERE 232,145 AN
Total assets less current liabilites # & EFRE & & 385,744 363,792
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

=) N
RE AR R
At 31 December 2020 R —FE - FF+ - H=+—H
2020 2019
—2-FF —T-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M5 AR¥T T ARET T
Capital and Reserves EARR#E
Share capital f& A 30 8,945 8,945
Reserves B 31 324,391 292,042
Equity attributable to owners of the AN FI#EA AEIGHELS
Company 333,336 300,987
Non-controlling interests FEIZE R M 1,811 2,006
Total Equity EREE 335,147 302,993
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred income EFEWA 28 16,777 22,167
Deferred tax liability FERBAEG 29 14,596 10,846
Lease liabilities HEARE 16 169 5,682
Borrowings EEA 27 19,055 22,104
50,597 60,799
385,744 363,792

The consolidated financial statements on pages 123 to 220 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
26 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Li Chengjun
ZRE
Director

EZ

— —

F128E220 EHERAMBHRERER T =
FZAZTARREESSMERIRERZ
WAHTHNEFKRRE:

Xiong Bin
Director

EFE

—E-—F
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GAERBBE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B E —E— N F+ A =+—HIFZF

Atrbutable to owners of the Company

FATERARE
Non-
Share Shae Sttty Trandition Merger Other Retained controling
capital premium resene resenve resenve TeServes pofs— Sub-lotal Interests Total
Bx  ROEE  ERRR  BERR  AHER  AMEE  REEH Nt FhRER )
RMBOOO  RVBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RVBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBONO
ARBTT  ARMTR  ARETT  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETT  ARETR
ot 3) Mot 31f) Moo 31— (Note 31
(Hit30) (k) (s (ks
At 1 January 2019 RZE3-NE-A-H 5 - 10921 (6239 (26,74 86,445 a7.917 160,305 3567 163862
Proft(oss)for e year Emghl(58) - - - - - - 38998 399 (1235 378
Other comprehensiveincome. A 2 ElE
for the year
Echenge diferencearsng 1 E85 ERELH
on ransleing forsign EiEE
operations - - - 3612 - - - 3612 2 3614
Total comprehensiveincome.~ ER2ENA (%)
(expense) for the year g = = = 3612 - - 3998 42610 (1,233) H3m
lssuance of sheres upon globel - 2HREERETTR
offeing 208 109577 - - - - - 111814 - 111,814
Transaction costarbutableto EAIHRGENER S
issue of new shares RA - (13430) - - - - - (13435) - (13439)
Caplasaton ssue ERLE 6,703 (6,709 - - - - - - - -
Acouiston of non-contioling A SFERR %
nterests - - - - - (307) - (307) (318) (629)
Aopoprion tostettory ~ ERZEREE
reserve - - 5305 - - = (5,305) = = =
At31 December 2019 RZB-NETR
=t-A 8946 89,439 16,226 4620) (26,744 8,138 131,610 300,987 206 302,093
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # = —

Attributable to owners of the Company

—FEF A= —HIFE

—7—7

KAAERARG
Non-
Share Share  Stafutory  Translation Merger Other  Retained controling
capital ~ premium Reserve resene resene resenes profts ~ Sub-total interests Total
Bx  ROEE  fREE  BERE  AKER  EMRE  RERW Nt FERER it
RMB'000  RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB'000
ARBTRL  ARMTR ARYTR  ARBTR ARMIR  ARTR  ARBTR  ARMIR  ARETR  ARETR
Note 3 (Note 31f)) Note 1)) Mote 31/if)
W30 ) Wdsny (i)
At1 January 2020 R-3-8F-5-H 8945 89,439 16,226 (4621) (26,744) 86,138 131,610 300987 2,006 302,093
Proftoss)for e year Emgtl(ER) - - - - - - 30879 30879 (195 30684
Other comprehensive income. A 2 Bl
forthe year
Echange difeencearshgon A ERELY
transling foreign operations  EZ 8 - - - 1470 - - - 1470 - 1470
Total comprehensiveincome. - ER2HNE ()
(expense) for the year g - - - 1470 - - 30879 32,349 (195) 3,154
Aopopraion ostatvioy — ERZETRE
T6SEIe - - 6,312 - - - (6312 - - -
At31 December 2020 H-%2%%
+Zh=t-A 8945 89439 2,538 (3157) (26,744) 86,138 156,177 333,33 1811 Rs.147

—Eq-F

= —=
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
n‘/T\ Eﬁrﬁ/)lbi%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E —E - FF+ A =+—HIF/ZF

2020 2019
—Z2-%F —ENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®EF T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETD
Profit before tax B 56 AT 7 33,651 44,414
Adjustments for: AT EBEEL AR :
Finance costs W% ER 5,483 11,960
Government subsidies received B U B 47 B (29,209) (30,945)
Amortisation of government grant RIS 478 Bh 6 55 (6,010) (5,920)
Bank interest income IRITH BUA (4,229) (853)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and LEME - BEX
equipment R W E - (59)
Written off of property, plant and equipment MWEEmE - BRE R 95 -
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#H 932 728
Loss allowance recognised in respect of trade PLE 5 e W FRIE K UL
and bills receivables SEERNBREEE 2,170 1,733
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W BERZETE 18,778 16,745
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEESENE 11,259 8,498
Gain arising from change in fair value of BAFEFAER ([
financial assets at fair value through ATEFABED
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) ML REENFE
2y (7,305) (10,099)
Operating cash flows before working capital EEECEFRILE
changes ReneE 25,615 36,202
Increase in inventories FEEm (35,430) (99,664)
Decrease (increase) in trade and bills receivables H 5 e W IE K E IR
8 Cfd) 267,755 (203,681)
Increase in prepayment and other receivables TE AT 5RI8 K A b fE Uk
IR N (27,708) (4,988)
(Decrease) increase in trade and bill payables B 5 IS FRIA R ER
S Op ) 1240 (270,086) 280,102
(Decrease) increase in accruals and FERT B FA R H fh FE A
other payables RIE CRL) 180 (31,037) 8,199
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities BHEEREMNCRD) 30,288 (45,998)
Cash used in operations LEARS (40,603) (79,828)
Income tax refund (paid) BiR () TS 457 (1,017)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES R&EZEfARS T (40,146) (80,845)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

MERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 — & — &

Fr_A=1—HIFFE

2020 2019
—Z2-%F —ENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETH
Payments for property, plant and equipment HE - BE KRB (30,524) (13,325)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BE &
equipment BAEFE A - 77
Payments for intangible assets HEFEEENK (774) (1,933)
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BEERAFETABR
B & B & B (7,020) (1,003,131)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at HERAFEFAER
FVTPL B B E E TS RIA 299,975 1,023,060
Increase in restricted deposit 52 PR Il 77 508 o0 (16,210) =
Placement in pledged bank deposits HFABEHIRITFER (170,353) (57,806)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RIMEERRITER - 1,363
Repayment from a shareholder R BR - 1,076
Repayment from a former related company —E BT B R R 5K
(note 37(c)) (K1:£37(c)) - 5,774
Interest received 2 U8 4,229 853
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING RETHFRE (FFA)
ACTIVITIES REFEE 79,323 (43,992)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH
Government subsidies received B, YR T 48 B 30,613 30,945
Proceeds from issue of shares BTG TS RIA - 111,814
New borrowings raised MEEER 32,905 343,421
Repayment of borrowings EEER (184,153) (258,625)
Payments for capital element of lease liabilities HEBBEARDD TR (11,912 (8,199)
Interest paid BAIFE (5,483) (11,960)
Expenses directly attributable to issue of shares BITROEZEEMAX - (13,435)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING mEEE (FTR) e
ACTIVITIES REFE (138,030) 193,961
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRESEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS (R 2>) 18 hn i 88 (98,853) 69,124
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FHNRERALSEEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 126,682 56,118
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXSFFHHTE (1,502) 1,440
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRAESRASEEY
END OF YEAR 26,327 126,682
— T —TEEH Sprocomm Intelligence Limited 129
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 — & —FF+ -~ H=+—HIFF/Z

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as combined and revised) of the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 15 August 2018
and its shares have been listed on Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 13 November 2019 (the “Listing”). The ultimate
controlling parties are Mr. Li Chengjun and Mr. Xiong Bin (the
“Controlling Shareholders”).

The address of the registered office is located in P.O.
BOX 31119, Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay
Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands and the
principal place of business of the Company is located in
5D-506, F1.6 Block, Tianfa Building, Tianan Chegongmiao
Industrial Park, Futian District, Shenzhen, China.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are designing,
manufacturing and sales of mobile phones and printed
circuit board assembly (“PCBA”) and Internet of things (“loT”)
related products and investment holding. Particulars of the
subsidiaries have been set out in note 39.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for the financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss which have been measured
at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB
which is also the functional currency of the Company, and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousands, except
when otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bt 2 = F = FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRSs and the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA which are effective for the
Group’s financial year beginning 1 January 2020:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material

and HKAS 8

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

The application of the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRSs and the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material effect
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior periods and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR ERR MR

NN =

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8t 2 —FE —ZEF+ - H=+—HIFF/F

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendment to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective.

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and related Amendments®
Reference to Conceptual Framework®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between in Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation
5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements -
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause®

Property, plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use?
Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfiling a Contract®

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2!

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions*

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 cycle'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position of

the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 —FE —FF+ - H =+ —HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique.

Details of fair value measurement are explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statement of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and (i) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

L3R

e MR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #t 2 —FE —FF+ - H =+ —HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the
Company and non-controlling interest.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
entities of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries in preparing the consolidated
financial statements to bring their accounting policies in line
with the Group’s accounting policies.

Merger accounting for business combination
involving entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporates the
financial statements items of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if the combination had occurred from the date
when the combining entities or businesses first came under
the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are consolidated using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised
in respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in
the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of the
controlling party’s interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

L3R

e TSR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 —FE —FF+ - H =+ —HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Merger accounting for business combination
involving entities under common control
(Continued)

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income include the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the common control, where this
is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common
control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses
had been combined at the end of the previous reporting
period or when they first came under common control,
whichever is earlier.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
goods and services to customers at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services to a customer.
Specifically, the Group uses a five-step approach to
recognise revenue:

e  Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e  Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group
satisfies a performance obligation.

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligations is
transferred to customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

L3R

e MR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #t 2 —FE —FF+ - H =+ —HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

A performance obligation represents a good (or a bundle of
goods) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods that are
substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

e The Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

e The Group’ performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer, excludes amounts collected
on behalf of third parties, discounts and sales related taxes.

Sales of goods

The Group produces and sells mobile phones, PCBAs for
mobile phone, loT related products, and other products
related to mobile phones. Revenue from the sale of goods
is recognised when control of the product has transferred
to the customer. Control of the product is considered
transferred to the customer generally on delivery of goods
to the customer’s specified location and when customer
acceptance has been obtained which is the point of time the
customer has the ability to direct the use of these products
and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of these
products.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

L3R

e TSR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 —FE —FF+ - H =+ —HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Sales of goods (Continued)

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered
and accepted by customers as this is the point in time that
the consideration is unconditional because only the passage
of time is required before the payment is due. Payment of
the transaction price is usually due within 30-90 days of
the date when control of the products is transferred to the
customer.

The Group normally received range from 5% to 30% of
the contract value as deposit from customers when they
signed the sale and purchase agreement for sales of
products. For certain sale order received from customer
relating to IOT related products, the Group received 80%
of the contract value as upfront deposit when they signed
the sale agreement. These deposits are recognised as
contract liabilities until the goods have been delivered to the
customers.

The Group provides warranties for general repairs of
defects to ensure that the products comply with agreed
upon specification and they are therefore assurance-
type warranties and the Group accounts for the warranty
in accordance which HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bt 2 = F = FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease, at inception of the contract. The Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with
respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee,
except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option) and leases of low
value assets. For these leases, the Group recognises the
lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 —FE —FF+ - H =+ —HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease
liability at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted by
using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability represents the fixed lease payments (including in-
substance fixed payments).

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
(using the effective interest method) and by reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of
the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or
before the commencement date and any initial direct costs,
less lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. They are
depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful
life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the
commencement date of the lease.

The Group applies HKAS 36 to determine whether a right-
of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss as described in the “Impairment losses
on tangible assets and intangible assets” policy as stated
below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I AR YR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 812 —F —F#+ - H =+ —HIFF&E

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of
a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

As a practical expedient, HKFRS 16 permits a lessee not to
separate non-lease components, and instead account for
any lease and associated non-lease components as a single
arrangement. The Group has used this practical expedient
for all leases.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 —FE —FF+ - H =+ —HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government subsidies

Government subsidies are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the subsidies will be
received.

Government subsidies are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related cost for which the
subsidies are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government subsidies whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred
to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets.

Government subsidies that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefits cost

Payments to the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I AR YR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 812 —F —F#+ - H =+ —HIFF&E

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick
leave in the period the related service is rendered at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee
benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 —FE —FF+ - H =+ —HIFFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I AR YR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 812 —F —F#+ - H =+ —HIFF&E

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and
buildings

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position.
When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest
in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 —FE —FF+ - H =+ —HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FTESHBE®@

(Continued)

Intangible assets BREE

Intangible assets acquired separately THBAZEBLEE

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired SHREEANEAGRAGHAFEHZETLEA
separately are carried at costs less accumulated ERKA R R R A 2R EE
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. BHE - EERAFERAFHZEFEE
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is A NS R E Al A F R
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated RohEtAIERAFRREETENE
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation WMEMRR  EAGAESNTER
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, RRELENER ©

with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Cash and cash equivalents ReERBASEEY

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of RETBRARANBRITEHRLIESE
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand. ERITREAFERS °

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash MBizcRenERms RekRes
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash as defined EBYRFELIREZRE -

above.

Interests in subsidiaries N NI £

Interests in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of RETBRR ZEZINARE 2T BRI
financial position of the Company at cost less any identified FKABKABERE ZBREEIEY K -

impairment loss.

Inventories rE

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable GEENAENERFEME CREE
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using weighted PBR o R ER A fE B NAE F KT E ©
average method. Net realisable value represents the AR FEEFENGASEBRME G
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated FFTEIAARVGEHERR

costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value, except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place (regular way trade) are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the assets.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured
in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets. The
Group’s financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment.

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding ECL,
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount
of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at
which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other
hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the
amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any
loss allowance.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and effective interest method
(Continued)

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for debt instruments measured subsequently
at amortised cost. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included
in the “other gains and income” line item.

Financial assets at FV/TPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
any gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss and is included in the
“other gains and income” line item. Fair value is determined
in the manner described in Note 36(c).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS
9 (including trade and bills receivables, pledged bank
deposits, restricted deposits, other receivables and bank
balances and cash). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the respective financial instruments.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience and forward looking information including
both current and forecast general economic conditions at
the reporting date.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9 for trade and bills receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

e  significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular debtors, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor, or the length of time or the extent
to which the fair value of a financial asset has been less
than its amortised cost;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

e  significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor; and

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if i) the
financial instrument has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and iii) adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term may,
but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations. The Group
considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk when
it has an internal or external credit rating of ‘investment
grade’ as per globally understood definition or if an external
rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating of
‘performing’. Performing means that the counterparty has a
strong financial position and there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

e when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

° information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

The Group considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade and bills receivables, when the
amounts are over 24 months past due, whichever occur
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or
loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

e a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

e the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

e |t is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Measurement and recognition of expected credit
losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function
of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure
at default. The assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. As for the exposure at default,
for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of expected credit
losses(Continued)

For the financial assets, the expected credit loss is
estimated as the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the
previous reporting period, but determines at the current
reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting
date, except for assets for which simplified approach was
used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities including trade and bills
payables, accruals and other payables, borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity-settled share based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of equity instruments granted at the date of
grant is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting
period with a corresponding increase in equity (share
options reserve).

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of equity instruments, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected
within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions
attached to an equity instrument, but without an associated
service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair
value of the equity instrument and lead to an immediate
expensing of an equity instrument unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of equity instruments that are
expected to ultimately vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates during the vesting period, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets and
intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generation units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as immediately in profit or
loss as income.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value, except for the Group’s share-
based payment transactions, leasing transactions and
the value in use of assets for the purpose of impairment
assessment, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. Specifically, the Group categorised
the fair value measurements into three levels, based on the
characteristics of inputs, as follow:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair
value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair
value measurement.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses reported and disclosures made in
the consolidated financial statements. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment (including right-of-use assets) and
intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The estimated useful
lives reflect the Company’s directors’ estimate of the periods
that the Group intends to derive future economic benefits
from the use of the Group’s property, plant and equipment,
based on various factors. The Group’s replacement policy
for property, plant and equipment is mainly based on
repairs and useful lives duration of assets. The estimation
of useful lives impacts the level of annual depreciation
expenses recorded. Property, plant and equipment are
evaluated for possible impairment and the process requires
management’s estimate of future cash flows generated by
the assets. For any instance where this evaluation process
indicates impairment, the relevant asset’s carrying amount
is written down to the recoverable amount and the amount
of the write-down is charged against the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
As at 31 December 2020 the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment were approximately RMB139,564,000
(2019: RMB127,913,000). No impairment loss has been
recognised during the years.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade and bills receivables

The impairment for trade and bills receivables is based
on assumptions about ECL. The Group used judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs
to the impairment calculation, based on the number of
days that trade and bills receivables are outstanding as
well as the Group’s historical experience and forward-
looking information at the end of the reporting period. Due
to the unprecedented nature of the COVID-19 pandemic,
its effect on the Group’s customer and the ability to
meet their financial obligations to the Group is difficult to
predict. Changes in these assumptions and estimates
could materially affect the result of the assessment and it
may be necessary to make additional impairment charge
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying values of trade
and bills receivables is approximately RMB339,218,000
(81 December 2019: RMB622,161,000) net of allowance
for doubtful debt of approximately RMB4,999,000 (31
December 2019: RMB2,829,000).

Allowances recognised in respect of
inventories

The management of the Group reviews an ageing analysis
at the end of each reporting period and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving items identified that are no longer
suitable for sale or use. The Group makes allowance for
inventories based on the assessment of the net realisable
value. The management estimates the net realisable value
for inventories based on subsequent usage and sales,
ageing analysis and current market conditions. As at 31
December 2020, the carrying amounts of inventories were
approximately RMB319,386,000 (2019: RMB 283,956,000)
and no impairment loss has been recognised for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Provision for litigation

During the year, the Group has been involved in certain
litigations and claims (see Note 41). The management
determines the provision for claims based on their best
estimates according to their understanding of legal advice.
Where the final outcome of the claim and negotiation with
the respective party is different from the estimation made by
the management, such difference will result in a decrease or
an increase in profit in the year in which such determination
is finalised. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had
provision for litigation of approximately RMB2,093,000
(2019: RMB1,767,000).

REVENUE

Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of goods
in the normal course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes. The Group’s revenue for the year is
recognised at a point in time.

4,
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An analysis of revenue from contracts with customer REFEE@BALSINEPEAKED
disaggregated by major product types is as follows: HranTh

2020 2019
— —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREBT T
Mobile phone F i 1,483,386 2,410,583
PCBAs )l 28 B& AR 48 5 103,532 471,862
IOT related products ) Bk 4R AEL R 7E 480,950 127,697
Others Hitb 114,170 107,506
2,182,038 3,117,648

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations

The sales contracts are with an original expected duration
of less than one year. Accordingly, the Group has elected
the practical expedient and has not disclosed the amount
of transaction price for the performance obligation that is
unsatisfied as of the end of respective reporting period.
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision makers, review
the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resource. The Group is principally engaged
in designing, manufacturing and sales of mobile phones
and PCBA and IOT related products. Information reported
to the chief operating decision makers, for the purpose of
resources allocation and performance assessment, focuses
on the operating results of the Company as a whole as the
Group’s resources are integrated and no discrete operating
segment financial information is available. Accordingly, no
operating segment information is presented.

Geographical information
The Group’s operations are mainly located in the PRC (the
place of domicile of the Group’s operation).

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers presented based on the location of customers is
as follows.
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Revenue from external customers

HIEEF W=
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hIF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Tx ARET T
India fE 1,011,279 1,392,492
Algeria Fol 78 K2 | am 22,935 275,305
The PRC H 919,927 1,167,572
Pakistan B AR 56,749 67,889
People’s Republic of Bangladesh E TN 170,764 111,789
Other regions E i@ 384 102,601
2,182,038 3,117,648

The Group’s non-current assets are all located in the PRC.
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6.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Information about major customers
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total

2 E F (®)

FHREEEFZER

BRI ASEAREI0% A LR

revenue of the Group are as follows: BT
2020 2019
i —FNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBFTT
Customer A EEA 511,520 581,357
Customer B =FB N/ATEA* 395,416

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total

revenue of the Group.

R MR i I A R SR B AR AR 10% JA | o

OTHER GAINS AND INCOME 7. Hitlrsm R WA
2020 2019
—E-EH —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBFT
Bank interest income SRITH B U A 4,229 853
Exchange gain, net b 5 a8 - 8,532
Reversal of provision for social insurance (811 & 1R f& B 1 8,384 =
Gain arising from change in fair value BEATFEGAEBERN
of financial assets at FVTPL TREENAFE
BEEF W 7,305 10,099
Government subsidies (Note) RIS 8L (H722) 29,209 30,945
Amortisation of government grant RS 478 Bh 4 55
(Note 28) (Htzt28) 6,010 5,920
Sundry income HMIEULA 3,840 2,754
58,977 59,103

Note: The government subsidies represent the one-off government grants

that were received from local government authorities of which the

entitlements were unconditional and were therefore immediately

recognised as other income.
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MERAK
2020 2019
—E-ETH —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Interests on: THBEZHE
Lease liabilities HEBRE 643 860
Discounted bills financing and ZERERBER
factoring loans RIBER 3,546 9,571
Borrowings EE:N 1,294 1,529
5,483 11,960
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 9. EHMAX
2020 2019
—E-EH —E-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”): FEEMEH
([EEmEH]) -
— Current income tax —BIERRRS R 880 3,114
— (Overprovision) underprovision in —BEFE (B
prior year BE)BETR (1,576) 744
Deferred tax (Note 29): EIERLIE (H15£29)
— Charge to current year R FE EHBR 3,663 2,793
Income tax expense FrisfifMsz 2,967 6,651

U)

(i)

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British
Virgin Islands and Cayman Islands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in these jurisdictions.

The statutory tax rate of subsidiaries in Hong Kong is
16.5%. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax had
been provided for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019 as the subsidiaries in Hong Kong has no
assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries established in
the PRC is 25%.

(i)

REXBRAEENMASEHSHA
RO NEBEALEZTREE
B EAMEHR -

BEMBRRZEENER16.5% °
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9. FI8HiMAx @

9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

(iv)

(Vi)

One of the Group’s subsidiaries, Shenzhen Sprocomm
Telecommunication Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen
Sprocomm”) is recognised as a High and New-
technology Enterprise for the first time in July 2014,
which has been granted tax concessions by the local
tax bureau and is entitled to PRC EIT at concessionary
rate of 15% during the year ended 31 December 2016
and Shenzhen Sprocomm has further obtained the
renewal of its high technology qualification in October
2017 and is entitled to the concession rate of 15%
from 2017 to 2019. Shenzhen Sprocomm has further
obtained the renewal of its high technology qualification
in December 2020 and is entitled to the concession
rate of 15% from 2020 to 2023.

One of the Group’s subsidiaries, Shanghai Sprocomm
Telecommunication Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Sprocomm”), is awarded the Software Enterprise
Certificate and was accredited as software enterprise
under the relevant PRC laws and regulations in
December 2015. Accordingly, Shanghai Sprocomm
was granted a tax holiday of two years’ tax exemption
and a 50% reduction in the EIT rate of 25% for the
next three years. The subsidiary was exempted from
enterprise income tax from 2016 to 2017, and is
subject to a reduced corporate income tax rate of
12.5% from 2018 to 2020.

The India taxation was calculated based on the rates
applicable in the relevant jurisdiction on the estimated
assessable profits. No provision of overseas profits
tax has been made, as the Group did not have any
assessable profits subject to overseas profits tax for
both years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bt 2 = F = FF+ - H=+—HIFFE
INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 9.
The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to

the profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

B 4= A

PN =]

BaE M EM

2EY SRR RGN E RO T

2020 2019
—ECEF —T-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARETF T
Profit before tax B 151 Bl i A 33,651 44,414
Tax at the domestic income tax rate R R AT B X
of 25% 25% T E /IR 8,413 11,104
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for 7~ AT 054 B 2 &4
tax purpose X8 3,079 6,685
Tax effect of non taxable income FERRB U 2= B
MG E (10 =
Utilisation of tax loss not recognised B R ERH
TIEEE (321) (1,230)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERIBEED
MBTE 7,126 2,404
Additional deduction arising from research  fiff 3 5 5z &= 4 #9
and development expenses EESMDA (11,509) (8,497)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries R E b alJ AR 4L &
operating in other jurisdictions EolingEE NG
PRI E & 418 (93)
(Overprovision) underprovision WEFE (BRERE)
in prior years BETR (1,576) 744
Withholding tax on undistributed — R B E A FR
earnings of a PRC subsidiary (Note 29) 7R 2T B TR
(K17#29) 1,947 2,563
Tax effect of tax exemption/deduction from  F i AT BE %~
tax authority (Notes 9 (iv) and (v)) MBS &
(K17 9(v) % (v) (4,600) (7,029)
Income tax expenses TSR X 2,967 6,651

Details of deferred tax are set out in Note 29.

—E-—F

—= =

BRI F B F NI FE29
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10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. F A& F
2020 2019
gt —Z-hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBTT
Profit for the year has been arrived at F Rm MR (BT
after charging (crediting): AN) T3 &R %=
2o
Directors’ emoluments (Note 71) BEEMWSE (K1) 1,981 1,731
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e EMREM
(excluding directors’ emoluments) B (TREES
<) 135,857 122,372
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme  iE R 42 Fl 5T 2t 7
(excluding directors’ emoluments) (Note) (TBEESEM)
(K17E) 6,016 21,077
Total staff costs BTIRARERE 143,854 145,180
Auditors’ remuneration % SR Er B 1,000 920
Listing expenses A - 18,073
Amortisation of intangible assets mH A EE 932 728
Amount of inventories recognised as EERAEAIH
an expense GFES®E 1,757,285 2,890,495
Net foreign exchange losses (gains) b 5 g5 1E (Yess) 38R 3,362 (8,532)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BE &
equipment BB E 18,778 16,745
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 11,259 8,498
Gains on disposal of property, LEDE  HER
plant and equipment Bl & - (59)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of 5t & 5 FE U 7 E &
trade and bills receivables FEWE B MR
BB EE 2,170 1,733
Loss on written off of property, plantand #5413 - BE &
equipment REH EE 95 -
Provision for litigation ERFA B 326 742
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Note: According to the policies on reduction of social insurance fees

announced by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security
of the PRC during the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries were entitled to waivers of the social insurance fees

during February to December 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 —FE —FF+ - H =+ —HIFFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 11.EEM &
Details of directors’ emoluments are as follows: EEMeFBOT

Emoluments paid or
receivable in respect of

services in connection with Salaries, Contributions

the management of the allowances to retirement

affair of the Company or its and other benefits

subsidiary undertakings: Fees benefits scheme Total
BAREESKEBREND e

FRERNME (FREAE b=1:1953 RIREF

NRHEME D RAE) : we Htt @5 Bl EA et

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT

Year ended 31 December HEZZT-ZF
2020 +Z-A=+—H
IEFE
Executive Directors HiTEF
Mr. Li Chengjun (Chief FEEB L (KRQF
Executive of the Company) TTEABEL) - 492 9 501
Mr. Xiong Bin AR - 251 5 256
Mr. Li Hongxing TUELAE - 439 52 491
Mr. Guo Qinglin SPEMITAE - 300 5 305
Independent non-executive BUHHTEE
Directors
Mr. Wong Kwan Kit' sEERNEE 107 - - 107
Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen' =K ERAE A 107 - - 107
Mr. Hung Wai Man' HAERTAE 107 - - 107
Ms. Tseng Chin I B 2t 107 - - 107
428 1,482 71 1,981
Year ended 31 December HE-_Z—NF
2019 +=—A=+—H”
IEFE
Executive Directors HITEFE
Mr. Li Chengjun (Chief FHERELE(KAA
Executive of the Company) TTBURE) = 492 25 517
Mr. Xiong Bin AR R = 251 14 265
Mr. Li Hongxing 2R - 448 100 548
Mr. Guo Qinglin LB A& - 307 10 317
Independent non-executive BB ITEE
Directors
Mr. Wong Kwan Kit! BEERNEE 21 = = 21
Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen' EKBRIT A 21 - - 21
Mr. Hung Wai Man' HAEREAE 21 - - 21
Ms. Tseng Chin I SRt 21 - - 21
84 1,498 149 1,731
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bt 2 = F = FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

11.

12.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS Continued)

1. Mr. Wong Kwan Kit, Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen, Mr. Hung Wai Man
and Ms. Tseng Chin | were appointed as independent non-executive
directors on 18 October 2019. The independent non-executive
directors had not yet been appointed nor received any remuneration
prior to 18 October 2019.

The amounts disclosed above represent remuneration
paid or payable to the directors of the Company (including
emoluments for services an employee/director of the group
entities prior to becoming the directors of the Company) by
entities comprising the Group.

None the chief executive nor any of the directors of the
Company waived or agreed to waive any emoluments paid
by the Group for the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2020. No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors of the Company as an incentive payment for
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during both years.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2019: two) were the directors (including chief

11.

12.

BEEME @

1. EERNEE  BKkEEE HARTERDGHE
BELTR-ZZE—NhETA+N\BEZERAX
RAVBUFRITES - BUIFNITEEN_Z
—NE+TATNEHKREEE - IRREEEM
-

EXBEBESEAAKEET AR NK
ERNAABEZZHMH EEREER
AzEE EEERRANRESRAM
MRS ER B -

BE_T-NFRER-_ZE_FTF+_H
=T -HLEFE BEARAEERITR
ABREMEZTHEIREREAKHE
SN ERBE - WFEREAEERER
ARABEFAEEINMESIERMARE
1 O B B 2K VB A BE B AR 1 o

EEME
FAEBRERBHALH HE(CF
—NF MR BEARES (RETE

executive) of the Company, whose emoluments are set out THAE) EBS &N EXMiE11 - £
in Note 11 above. The emolument of the remaining three T=%(ZZE-—NF =F)ZaHmH At
(2019: three) highest paid individuals were as follows: BB ST -
2020 2019
—E-ZF —ZT—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREET T
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e EZMR
H 48 A 1,215 1,213
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme 3R K& K 5t 2 i 7% 157 301
1,371 1,514
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 8t 2 —FE —ZEF+ _-_H=+—HIFF/F

12. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Their emoluments were within the following band:

12.

EEME @
HBEOMEN T T EE -

2020 2019

—E-EHF —E-NEF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A N

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T 3 3

(equivalent to RMB899,000 (HERARE

(2019: RMB869,393)) 899,000 7T (2019

F: AR ¥ 869,393

7L))

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five
highest paid individuals of the Group including the directors
of the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office during the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

13. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period.

13.

BE_Z_ZTHER_FT-NAF+_H
ST-HLEEE AKREHERAEE
FAE&ESHEAL(BREARRES)
XA & ARSI A INA KRR B
BB S A R RER A (E

IRE

BE_T_ZTFR_ZF-NF+_-A
=+—BLEFE SEINXERTKR
FARE  BRESHRETEZRSEIR
THTH“§°
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bt 2 = F = FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share during the
years is based on the profit attributable to the owners of the
Company and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue.

14. SR AR

R SREARNZHEDERAL
AU AR (0 FI R B B 4T % BRI
FHUBGHE

2020 2019
ZEIEF —ZE-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBTT
Earmnings for the purpose of basic earnings AR E & Hx%zliﬁj
per share (profit for the year attributable to  FI|#9 Q AR
owners of the Company) waE AEL $f§
iz ID) 30,879 38,998
’000 000
T F A&
Weighted average number of ordinary ARsTEERERR
shares for the purpose of basic k=S ik
earnings per share & 1,000,000 783,562

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
year ended 31 December 2019 has been adjusted for the
capitalisation issue on 13 November 2019 as detailed in
note 30.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is same as basic earnings per
share for the year ended 31 December 2019 as there were
no outstanding dilutive potential ordinary shares.

The Company'’s potentially dilutive ordinary shares comprise
share options. Performance-related employee share options
are treated as contingently issuable shares. Contingently
issuable shares are considered outstanding and where
applicable, included in the calculation of diluted earnings per
share as if the conditions of the contingency are deemed to
have been met, based on the information available, at the
end of reporting period.

As at 31 December 2020, none of the performance
conditions of the share options were met, and thus the
dilutive potential ordinary shares are not included in the
calculation of diluted earnings per share. As a result, diluted
earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per share
for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A SRR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8t 2 —FE —ZEF+ _-_H=+—HIFF/F

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % - BMERRE

Ownership
interests in

Leasehold Plant and Furniture Motor Office land and

improvement ~ machinery  and fixture vehicles  equipment building Total
Rt

BENE GRE T £

£ HEREE  ETXE RE BORK FERRR ft
RMBO00 ~ RMBOOO ~ RMB'OOD  RMBO00  RMBO0  RMB'OO0  RMBO0O
ARRTE  ARBTLE ARBTL ARBTL ARETL  ARETL ARETR

cosT B

At 1 January 2019 R-E-hE-f-H 29,124 53,639 3,885 703 7,204 64,840 159,395
Additions AE 1248 11,054 12 = 1012 - 13,326
Disposal k3 - (79 - - - - (79

At31December 2019 R-Z-NE+-A

=+-H 30,372 64,614 3,807 703 8,16 64,840 172,642
Additions RE 1,369 25,817 54 72 2572 - 30,524
Written off i - (57) (19) - (830) - (900)

At31 December 2020 R-Z-Z%F+-HR
== 31,741 90,374 3,938 1,414 9,959 64,840 202,266

ACCUMULATED ZHHE

DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-hnE-A-H 10,325 8,637 2,293 358 4544 1888 28,045
Chargefortheyear — FATM 4,054 7406 553 29 1357 3,080 16,745
Disposal e - (61) - = = = 61)

At31December 2019 RZZ—-NF

t-A=1-H 14,379 15,982 2,846 652 5,901 4,968 44,729
Chargefortheyear  EAXH 3,874 10,528 281 76 939 3,080 18,778
Written off i - - (13) - (792) - (805)

At31 December 2020 R-E-T%E
+-F=1-H 18,253 26,510 3,115 728 6,048 8,048 62,702

CARRYINGVALUES  HE{E

Asat 31 December 2020 R=E-F%
‘|'7 A=1-H 13,488 63,864 823 686 3,911 56,792 139,564

As at 31 December 2019 RZE—hE
‘I' A=t-8 15,993 48,632 1,050 51 2,315 59,872 127,913
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 8t 2 —FE —ZEF+ - H=+—HIFF/F

15. % - BMERRE @

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

U)

The above items of property, plant and equipment
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives as follow:

Leasehold improvement 5 years or over lease term
whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 3 years to 5 years
Furniture and fixture 3 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Office equipment 3 years

Ownership interests in 20 years
land and building

Note: The Group has pledged its ownership interests in land and
building with a carrying value of approximately RMB56,792,000
as at 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB59,872,000) to secure the
Group’s mortgage loan.

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

) Ldwx BELRREBEBREM
ARl A iﬁﬂﬁzﬁ%&iiﬁ%ﬁﬂ’ :

HEMEKE

R K 25

RRLEEERE

/IE

NS i

THREF
P RS

FF kAR
(AR E B%E)
—FEERF
=F
fages
=%
—+F

Kiat - R=—_ZF=_FF+=-_F=+—H £x5H
BT EEREELN A ARE5S6,792,000
T(ZZ—NF: AR#59,872,0007T)
WL REFHEEERARKTEERN
RRERREER -

16. EHEEERBEERRS

LIABILITIES

() Right-of-use assets () EREEE
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
—E-EHF =—NEF
+=BA=+—8 +=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Machines 25 1,902 3,313
Buildings BF 5,105 14,032
7,007 17,345

The Group has lease arrangements for buildings and
machines. The lease terms range from one to six
years.

In respect of lease arrangements for machines
which are under hire purchase, the ownership of the
machines will be transferred to the Group by the end of
the lease terms. The Group’s obligations are secured
by the lessors’ title to the leased assets for such
leases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bt 2 = F = FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

16. FAREERHEHERE@®

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (Continued)

(i) Lease liabilities (i) HEAE
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
—E-EE —ET—hF
t=A=t—-H +ZHA=1+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T
Non-current portion IERENE 169 5,682
Current portion mENER S 6,484 11,962
6,653 17,644
Amounts payable under lease liabilities: THEBENENIE:
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
—ECEF —EF-NF
+=ZA=+—8H +=—A=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Within one year —FR 6,484 11,962
After one year but within two years —EWF 169 5,682
6,653 17,644
Less: Amount due for settlement 128 A KB ER
within 12 months (shown HEFIE (R
under current liabilities) nEaEIR) (6,484) (11,962)
Amount due for settlement after 12E A2 B E
12 months KIE 169 5,682
—T = TEEH Sprocomm Intelligence Limited 175
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 8t 2 —FE —ZEF+ - H=+—HIFF/F

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the lease liabilities in
respect of machines under hire purchase agreements
amounted to approximately RMB1,827,000 (31
December 2019: RMB3,508,000) was secured by the
lessors’ title to the leased assets of RMB1,902,000
(31 December 2019: RMB3,313,000). During the
year ended 31 December 2020, the Group entered
into a number of new lease agreements in respect of
renting properties and machines, and recognised right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities of approximately
RMB921,000 (2019: RMB9,179,000).

(i)

16. FAEEERHEEEE @

HEAEW®@

RZE-_ZTF+=ZA=+—RH M
BHhETHESNBEEREEHNA
R#1,827,000 (ZE—NF+=
A=+—8: AR#3,508,0007T)
AEHBANBEEEEEREARK
1,902,000t (ZZE— N F+ = A
=—+—H: AR#¥3,313,0007T) ¥
R-BEZT-_TF+=-_A=1+—
BIEFE ANEEREEDER#
BINETHHERS  BREA
BEERMESEHAREI21,000

T (ZZE—-NF: AKR¥9,179,000
TT) °
Amounts recognised in profit or loss (i) AERBERANESE
2020 2019
—E-ZF —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREET T
Depreciation expenses on right-of-use £ A& E NI E
assets 53
— Buildings —1gF 9,848 7,579
- Machines —Hees 1,411 919
Interest expenses on lease liabilites ~ FAE & &EF BF X 643 860
Expenses relating to short-term leases %2 B2 E AR5 =2 1,596 2,938
Others (iv) Efb
During the year ended 31 December 2020, total REBEE-_ZE_ZEF+_HF=+—H

cash outflow for leases amount to approximately
RMB14,151,000 (2019: RMB11,997,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bt 2 = F = FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE
Computer
software Patents Total
B =R wet
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEF T ARBFT ARBFT
COST RN
At 1 January 2019 RZE-—NF—H—H 5,572 1,266 6,838
Additions NE 1,933 - 1,933
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+=—A=+—H 7,505 1,266 8,771
Additions NE 774 - 774
At 31 December 2020 RIE_TF
+—-HBA=+—8H 8,279 1,266 9,545
AMORTISATION 85
At 1 January 2019 RZTE-—NF—H—H 1,540 112 1,652
Charge for the year FARZM 664 64 728
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF
+=-A=+—H 2,204 176 2,380
Charge for the year FAZMH 868 64 932
At 31 December 2020 RZEZTF
+-HB=+—8H 3,072 240 3,312
CARRYING VALUES BREE
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-TF
+—-—A=+—H 5,207 1,026 6,233
As at 31 December 2019 RZIE—NF
+=-—A=+—H 5,301 1,090 6,391
The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such biEREEENAERFHRER -5
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over ML EERAEER +ERNIRBEGIEEL -

five to ten years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bt 2 = F = FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

18.

19.

INVENTORIES 18. # &
2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETF T
Raw materials R4 # 211,366 131,373
Work in progress TR m 59,684 15,380
Finished goods SURL 48,336 137,203
319,386 283,956
TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 19. ESENREREVRERE
2020 2019
—E-FF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETF T
Trade receivables B 5 W EIE 333,696 604,316
Bills receivables e E & 10,521 20,674
Less: Loss allowance B IR (4,999) (2,829)
Trade and bills receivables B 5 e s e E ik 339,218 622,161

The gross amount of trade and bills receivables arising
from contracts with customers amounted to approximately
RMB344,217,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB

624,990,000)
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ARE PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bt 2 = F = FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 19. EZRURERERERE @

(Continued)

The Group allows credit period of 30-90 days to its trade AEERTEFNERAERNEESRR
customers depending on creditability of the customers. The HHI0EQARMEEH - NEE W Mt
Group does not hold any collateral over its trade and bills HE SRR BERERERERE EME
receivables. The following is an aged analysis of trade and e TRETNMEPRBEEEH
bills receivables, net of allowance for impairment of trade HEZARZEABHER) 2N E
and bills receivables presented based on invoice dates, SV REREE (KNKRE ZEK
which approximates the respective revenue recognition RIERERE B ERE) HRE DT

dates, at the end of the reporting period.

2020 2019

—ECFF —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

Within 30 days B0KLAR 261,873 459,100

31 to 60 days 31 260K 34,177 91,441

61 to 90 days 61290k 24,672 25,784

Over 90 days 90K A E 18,496 45,836

Total MEt 339,218 622,161
No interest is charged on the trade and bills receivables. BEEEFL B 5 PE U 200E 1 FE IR = i W ER R 5, o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 8t 2 —FE —ZEF+ - H=+—HIFF/F

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 10. E5 RN EREREE @)

(Continued)
EAREBEEERREEN —FnH &
SEHRFPETABEETR - KRME

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
applies internal credit rating for its customers. The debtors

are grouped under a provision matrix into three internal
credit rating buckets (namely: low risk, medium risk and
high risk) based on shared credit risk characteristic by
reference to past due exposure of the debtor, and an
analysis of the debtor’s current financial position. There has

KAGERRBHBSEEHABEAMN
éfﬂ&ﬁi%/\”‘ﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁxﬂ DA ARIE
Tﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁﬂﬂff“)\ DR =ERBERSE
AZARR (B KR qﬂﬂﬁ»ﬁﬂmﬂ&%
1Ea+?§i1ﬁi$¢ﬁf’ﬁﬁﬁ’]§7ﬂ€““

been no change in the estimation techniques or significant BE AEENE HEWHIARE 1451 g
assumptions made during the current year. The Group BERNESERERANEHESHEE
recognised lifetime ECL for trade and bills receivables EIBIT
individually and/or collectively as follows:
Average Gross
expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FI9TEH
EE=E BEREE EiREE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% ARETF T ARBTTT
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZTF
+=-—A=+—8H
Low risk 1K= B 1.45% 344,217 4,999
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF
+=—A=+—H
Low risk 1K [ B 0.45% 624,990 2,829

The estimated loss rate are estimated based on historical
default rates and adjusted for forward-looking information
(for example, the current and forecasted economic growth
rates in PRC, India and other countries, which reflect the
general economic conditions of the industry in which the
debtors operate) that is available without undue cost or
effort. Such forward-looking information is used by the
management of the Group to access both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date. The grouping is regularly reviewed by the management
of the Group to ensure relevant information about specific
debtors is updated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 —FE —FF+ - H =+ —HIFFE

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 10. E5 RN EREREE @)

(Continued)

Movements of impairment loss allowances of trade and bills
receivables are as follows:

B 5 1 U 3R0R T e SR AR O 1 U 9 A
wEBHMT

RMB’000

ARET T

As at 1 January 2019 RZE—hF—HA—H 1,096
ECL Impairment loss allowance TEHEEEBRERBERE 1,733
As at 31 December 2019 RZE—hF+=ZA=+—8 2,829
ECL Impairment loss allowance AR EE SRR EEEEE 2,170
As at 31 December 2020 RZBZTF+-HA=+—H 4,999

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the current reporting
period.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group discounted and
factored trade and bills receivables in aggregate amounts of
approximately RMB29,361,000 (2019: RMB30,040,000) to
banks and factoring company for short term financing.

Transfers of financial assets

The following were the Group’s trade and bills receivables
as at 31 December 2019 and 2020 that were transferred to
banks and factoring company by discounting those trade
and bills receivables on a full recourse basis. As the Group
has not transferred the significant risks and rewards relating
to these trade and bills receivables, it continues to recognise
the full carrying amount of the trade and bills receivables
and has recognised the cash received on the transfer as
secured borrowings (see Note 27). These trade and bills
receivables are carried at amortised cost in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

RAREHRE - [t T AIAEERR

RZEZZEF+ZA=+—0 ' KA&E
MM ERRIT RRE AR BIE KR
BEEAEHARE29361,000T (ZF
—NFE : AR#30,040,0007T) K& 5 fE
WsroE & e W = 4 o

TXEHINAKEER-_F-—NAFR_F=
EFET_A=T-HNEBEZIRUFER
PRI - ok FE 5 WA K& B YK
EREBREIMEBRBEEERRACESR
FTROTRREAR -ARAKEL EE
EZEE S EWGRIA N ERE R
BERREBREO®R HEEHRAZSES
FRURFENEEEENREAE LB
HEREEMEBINRS R SAE BTG
E(RWaE27) - % FE 5 EWFIAKE
WEREN A AR IZEHRATER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bt 2 = F = FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

10. ES EWFRE R EREE @)

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Transfers of financial assets (Continued)
The trade and bills receivables discounted and factored to
banks and a factoring company with full recourse are as

TREEERE W)

ERRTRREAFRBEALREEASR
EEREH B 5 RUGIE MW SR T -

follows:
2020 2019
—E-FF —FNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBFT
Carrying amount of transferred EEELZEMNERRE
assets 29,361 30,040
Carrying amount of associated EEAENEREEB
liabilities (29,361) (80,040)
Net position SRR - -
20. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 20. B RIER HEWFIE
RECEIVABLES
2020 2019
e —TNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTT
Prepayments TEfT5RIE 36,664 38,221
Deposits He 1,776 1,255
Other tax recoverable H th m] Y [B] 75 18 59,343 29,417
Others Hfth 3,890 5,102
101,673 73,995

Note: Included in prepayments and other receivables are other receivables
and refundable deposits of approximately RMB5,666,000 as at 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB6,357,000). These balances have low risk
of default or have not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition and no impairment loss is recognised.
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21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 1. B AFEFTAEBEZNEMEE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2020 2019
= —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Structured deposits stated at fair BAFEVNEREBIET R
value - 285,650

The financial assets at FVTPL as at 31 December 2019
represented contracts of principal guaranteed structured
deposits with banks in the PRC which are presented as
current assets since their maturities are within 12 months
from the end of the reporting period based on the contract
terms.

Pursuant to the relevant agreements, these structured
deposits carry interest at a variable rate per annum with
reference to the performance of foreign currency or interest
rate during the investment period and the principal sums
are denominated in RMB. The directors of the Company
consider the fair values of the structured deposits, which
are based on the prices provided by the counterparty banks
representing the prices they would pay to redeem the
deposits, approximate to their carrying values on the same
day. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s
financial assets at FVTPL had been fully redeemed upon
maturity. The Group had no outstanding financial assets at
FVTPL as at 31 December 2020.

Management has assessed the credit quality of the
financial institution and considered the credit risk to be not
significant. Details of fair value measurement are stated in
Note 36(b).

RZZE-NF+A=+—H0 BAT
Bt ABSENEREEREPEZRTT
AIVHRABEBUEEREH  ARE
BAMNBRERBSHREI12EARE
B ZEER2INRRDEE -

RIERBEHE ZSFEBETREER
BHRIINERF ARG FIR)ZBF =X
TR MASUAREGTE NREE
ERE EBUGRZ2ATEERESFH
RITIREZER (RS AER T
NWER B HRABACKREEMRS -
HE_ZE-_ZEF+_-_A=+—HKEE"
REBZRAFEFAESHNEREER
IR 2EER R _2F+ =
A=+—8 AXRRTEXREENER
FEGFABENEREE -

EREECHAEREBNEEERYR
REERBYTEN BEEATENE
B 15 B A BT RE 36 (0) ©
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22.

23.

24,

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2020, bank deposits of approximately
RMB251,071,000 (2019: RMB81,165,000) were pledged by
the Group for the purpose of securing discounted bills loans
(Note 27) and general banking facility granted to the Group.

As at 31 December 2020, pledged bank deposits of
RMB62,768,000 (2019: RMB 60,000,000) carried fixed
interest at 4% per annum (2019: 4%) and RMB188,303,000
(2019: RMB21,165,000) carried floating interest rate.

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2020, bank deposits of approximately
RMB16,210,000 (31 December 2019: Nil) in Shenzhen
Sprocomm were being frozen by banks as the respective
banks had received notice from court with regard to the
litigation claim as disclosed in Note 41.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

At 31 December 2020, bank balances carry interest at
floating rates based on bank deposit rates.
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22.

23.

24,

EEFRITER
RZEZZEF+-_A=+—H A5H
BEHHAREE251,071,0000 (==
—hF  AR#81,165,0007T) HIER1T1F
FEAAEEERIBBEZEER (M
27) R —RERTTREE MK -

R_ZE_ZEF+_HA=+—H EER
RITIFRAR62,768,0007C (ZZE— N,
&+ A R#60,000,0007T) % B E # 8 F
FERA4% (ZE—NF 4A%FTERAR
# 188,303,000 T (ZE—hF AR
21,165,000 70) HOF BRI REHE o

ZRHEER
R-F-FEF+-_A=+—8 FIK
HEIRITIF RERFE L A K% 16,210,000
T(CE-NAF+-A=+—H: B)K
RITRE - EHEBRTRIARBRF
ARME B A (HFER I A1) o
RTEBRRRAE
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25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 5. BESENFERENERE

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T AREET T

Trade payables =Y ANEe 333,546 446,297
Bills payables AN 258,426 430,410
Trade and bills payables B S RNFIERENEE 591,972 876,707

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables
presented based on invoice date at the end of the reporting

RBEERR BIERNFBARENRRE
BREZBHMEJNNRESTAT -

period.
2020 2019
—E-FF —E-hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
Within 30 days 30K 286,118 496,730
31 to 60 days 31E60X 158,663 78,763
61 to 90 days 61 £ 90K 53,480 58,727
Over 90 days 90K E 93,711 242,487
Total BT 591,972 876,707
The average credit period on purchases of goods is HEEINEEHEEHENTL30EB0K o

ranging from 30 to 60 days. The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all payables are
settled within the credit timeframe.

AEED G E S F R RS EBRNAER
FIBRMNFEANMEERRER -

ZEZTHFFR Sprocomm Intelligence Limited 185



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bt 2 = F = FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

26. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES

26. Bt BEAREMENRENUR
BHEE

2020 2019

= —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T ARBTT

Salary payable AN i 52,926 64,988

Other payables (Note (i) H th FE A 3R IE (22 () 13,719 21,654
Consideration payable for acquisition 5t U i 3 F 28 B #E 25 FE HR (B

of non-controlling interest - 625

Accrued listing expenses JER LR - 231

Government subsidies in advance & Ux BT #E BY (B 77 (i)

(Note (i) 12,357 11,813

Other tax payables H e FIE 5,583 16,330

84,585 115,641

Contract liabilities (Note (i) B RBE B i) 93,317 63,331

Notes:

(i) As at 31 December 2020, included in other payables was provision
for litigations of approximately RMB2,093,000 (2019: RMB1,767,000).
Details of the litigations are set out in Note 41.

(i) Government subsidies in advance included in accruals and other
payables are mainly related to the capital expenditure incurred for
property and equipment, leasehold improvement and subsidies
for recruitment of certain number of workers for factory operation,
before fulfilling certain conditions under the terms of the government
subsidies. The government subsidies received may need to be
refunded if the subsidiary failed to fulfill the attached conditions within
the stipulated time. Upon fulfillment of those conditions, government
subsidies related to compensation of expenses are credited to the
profit or loss in the year the Group complied with the conditions
attached to the subsidies, whereas assets-related subsidies are
reclassified to deferred income and credited to the profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

(iii) Contract liabilities as at 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately

RMB93,317,000 (2019: RMB63,331,000), which represented receipts
in advance from customers.
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(i)

(i)

RZZ_ZEF+=-A=1+—8  HEMEMKE
BIEFABEH AR 2,093,000 (ZE—N
F 1 ANR¥A1,767,0007T) © #7415 B AT R
41

S FEET B P N H At JE A SRR A TRUR R AT TR A
B BRI E KR AT R A A TR T A E T
IR MERRBAELENEANY HEX
ERRABEEERSETHEB T ANMHRAR -
i 78 B R BEFE AR E 05 PR AT & BT 75 16 A > AR
BB HEL AT BEE RIR [ < EAR A F R -
6 B 5 S 4 1 2 U 46 B S 1B 4 A T BA fER  5T
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BERERA  YWRARAEENTERFEHRER
BAORFT AR

R-E-_TF+_A=+—H AHEaEAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bt 2 = F = FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

26. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. EtE AR HMEAREAR

AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) BREE®@

Notes: (Continued) Htat - (48)
Significant changes in contract liabilities EHNEBRIESE
The significant increase in contract liabilities as at 31 December 2020 RIT_TF+_A=+—HHANEBELER
was mainly due to the advance from customers in relation to the sales RIBEMTEZHRNFREEEBYEAEE®
of IoT products at the end of the year. HERNEP B -
Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities BENEERINNE
Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December 2020 that BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—RHLLFER
was included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the year is ROR=EFAFIVEHNEBE DAARK
approximately RMB41,668,000 (2019: RMB87,475,000). There was 41,668,000 7T (= F— L4 : AR#E87,475,000
no revenue recognised in the current year that related to performance L) cRAFEBRAHKEMELARNBEFE
obligations that were satisfied in prior year. K BAETHEBE -
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27. BORROWINGS 27. B
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREET T
Bank borrowings, secured (Note a(j) SRITHE R - BT (4722 a0) 36,445 189,184
Other loan, secured (Notes afii) & c) H M EF - A (H:tali) % (c) 17,073 17,073
53,518 206,257
Borrowings comprise: EREIE
Variable-rate borrowing (Note b) FBRER (KAL) 22,104 25,152
Fixed-rate borrowings (Note a) EEBR (K ita) 31,414 181,105
53,518 206,257
Carrying amount repayable EAERERE(ERERBRETEH
(based on scheduled repayment FrEIERAH) ¢
dates set out in the loan
agreements):
Within one year —F R 34,463 184,153
More than 1 year but less than —F LA FERFEUR
2 years 3,049 3,049
More than 2 year but less than MFE EBRFUAA
5 years 9,146 9,146
More than 5 years HBiRAF 6,860 9,909
53,518 206,257
Carrying amount repayable on MBBETITHREREER
demand or within one year —FREENRAE
shown under current liabilities 34,463 184,153
Amount shown under non-current  JERENBE TIIRH S EE
liabilities 19,055 22,104
53,518 206,257
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 8t 2 —FE —ZEF+ _-_H=+—HIFF/F

27. BORROWINGS (Continued)

27. B @&

Notes: et -

(a) As at 31 December 2020, the fixed-rate borrowings included (i) @ MZZEZZTF+=-—A=1+—H TEEERE
discounted bills loans and packing loans from banks of approximately )% A AR¥16,539,0007C (ZZT—NF . A
RMB16,539,000 (2019: RMB164,032,000) carried interest rate ranged R #164,032,0007T) B AL IR RIBE R R IRITIT
from 3.62% to 4.42% (2019: 3.62% to 4.35%) per annum and (i) a BER BEMNERIE2%E442% (ZF— N
receivables factoring loan of approximately RMB17,073,000 (2019: F1362%%E4.35%)5T B RN ABARE
RMB17,073,000) carried interest at 4% per annum (2019: 4% per 17,073,000t (ZZT—hF : AR¥ 17,073,000
annum). TT) WEKRIBREER  BREMNE4% (ZF

—NEF  BFA%)TE -

(o)  The variable rate borrowing represent a bank borrowing repayable (o) FEMEFEERTERDEEE WIHPEA
by installments within 10 years, bears interest at 10% premium over R#B1T ([HE AEi&ﬁJ) EEERFER E N
People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”) benchmark lending rate per annum 10% T EF B R EASFENBEREESEHNERE
and subject to annual repricing based on the same benchmark. The HRITER RZFT_TFER_FT-AF+=
borrowing is secured by mortgages over the Group’s ownership of A=+—0H BXBaAEEN L REFHE
land and buildings as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. IR EE A

() In December 2017, the Group entered into a receivables © RIZE—tF+=-A AEEE-FREAR
factoring agreement with a factoring company and discounted A EMGRIEIR B % - j’[ﬂ%if%ﬁi@ﬂﬁﬁ
certain receivables to the factoring company with recourse. As ETREBRERBNRE RZT-_TF+=A
at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the receivables =+—8 - WEBUH R EURIE R E R
not derecognised and the borrowings were approximately BREEANARK 17,073,000 T (ZF—I4F :
RMB17,073,000 (2019: RMB17,073,000) and carry effective interest AR#17,073,0007T) RIZE B F| KT F 4% 5+
rate of 4% per annum (2019: 4% per annum). On 28 November B(ZZE—NF 8F4%) -R=2T—N\F+—
2018, an independent factoring company filed a joint lawsuit against a A=Z+N\A —HMBIREBEARRZREER
subsidiary of the Group in relation to this factoring loan. Details of the HEAEE —FEARE R RREHRFA - Fak
litigation are set out in Note 41. B RMTEE41 o

The amounts of borrowing facilities and their utilisation at RBEHR BFRESERBDARE

the end of the reporting period are set out as follows: HANWAT

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARBFT

Facility amount BEREE 162,992 164,032
Utilisation PRABER

Secured bank borrowings BHEMIRITER 14,341 164,032
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28. DEFERRED INCOME 28. IEZE W A

2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFT
At the beginning of the year REH] 27,395 33,315
Received during the year FRBEIW 1,404 =
28,799 33,315

Amortisation of government grant BT # Bk ES (B17E7)

(Note 7) (6,010) (5,920)
Balance as at the end of year FREHR 22,789 27,395
Analysed as: Pakiv=1

Current liabilities mENAE 6,012 5,228

Non-current liabilities FmeatE 16,777 22,167

22,789 27,395

Note: Deferred income consists of government subsidies provided by the
relevant PRC government authorities for the purposes of financing
the purchase of plant and machinery and the expenses related to the
leasehold improvement. The amounts are recognised as income to
match with related expenses and cost incurred on systematic basis
over the useful lives of the relevant assets upon completing inspection
by the related government authorities. During the year ended 31
December 2020, government subsidies released to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income amounted
to approximately RMB6,010,000 (2019: RMB5,920,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bt 2 = F = FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

29 ELEBREEE (AR)
WTARME2MAMZBERALE
(B8 AT EEBFERARMERE S
TEEHIEAERBTRAR K

29. DEFERRED TAX ASSET (LIABILITY)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax asset
(liabilities), after set off certain deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities of the same taxable entity, for financial
reporting purposes:

2020 2019
= —TNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBTT

Deferred tax asset EIERIAE B 795 707
Deferred tax liabilities EERIERE (14,596) (10,846)
(13,801) (10,139)

The followings are the major deferred tax asset (liabilities)

TXHIRNFRAERNERELHAER

recognised and movements thereon during the years: EEE)RE@AS
Withholding
tax on
Unrealised undistributed
profit due to profitof  Impairment  Accelerated
intra-group aPRC loss on tax
transaction ~ subsidiary  receivables depreciation Total
HR B8
£ER FEKE
AABRS  ARRDK
EEMH aNgH  ERRE ilp:d
KRBT RF BB REBE  HEARE Azt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTL ARETR ARETE ARETR
At 1 January 2019 W-Z-NF—F—H 165 (7,785) 274 - (7,346)
(Charge) credit to profitorloss (318 ) sF Az (165) (2,569) 433 (498) 2,793)
At 31 December 2019 and RZB-NF+=R=1—-H
1 January 2020 RZE-ZFE-H—H - (10,348) 707 (498) (10,139)
(Charge) credit to profitorloss (318 ) sF Az - (1,947) 88 (1,803) (3,663)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEF+-RA=+—H - (12,295) 795 (2,301) (13,801)

—Eq-F

= —=
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29. DEFERRED TAX ASSET (LIABILITY)

(Continued)

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax of 10% is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by a
PRC subsidiary from 1 January 2008 onwards. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. The directors determined that the management
of the Group can control the quantum and timing of
distribution of profits of their PRC subsidiaries. Deferred
tax liability is only provided to the extent that such profits
are expected to be distributed in the foreseeable future.
Deferred taxation has been provided in respect of the
temporary differences associated with the undistributed
profits earned by a PRC subsidiary, Shenzhen Sprocomm
at the applicable withholding tax of 5%.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately RMB91,204,000 (2019: RMB49,519,000)
available for offset against future profits. These unused
tax losses mainly arose from (i) the preferential tax
treatments of the research and development expenditure
which resulted in additional tax deductions related to
qualified research and development costs of Shenzhen
Sprocomm; or (i) losses incurred by Chengdu Sprocomm
Cloud Technology Co., Ltd. (“Chengdu Sprocomm”),
Sprocomm Technologies Co., Ltd. (“HK Sprocomm?”),
Guizhou Sprocomm Telecommunication Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“Guizhou Sprocomm”) and Guizhou Mars Exploration
Technology Co., Ltd (“Guizhou Mars”). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the unused tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams
for these subsidiaries. Included in unrecognised tax losses
are losses of approximately RMB81,220,000 as at 31
December 2020 that will expire in the next five years (2019:
RMB 38,535,000). Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.
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30. IR A<

30. SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements of authorised and issued share capital KAFMEERBBEITRAZSHFBFN
of the Company are as follows: ™
Number of shares Amount
BHEE S5
2020 2019 2020 2019
“E-BF ZTAF ZRDRF 0 ZTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFL
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each &M% 0.01 B LA L @K
Authorised: ETE -
At 31 December 2019and 2020 ~ RZFE—NEFRZZT=F
F+-A=+—H 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000 8,945 86,213
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR
At the beginning of the year RER] 1,000,000,000 555,556 8,945 5
Issue of shares by global offering BB 2IRBEELTRH
(note (i) (Bi=E ) - 250,000,000 - 2,237
Capitalisation issue of shares B BEITRA
(note (i) (B i) - 749,444,444 - 6,703
At the end of the year REL 1,000,000,000  1,000,000,000 8,945 8,945

All new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in all
respects.

(i

(iii)

Pursuant to a shareholders’ written resolution dated 18 October
2019 (the “Resolution”), the authorised share capital of the Company
was increased from HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares
of HK$0.01 each to HK$100,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each by the creation of an additional 9,962,000,000
unissued shares and such shares shall rank pari passu with all existing
shares upon issue.

On 13 November 2019, 250,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
of HK$0.01 each were issued by way of global offering at an offer
price of HK$0.50 per share with gross proceed amounting to
HK$125,000,000, resulting in a share premium of HK$122,500,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB109,577,000) (the “Global
Offering”).

Pursuant to the Resolution, the Company issued additional
749,444,444 shares, credited as fully paid, to the then shareholders
of the Company in proportion to their then existing holdings in the
Company at the close of business on the day prior to the Global
Offering, by way of capitalisation of approximately HK$7,494,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB6,703,000) crediting to the
Company’s share premium account.

EFBROES TEARRERNZE

TN

[Fl &k

(i)

BERER=ZZT—AF+ATNBHEER
% ([RER]) - AR F)#E % 9,962,000,000
R AR BEATRR (D + 0% 5 AR 78 |3 380,000 7t (5
¥+ & 5 1% 0.01 7 7T #9 38,000,000 A% A% 19) & Hn
Z100,000,0007% 7T (9 #f A & 8% 0.01 7 T &
10,000,000,000 8% % 17) 2 F R 0 1T 12 FE
HTARERNZERSEE -

RZE—hAhF+—A+=8B A2aU2E
REEN TR IEBEEEETR050BTET
250,000,000 f% & f% 0.01 i 7T &) & 38 A% -
FT 15 3R B 42 58 /125,000,000 7 7T &= £ %
1 4 8 122,500,000 4 7¢ (M8 & R AR
109,577,0007T) (2R BE]) -

RIBRER NARIRBEERBEEAT—BEE
PR ] 45 SR PR 7 2 ) 2 PR AR SR A 15 R b f91 ) L BB
HNEE1T 749,444,444 R A BRTIVEB R WO AR 1D »
BEARCEELNAT,494,00078 7T (FHERHAR
# 6,703,000 7C) 5T AR BB IR 19 5 fE B o
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31. RESERVES

i)

(ii)

(iii)

Statutory reserve

According to the PRC Company Law, companies
in the PRC are required to transfer 10% of their
respective after-tax profits, calculated in accordance
with the relevant accounting principles and financial
regulations applicable to entities established in the
PRC, to the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of the registered capital of the
relevant subsidiaries. The statutory surplus reserve can
be utilised, upon approval of the relevant authorities,
to offset accumulated losses or to increase registered
capital of these companies, provided that such fund
is maintained at a minimum of 25% of the registered
capital of the relevant subsidiaries. The statutory
reserve is not distributable as cash dividends and
must be made before distribution of dividend to equity
owners.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between
the consideration and the carrying amounts of the
assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the group reorganisation.

Other reserves

The amount represents (i) the amount paid by an equity
holder in excess of registered capital of Shenzhen
Sprocomm, (ii) the deemed capital contribution
pursuant to the reorganisation of the Group in 2018;
and (i) the difference of the consideration paid for the
acquisition of the additional equity interest in Chengdu
Sprocomm Cloud Technology Co., Ltd. (“Chengdu
Sprocomm”) and the carrying value of the additional
equity interests of the subsidiary acquired during the
year ended 31 December 2019.
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 2. BB EARS
TRANSACTIONS
Share-option scheme i IR ST &

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) upon Listing. The Share Option Scheme is a
share incentive scheme and is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions that the eligible participants,
including (i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives
or officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; (ii)
any Directors (including non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors) of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries; (iii) any advisers, consultants,
suppliers, customers and agents to the Company or any
of its subsidiaries; and (iv) such other persons who, in the
sole opinion of the board of directors of the Company, will
contribute or have contributed to the Group. The Share
Option Scheme shall remain in force unless otherwise
cancelled or amended.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. The
maximum number of shares issuable under share options to
each eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to Directors, chief executives,
substantial shareholders or any of their respective associates
are subject to approval by the independent non-executive
directors (excluding the independent nonexecutive directors
who are the grantees of the options). In addition, any grant
of share options to substantial shareholders or independent
non-executive directors or to any of their respective
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue on the date of offer with an aggregate value (based
on the closing price of the Company’s shares quoted on
the Stock Exchange at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million made within any 12-month period from the date of
grant (inclusive) would be subject to shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting.
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Share-option scheme (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share Option
Scheme may be accepted within on or before the relevant
acceptance date, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
board of directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i)
the HKSE closing price of the Company’s shares on the date
of grant of the share options; (iij the average closing price of
the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the share options; and (iii) the
nominal value of shares of the Company.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme of the Company
adopted in 2019, the Company granted share options
to subscribe for an aggregate of 69,100,000 shares (the
“Share Options”) on 14 April 2020 to certain directors
and employees. The options have a validity period of five
years from the date of grant. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to repurchase or settle the options
in cash. These options vest in tranches over a period of up
to 3 years.

The options are to be vested in three tranches, subject
to the Group achieving its profit target and the directors
and employees meeting their service conditions as well
(the “Performance Conditions”). The directors and
employees should remain in the Group’s employment until
those Performance Conditions are satisfied. Subject to the
fulfillment of the certain financial performance targets by the
Group, the three tranches of options are exercisable in the
following manner:

() 30% of the Share Options will be exercisable
commencing from 1 July 2021;

(i) 380% of the Share Options will be exercisable
commencing from 1 July 2022;

(i) the remaining 40% of the Share Options will be
exercisable commencing from 1 July 2023.
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 32. R TR Z (80
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Share-option scheme (Continued) B RESTE (|
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s TR EE=Z_ZEF+ A =+—
share options held by directors and employees during the ALSEESEREEFBELAL A ERE
year ended 31 December 2020: BWEE
Outstanding
Outstanding Granted at
at 1 January during  Laped during 31 December
2020 the year the year 2020
R-E-ZE R-ZB-Ef
-B-H TSEET=E
Option type ERESR W R 1T ERERH FERE AN W R1TE
Directors B
14 April 2020 “Z-TFMATIA - 12,500,000 12,500,000
Employees EE
14 April 2020 “Z-TFMA+HEA = 56,600,000 (3,300,000 53,300,000
- 69,100,000 (3,300,000) 65,800,000
Exercisable at the end R A7
of the period = = =
Exercise price 1@ = HK$0.51 HK$0.51
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Share-option scheme (Continued)

The total fair value, which was determined by using Binomial
option price model, of the options granted under the share-
option scheme as at the grant date are approximately
HK$15,209,000 (equivalent to RMB13,812,000) on 14 April
2020. The significant inputs into the Binomial Model are as

32. RO ZHARZ @)

RS E (|

RZEZZEZFEOA+MHA BREBER
EAENELREERENBEREZA
FEKAB-_EAHECEERLNET)
#/15,209,000/8 L (FHE R AR
13,812,0007T) - —HANEH £ Z g A

follows: HHEMAT
Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3
F—#t EHt F=4
Exercisable period (subject to vesting conditions 1July2021to  1Jduly2022to 1 July 2023 to
being fulfilled) 13 April 2025 13 April 2025 13 April 2025
B B EAI T T EARE (MR & BB G 1F) T —fF —E_— —T=F
+tHA—RA= tA—H=Z +tHA—H=Z
—ET-hF “E-RF s
MA+=H8 MA+=8 MA+=H
Share price at the grant date HK$0.51 HK$0.51 HK$0.51
i B ERE 0.51 87T 0.51% 7T 0.51% 7T
Exercise price per share HK$0.51 HK$0.51 HK$0.51
BRITEE 0.51 87T 0.51%8 T 0.51% T
Expected volatility 53.00% 53.00% 53.00%
TEH R 08
Expected life of options 5 years 5 years 5 years
BRERTFH 5% 5% 5%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
TEEHAR B
Annual risk-free interest rate 0.58% 0.58% 0.60%

3 LB 4
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32.

33.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Share-option scheme (Continued)

The expected volatility is determined by calculating the
historical volatility of the price of listed companies with
businesses similar to the Group. The expected dividend
yield is determined by the directors based on the expected
future performance and dividend policy of the Group.

The Binomial Model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the share options are based on
the director’s best estimate. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no share-
based payment expense was recognised based on the
management’s best available estimate of the number of
share options expected to vest.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLAN

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs, capped at HK$1,500 per month, to the
MPF Scheme, in which the contribution is matched by the
employees.

The subsidiary established in the PRC contributes based
on certain percentage of the salaries of the employee to a
defined contribution retirement benefit plan organised by
relevant government authorities in the PRC on a monthly
basis. The government authorities undertake to assume
the retirement benefit obligations payable to all existing and
further retired employees under these plans and the Group
has no further obligation for post-retirement benefits beyond
the contributions made. Contributions to these plans are
expensed as incurred. Assets of the plans are held and
managed by government authorities and are separate from
those of the Group.

32.

33.
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33.

34.

35.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLAN (Continued)

The total cost charged to consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of approximately
RMB6,608,000 (2019: RMB21,226,000), representing
contributions payable to these schemes by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2020, the Group had pledged or
discounted the following assets to secure banking and
borrowing facilities and factoring loan granted to the Group:

33.

34.

BREFGE @
HE-—Z-ZTF+-_A=+—HI&EE "
REBEERZSTESRZ ER AR
BHGRAREREMEEKRER ZERA
# N R #6,608,000T (ZZE—AF A
R#21,226,0007T) °

EERF
R-ZE-_ZTF+_A=+—8 AB#E
BYIAEEPBETRERBEUALREE
o AEEEEBRTHEUATEE -

2020 2019

—E-FF —E-hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARET T

Trade and bills receivables B 5 WG IE K e R % 29,361 30,040

Pledged bank deposits IR ITIER 251,071 81,165

Ownership interests in land and T REFRTE R

building 56,792 59,872

Total B 337,224 171,077
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 35. EXRERER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from period year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings,
net of bank balances and cash and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising share capital and
reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
of the Group periodically. As part of this review, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through
capital injection as well as the raise of additional borrowings
as additional capital or the redemption of existing debt.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 36. T H
(a) Categories of financial instruments (@ €MIBEZSE
2020 2019
—EEHF —NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFTAEBD
MEmEE - 285,650
Loans and receivables/at amortised BER N EWEE,
cost (including bank balances bi7g X DN s
and cash) Z OB (BIER
THRHERRS) 638,492 836,365
638,492 1,122,015
Financial liabilities SRAE
Financial liabilities measured at REHEKAGTEZ
amortised cost = 730,075 1,170,462
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIEREEEERBE

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and bills receivables, other receivables, pledged bank
deposits, restricted deposits, financial assets at FVTPL,
bank balances and cash, trade and bills payables,
accruals and other payables, borrowings and lease
liabilities.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments included credit risk, currency
risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

AEENTERCHTABRESRE
WOk TR K FE MR R R~ HL At B IKURRIR
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36. @ T B @)

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk

()

Currency risk

The Group’s major operating subsidiary has
foreign currency sales, which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

As the Group had no material foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at
31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, no
significant impacts on the results of the Group
would arise from the changes in foreign currency
rates, accordingly sensitivity analysis in this
respect is not presented.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T A @)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BRI EEEHEREE &)

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued) % 3 ke ()

(i) Interest rate risk () FIFEE
The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate NE B ghE T B E ) =5 (M
risk in relation to certain fixed rate borrowings H27) RETEHEMRITER
(Note 27) and certain pledged bank deposits (FfsE22) mEE A FEFZRRR
(Note 22). The Group currently does not have 7N 52 (B 30 BRI AR R SRR IBUR -
an interest rate hedging policy. However, the M- BEEGEENXER
management monitors interest rate exposure 3G A TR AT E R & KA X & g
and will consider other necessary actions when e PRER EL 4 4 BB o

significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest REETHE T ZEEERR
rate risk in relation to certain variable-rate pledged T1ER (BtsE22) ~SRTT454% (B
bank deposits (Note 22), bank balances (Note FE24) K2 BRTTE K (M &%
24) and variable-rate bank borrowings (Note 27). 27 ERBERENERMR - K
It is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowing at EEMNBRRANEEMER B
floating rate of interests so as to minimise the fair NBRERLATFEFNERRE -

value interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on AEENESREENERRF
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk BENATREBE 2 ERE
management section of this note. The Group’s BE—fi -AEERSTENX
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated REEEEFEREBUAAR
on the fluctuation of PBOC benchmark lending MEHENEBRTERAS
rate arising from the Group’s variable-rate bank ARBRITELEERFNEKE -

borrowings which are denominated in RMB.

Sensitivity analysis BRE DT

In the management’s opinion, the Group does BEERERR AEEUESEX
not have material interest rate risk exposure and F 2= @R &2 HRE
hence no sensitivity analysis is presented. DT ©
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36. &Rl T A @)
(b) ARG EEEHEREE &

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties provided by the Group is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

In determining the ECL for trade and bills receivables,
the management of the Group has taken into account
the historical default experience and forward-looking
information and concluded that credit risk inherent in
the Group’s outstanding trade and bills receivables are
insignificant.

The Group applies the simplified approach to assess
the expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected credit
loss for all trade and bills receivables. The Group
determines the ECL on an individual basis and/or
collectively by using a provision matrix, estimated
based on historical credit loss experience, as well as
the general economic conditions of the industry in
which the debtors operate. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

204 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited ~ Annual Report 2020

EER R
R—ZZE-_ZTEF+-_A=+—H &K
EEMEYHFHREBTER(AEE
B BLUL 1 BB ) T A A T FG B 75 S
BREREERR  REBEETH
MRRAEEREREBMEENR
[ERERS

RBEERBEERE AEEE
BEECZKEFEEEEEERE
EEEHMEMERIERF AR
PREUIR #E 45 i W B B HR B 75 -

EZRWFIEREREERETER
HEEERN AKBEEEECH
EBERNKRRAELEEN R
RAEBEREEE 5 EWFERE
WEBENEBEERBRTENK -

AEBREBWHHREEREIR
RERBBEITEAFHEDREES
B REANEFAAE SRR
BREEREERAEMEAHREES
B AKBERBGRE(ERNBE
EEBEBEBRURBBARETE
M) B B OB AROR fh AT IR A B E
R/ REAEEETRPEERSE -
BRUME  ARREERRAEH
MEERERE K R -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 —FE —FF+ - H =+ —HIFFE

36. @ T B @)
(b) BIBEMBEEEEREE &

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk of other receivables,
the Group’s management continuously monitors the
level of exposure to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
receivable at the end of each reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is considered minimal as
such amounts are placed with banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is mainly in China, which
accounted for 12% (2019: India 23%) of the total trade
and bill receivables respectively as at 31 December
2020.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 23%
(31 December 2019: 32%) of the total trade and
bills receivables was due from the Group’s largest
trade debtor as at 31 December 2020:and 49% (31
December 2019: 67%) of the total trade and bills
receivables was due from the Group’s five largest trade
debtors as at 31 December 2020.

EER K (&)
AEREREEMEKRZE KEH
EWEREELRBRAKT  BIRE
BY % 48 14 s U [51 30 A 5 75 o itk S -
AEBMNEREHAEDSERIE
WERIEH T U E 4 58 - AR R BT
AT U Bl & %B1SS E S IR -
RUTES AAREERANER
HEERBE AIERD -

REBESNEERBRERAEER
AARZERBEEHRBEREETR
HiERIRN S EETRRT -

Zli‘ilhziﬁzﬁuﬁiﬂ N

EETERE - R-_T-_ZTF
+_ﬂ:+*EnE|JTET%JZH&m
ARERREEEN12%(ZF—N,
F : ENE23%) -

RZZEZZEF+=-_A=+—8"
ESRBAREREREE BN
23% (ZFE—NEFE+=ZHA=+—8:
32%) BEWAEBE R KNIEERP K
H MASEHEAEEFEERR -
RZZEZEF+ZA=+—8"

ESRWAREREREEBED
9% (ZE—nhF+=ZA=+—8:
67%) BEWAEB A RNHERF K
I8 o

—Z 4% Sprocomm Intelligence Limited 205



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I ERER M
For the year ended 31 December 2020 812 —F —F#+ - H =+ —HIFF&E
36. &Rl T A @)
(b) ARG EEEHEREE &

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. In addition, the Group
relies on borrowings as a significant source of liquidity.
The management monitors the utilisation of borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. The maturity dates for non-derivative financial
liabilities are prepared based on the agreed repayment
dates. Specifically, borrowings with a repayment on
demand clause are included in “Less than 1 year or
on demand” band regardless of the probability of the
financial institution choosing to exercise their rights.

The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
curve at the end reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A SRR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bt 2 = F = FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T A @)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIEREBEEBERBEK @)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REE R (E)
Liquidlity table B E % K&

More than More than

Lessthan 1yearbutnot  two year but Total

1yearor exceeding not exceeding More than  undiscounted Carrying
on demand two years five years fieyears  cashflows Amount

SR-5  -EULE WENLE RER

IHER  THERE THBIE  IENL REREHR REE
RMBOOO  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB'O0D  RMBU00
ARBTRL  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  AREBTR  ARRTR

At 31 December 2020 R-B-%E
t2A=t-8
Trade and bills payables BARATER
ERZE 591,972 - - - 591,972 591,972
Accruals and other payables EitERRAMEN
FE 84,585 - - - 84,585 84,585
Lease libilties BEafk 6,754 183 - - 6,937 6,653
Borrowings &3 35,900 3,309 10,777 7,954 57,940 53,518
719,211 3,492 10,777 7,954 741,434 736,728
More than More than
Lessthan  1yearbutnot  two years but Total
1 year or exceeding  not exceeding Morethan  undiscounted Carmyjing
on demand two years five years five years cash flows Amount
SR-FF —EE FEL L RER
BER ETHERE BIEARLE RENE RERELE aE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR  ARETR
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-1F
tZAZt-A
Trade and bils payables BARMFER
ERZE 876,707 - - - 876,707 876,707
Accruals and other payables ErER R A
ERHE 87,498 - - - 87,498 87,498
Lease liablties HERR 12,602 5839 - - 18,441 17,644
Borrowings ER S 185,491 4179 11,550 10,071 211,291 206,257
1,162,298 10018 11,550 10,07 1,193,937 1,188,106
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I ERER M
For the year ended 31 December 2020 812 —F —F#+ - H =+ —HIFF&E
36. &Rl T A @)
(b) ARG EEEHEREE &

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
is included in the “less than 1 year or on demand”
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at
31 December 2020, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of these borrowings amounted to
RMB34,463,000 (2019: RMB164,032,000). Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the directors
of the Company do not believe that it is probable that
the financial institutions will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors
of the Company believe that such borrowings will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements. At that time,
the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows
will amount to approximately RMB37,076,000 (2019:
RMB184,153,000). All borrowings with a “repayable on
demand clause” are with scheduled repayment of less
than 1 year.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bt 2 = F = FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. @l T & (&)

(c) Fair values measurements recognised in

the consolidated statement of financial
position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period for recurring measurement,
grouped into Level 2 based on the degree to which the
fair value is observable in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy.

(c)

RESHBRRRRE 22
FEME

TREHERIAZ SN IR
REMAEREBSHRZAFE
AECYRBASESHERRER
DFERBRIEREDBRFE MG

2020 2019
—E-FF I
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBFT
Financial assets at FVTPL BATHEFABENESHEE
Structured deposits EEEFR - 285,650

The valuation method for fair value measurement of
structure deposits refers to the price quotation from
the issuing banks.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of other financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
value due to their immediate or short-term maturities.

REUEEXLAFEAEXANGE
TRIEBITIRITHOMRE -

EMBHRRARZEMCEREENR
CRABZEREEEREZAFE
HE TR S RENR S BRI o

There were no transfers between levels of fair value RAFERBEFE  AFEERBRK
hierarchy in the current and prior years. i 7 B B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8t 2 —FE —ZEF+ - H=+—HIFF/F

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37.BBERS
(@) Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated (@) REABRREMCESIKES
financial statements, during the years, the Group has SN AR ANE B EER AR E]
entered into the following transactions with related SRS
companies.
Related Nature of
companies B A T transaction XEZME 2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T AREF T
Shenzhen Mars FYNNE Sales SHE 751 -
Note: These transactions were carried out at terms determined and Mot ZERSBRAEERBAIOFTEE R
agreed by the Group and the relevant parties. e AR HELT
(b) During the year ended 31 December 2019, a (b) Bz=F—NF+=-A=+—HL
joint personal guarantee on a banking facility of FE AR AERERELETRE
approximately RMB 70,092,000 by the controlling # A\ R # 70,092,000 7t &9 F R @ A
shareholders of the Company, have been replaced by EERANETEAANATH D AIER
corporate guarantee from the Company upon Listing. B
(c) Compensation of key management (c) TEEEBAE ZFHM

personnel
The remuneration of directors of the Company and

ARAREERHEMEBEEABR

other members of key management during the year NEEOSHMAOT :
was as follows:

2020 2019
—E-EF —T—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARET T
Short-term benefits ZHIE T 2,115 2,168
Post-employment benefits BB 1218 A 81 167
2,196 22885
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bt 2 = F = FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

38. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 38. EEA QBB MR REKNWERE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY
2020 2019
—E-FF —ET-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARBFIT
Non-current Assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries (Note a) R B AR R (M ita) 65,287 72,118
Current Assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TET R IE R E A e W ROR 145 =
Bank balances and cash WITERRIES 143 1,504
288 1,504
Current Liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables FEETE A R H Atb FE S 5RIR 1,217 1,099
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEASH BT /B~ B FRIB 2,884 3,070
4,101 4,169
Net current liabilities REBABEFEE (3,813) (2,665)
Total assets less current liabilites #EEBABARS 61,474 69,453
Capital and Reserves EXR#E
Share capital A& A 8,945 8,945
Reserves (Note b) & (H/atb) 52,529 60,508
Total Equity (Deficiency in Equity)  fE:S#A%E (RS EAL) 61,474 69,453
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bt 2 = F = FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

38. INFORMATION ABOUT THE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
(a) Interests in subsidiaries

38. BB 1 B M A5 AR R MY B R

(%)

(@) RHEL B WES

2020 2019

—EB-FF —TNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREET T AREFIT
Unlisted investment, at cost IELEMIRE (EKA) = =
Amount due from a subsidiary NG E ] 65,287 72,118
65,287 72,118

Represent amount less than RMB1, 000

(b) Reserves of the Company

fEeBERARK1,0007T °

(b) &2 FHHE

Share Accumulated
premium loss Total
IR E REtER @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®F T ARBTFT
At 31 December 2018 and RZZE—-N\E+=A
1 January 2019 =+t—Hk
—ET-hF—H—H - (6,148) (6,148)
Loss and total comprehensive FREE R E2EMAY
expense for the year G - (22,783) (22,783)
Issue of shares by way of ABIRBEERN T AET
global offering &1 109,577 - 109,577
Transaction cost attributable TR EHER S
to issue of new shares B (13,435) - (13,435)
Capitalisation issue BRI ET (6,708) - (6,703)
At 31 December 2019 and RZE—NF+=A
1 January 2020 =+t—-BkK
—ZT-FF—f—H 89,439 (28,931) 60,508
Loss and total comprehensive & A &8 & & E F X
expense for the year Fek) - (7,979) (7,979)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZB_TF
+=A=+—-8 89,439 (36,910) 52,529
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TSR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8t 2 —FE —ZEF+ _-_H=+—HIFF/F

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(a) General information of subsidiaries

39. B A B 2 #F15

(@ BTN —KREHR

Issued and
fully paid
Place and date share capital/ Equity interest and voting
of incorporation/ registered power attributable to
Name of subsidiaries establishment capital the Company Principal activity
ERTR
EMAEL/ BrBRE/ ERAEERE
WELRERE B B A A AfER BERRRE TEXH
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZE-NF
Directly held
HEERE
Grace Kirin' BVI USD1 100% 100%  Investment holding
28 June 2018
R RERIEE e 100% 100% REER
T \&F
AAZ+N\B
Indirectly held
BEER
Sprocomm Intelligence Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
(HK) Limited? 27 August 2018
AEBRERERAR? BA 10,0007 7T 100% 100% REER
—N\F
NA=++H
Shenzhen Sprocomm*® PRC RMB55,556,000 100% 100%  Trading of feature
16 September 2009 phones and smart
phone
RYIRE® HE ARE 100% 100% BENHEFER
“2TNE 55,556,000 7C BRETH
j-L H —I— /N E'
Shanghai Sprocomm* PRC RMB2,000,000 100% 100%  Research and
24 November 2009 development of
cloud computing and
related technology
LERE i ARE 100% 100% HRBEEZHER
“ZTNE 2,000,0007¢ BRI
+-A=+mA

—Z—T4EEH Sprocomm Intelligence Limited 2 13



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I AR YR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8t 2 —FE —ZEF+ - H=+—HIFF/F

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. M B A B 2 518 (@)

(Continued)

(Continued)

(a) General information of subsidiaries

(a) MEBATRW—RER (&)

Issued and
fully paid
Place and date share capital/ Equity interest and voting
of incorporation/ registered power attributable to
Name of subsidiaries establishment capital the Company Principal activity
BRTR
EMMRIL BRRE/ AR REERA
WEAREHE BB A &R BERRERE TTEH
2020 2019
— 7 —% $ 77'-:&
Guizhou Sprocomm™ PRC RMB5,000,000 100% 100%  Research and
8 June 2016 development of
cloud computing and
related technology
BMARE" e ARE 100% 100% WHEEHER
“ERE 5,000,000 7 sk
~NANAE
Chengdu Sprocomm* PRC RMB15,000,000 66.67% 66.67%  Research and
2 August 2017 development of
cloud computing and
related technology
PR E i N 66.67% 66.67% HRBEZHER
S S 15,000,0007¢ izl 3
NAZH
HK Sprocomm? Hong Kong USD50,000 100% 100%  Trading of feature
15 January 2016 phones and smart
phone
BERE? ‘if;’é 50,0007 100% 100% EBEENMRBEFER
—E-RF e T
—H+£H
Sprocomm Technologies India INR145,647 82.03% 82.03%  Customer service and
India® 24 August 2016 technical support
Sprocomm Technologies ED & 145,647 82.03% 82.03% EHPRBRRMZH
Indlia® —TRE HEEL
NAZ+HA
Guizhou Mars* PRC RMB5,000,000 100% 100%  Research and
29 June 2016 development of
cloud computing and
related technology
EMAE Bl ARE 100% 100% HEZHER
NS 5,000,0007C sl
~NEZtNB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8t 2 —FE —ZEF+ _-_H=+—HIFF/F

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. i B 2 B 2 715 (40
(Continued)
(@) General information of subsidiaries (@) MELRN—RER @)
(Continued)
Issued and
fully paid
Place and date share capital/ Equity interest and voting
of incorporation/ registered power attributable to
Name of subsidiaries establishment capital the Company Principal activity
BRTR
EMRIL BRRE/ D EEGERA
MEARERE B3R A TEMER BERRERE TTEH
2020 2019
- -\' —% $ :giﬂﬁ
Liuzhou Sprocomm™ PRC RMB100,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
(former known as 1 September 2017 feature phones and
“Liuzhou Spiking”) smart phones
LIV N=R e ARE 100% 100% %Uﬂﬁb’*‘ FER
(AIfEN BT R ]) —R—tF 100,000,0007¢ BeeF i
LA—-R
Sprocomm Intelligence PRC RMB20,000,000 100% 100%  Research and
Technologies Limited 24 December 2019 development of
cloud computing and
related technology
Sprocomm Intelligence F ARE 100% 100% FREZHER
Technologies Limited “T-NF 20,000,000 7T ek
+ZAZ+mA
Shanghai Hai Huan Ming PRC RMB 2,100,000 70% N/A  Software development
Chong Limited 1 June 2020 company
Shanghai Hai Huan Ming EP ARE 70% TEA HHREAF
Chong Limited ZTTE 2,100,0007C
/\ H El
* The English name is for identification only. B L EE MR -
i Company with limited liabilities incorporated in British Virgin 1 NEBRIZEEFTMERKZIHEREA
Islands.
2 Company with limited liabilities incorporated in Hong Kong. 2 MNEBTMEKIHBERAT ©
& Wholly foreign owned enterprises established in the PRC. 3 RAABEKINEBEDE -
@ Company with limited liabilities established in the PRC. 4 PARBERKSIAER AT
® Company with limited liabilities incorporated in India. 5 RENERSBER AT
All subsidiaries now comprising the Group are limited REBBEEETNZRENBARY
liability companies and have adopted 31 December AERARTEMAT A =1+—
as their financial year end date, except for Sprocomm BIEAREZYHRFEELER (M
Technologies India which have a year-end date of 31 Sprocomm Technologies India & 4
Vel HEERKERAR=A=1—R)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
I%T\l:l

B R L

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Ei 2 — & —FF+ - H =

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary

F—H I EE
39. M B A B 2 518 (@)

(b) EEFERESZNIFZEM

that have non-controlling interest BATHE
The following table set out the summarised financial THREIWAEBIFZ2EWE QA
information of the non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of MEERE
the Group:
Proportion of ownership interests Loss allocated to
and voting rights held by non-controlling interests
non-controlling interests for the year ended Accumulated non-controlling
at 31 December 31 December interests at 31 December
Rt=A=+-H
HEERERREN HET-A=T-ALEE Rt=B=t-BH
FERRERAZRMAL AREFBREENES RitkERER
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZR2RE RN CZBCRE CENF CRCRE CTNF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR AR¥TR  ARETRT  ARMTR  ARETR
Chengdu Sprocomm R#RE 33.33% 33.33% 23 1,231 2,064 2,002
Individuall immaterial subsiclary with 74 3 2k 825 2 (B85
non-controling interest EZHEAT 172 4 (259) (86)
Tota a3t 195 128 1811 2,006

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s subsidiary that has non-controlling interest
that is material to the Group, before intra-group

BREHAEEBER CFERER
MAKERBARZHBEER (RE
B AR R A SR T

eliminations:

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
—E-EF —E-NE
t+=A=+—-HB +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
Chengdu Sprocomm RERE AR® TR ARBTTT
Current assets MENEE 7,193 8,308
Non-current assets EMENE E 47 79
Current liabilities mEAaE (1,050) (2,126)

Equity attributable to owners of RARHEE A
the Company el 4,126 4,169
Non-controlling interests FEERRE A 2,064 2,092
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A SRR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bt 2 = F = FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. it & A Al Z 71 (@)
(Continued)
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary (b) EEFERERNFEZEN
that have non-controlling interest [=UNSIES1C )
(Continued)
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2020 31/12/2019

BE-ZT-ZF HE_Z—NF
t=A=+—-B +=ZA=+—H

IHFEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Revenue & 164 11
Expense 53 (234) (3,458)
Loss for the year FNEE (70) (3,447)
Loss and total comprehensive AKRAaEA AE(LEE
expense attributable to owners P& L
of the Company (47) (2,226)
Loss and total comprehensive IR ERIE (LB E
expense attributable to non- P&t
controlling interest (23) (1,231)
Loss and total comprehensive FRNEBEBEREERAX
expense for the year FEEE (70) (3,447)
Net cash outflow from operating RS MIRE R
activities R (281) (2,811)
Net cash inflow from investing KEFHNEER
activities R 300 2,670
Net cash inflow from financing EEESHIRSRA
activities HER - =
Net cash inflow (outflow) WEMAORL) F58 19 (141)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8t 2 —FE —ZEF+ - H=+—HIFF/F

40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the consolidated statements of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

4. REEBELE 2B EHER

TRALAEERETHELINEER
B REReRFRCEH -HERD
EENBER Eiﬁimbijfﬁxfﬁiuw
ERERARENERTHERMEE
PEHERENEE -

Borrowings Lease liabilities Total
f&& ﬁﬁﬁﬁ #@ct
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARETT
As at 31 December 2018 and )3'4‘: —NE+ZA=1+—H
1 January 2019 ZT-nE—A—H 120,661 16,664 137,325
Non-cash movements 3?1;5/‘ ‘g
New lease arrangement nHERH - 9,179 9,179
Exchange realignment B 5 A% 800 - 800
Finance costs incurred (Note 8) BEARERAH1728) 11,100 860 11,960
Financing cash inflows RERERA 343,421 = 343,421
Financing cash outflows BERLRN (269,725) (9,059) (278,784)
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+-A=+-R 206,257 17,644 223,901
As at 1 January 2020 R-Z-TE—Hf—A 206,257 17,644 223,901
Non-cash movements R E
New lease arrangement HHERH - 921 921
Exchange realignment ERTIECES (1,491) - (1,491)
Finance costs incurred (Note 8) BELBERA(H:#8) 4,840 643 5,483
Financing cash inflows BMERERA 32,905 - 32,905
Financing cash outflows BMERE RN (188,993) (12,555) (201,548)
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-TF+-A=+—H 53,518 6,653 60,171
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 —FE —FF+ - H =+ —HIFFE

41. LITIGATIONS 41. F 7

During the reporting period, there were legal claims arising
from the normal course of business being lodged against
the Group and no specific claim amount has been specified
in the applications of these claims except as detailed below.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company and after
consulting the legal professional advice, the ultimate liability
under these claims would not have a material adverse
impact on the financial position or results of the Group.

On 7 May 2019, an independent factoring company (the
“Plaintiff”) filed a lawsuit at Beijing Haidian District People’s
Court (the “District Court”) against Shenzhen Sprocomm
Technology Co., (Sprocomm Limited) and a customer
of Shenzhen Sprocomm owing the factored accounts
receivable (the “First Defendant”) for the repayment of
the outstanding accounts receivable under the factoring
agreement in the amount of RMB29,200,000 (the “Relevant
Sum”) and the relevant interests.

Based on the legal opinion from the PRC lawyer which
considered the Relevant Sum and previous payments from
First Defendant to the Plaintiff, the directors of the Company
estimated that the outstanding liability of Shenzhen
Sprocomm amounted to be RMB17,073,000 (which is
included in borrowings in the consolidated statement of
financial position) plus the relevant interest, legal costs and
court fees of an aggregate of approximately RMB 2,093,000
(31 December 2019: RMB1,767,000).

In December 2020, Shenzhen Sprocomm has received
the judgement of the first trial from the District Court ruling
it to repay the factored loan amount at approximately
RMB26,805,000 and the relevant interest at approximately
RMB3,303,000. Subsequent to the end of the reporting
period, Shenzhen Sprocomm filed an appeal to the First
Intermediate People’s Court of Beijing Municipality in
February 2021 and the court hearing date is not yet fixed.

RmEHRE AEER-REKBESD
WA—BERRE R TIXFREN
SERERFTEEFEARBRESH
ARREFKERHERERELRRA
ZERBZEREABTEHAERZ
MBRRREBERERTMEE -

RZE-—NFRAELH —HEBIRE
AR(TRED) RIERmAERERAREE
(B tEEREHBEE TRE
iE U BR 2 A R #520,200,0007T ([4H
RAE]) RABAMNEHERIAEREE
FERAGB (RBBRAR) R—%R#
RANEREZNRIABEER ([F—#®
&) IRBFA -

BEPEAEMEENEZER  EEE
HEERERE —HELARRSE W
HRE ARAIEEHBEITFRIIRERNRGE
EadhARY17,073,0007T (25 A
AR RKROESK) - i AR F
B EERARERBALAFTHARE
2,003,000 (ZE—AF+=-A=+—
B : AR®1,767,0007T) °

RZBEZZEF+F FIKEBE WKE
BIEER —BHRAE HTEHAEER
BEREFEH AR 26,805,0007T & 18
B8 F) B 49 A R #5 3,303,000 7T ° ¥R 45 HA 45
REFRIARBR-_ZE=_—F =AMt
EME—FRRARZETIRE EFF AR
FEE B B R FETE ©

—Z—T4EEH Sprocomm Intelligence Limited 2 19



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I AR YR
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41. LITIGATIONS (Continued) 41. {3 (&)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the legal
proceeding is still in progress and additional provision
of RMB326,000 was made by the directors of the
Company, with reference to legal opinion obtained and
available information. The provision was recognised in the
administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and other
payable in the consolidated statements of financial position.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had provision for
litigation of approximately RMB2,093,000 (31 December
2019: RMB1,767,000) included in other payables in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

As at 31 December 2020, aggregate bank balances of
approximately RMB16,210,000 in Shenzhen Sprocomm
were being frozen by banks as the respective banks had
received notice from court with regard to the litigation claim.
Such bank balances were included in restricted deposits in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

As at the date of this report, the legal proceeding is still in
progress. The directors of the Company, with reference
to the legal opinion obtained and available information,
considered that the provision has adequately covered the
maximum exposure including of total claims and legal cost
of the case. In addition, in connection with the listing of
the Company on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, a deed of indemnity was signed
on 18 October 2019, pursuant to which the Controlling
Shareholders, irrecoverably and unconditionally undertakes
to jointly pay up the entire sum or the shortfall and other
costs and expenses which may be made, suffered, or
incurred in relation to this litigation in progress.
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